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PART I - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1: Description of Business

Atok-Big Wedge Co. Inc. (the "Companyl, formerly Atok-Big Wedge Mining Co., Inc.,
was incorporated and registered with the Securities and Exchange Commiision (th-e "SEC,)on
September 4, 193t. Its corporate life was exLended on Septem6er 25, 1981 foi another fifty
(SO)-years to expire on September25,2031. The common shares of the Company are listed in
the Philippine Stock Exchange (the..pSE"; ticker symbol: AB).

Since its incorporation, the Company engaged in mining as its primary purpose,
producing gold as its major product and silver as a by-product. Iti production was all sold to
the Central Bank of the Philippines at a price subsidized by the Philippine Government, and
later on at the prevailing world market price. Gold buliions are used by the philippine
Government as one of the components in the monetary reserye.

Although the Company changed its primary purpose in 1996 from mining to general
investment, it reverted to its original purpose of engaging in exploration and derieloprient of
mining, oil, gas, and other natural resources when it amended its Articles of Incorporation,
which was approved by the SEC on May 24, ZOIO.

The Company has two (2) wholly-owned subsidiaries, AB Stock Transfers Corporation
C'ABSTC') and Tldemark Holdings Limited f,Tidemarkt.

ABSTC was incorporated on June 24,20L0, with the purpose of establishing, operating,
and acting as a transfer agent and/or registrar of corporations.

On the other hand, Tidemark is a holding company registered and domiciled in
Hongkong SAR, which the Company bought on 3 October 2011. Tidemark used to own
9,646,757 ordinary shares of Forum Energy plc, now Forum Energy Limited (.Forum,), a
company registered and domiciled in the United Kingdom representing, approxim ately 27.i4o/o
of Forum's outstanding capital. In March 2077, T'idemark subscribed [o O,OOO,O67 new shares
of Forum, together with the subscription simultaneously made by the other shareholder of
Forum. This new subscription resulted in Tldemark owning 20o/o of Forum. Tidemark expects
the absolute value of its 200/o stake in Forum to exceed the value of its then 27.L4o/o stake,
Forum is a gas & oil exploration and production company with a portfolio of projects in the
Philippines. Among these projects is the Service contraci (sc) 72 where Forum holds 700loequity. SC72 is situated offshore West of Palawan Island and is host to the Sampaguita
offshore gas/condensate discovery. Drilling plans for SC72 have been placed on hold'Ui ttre
Philippine government pending the resolution of territorial sovereignty disputes involving
claimant countries surrounding West philippine Sea,

The Company is a regular member and signatory of the Chamber of Mines. It has
adopted the spirit and substance of the Chamber of Mines' Code of Conduct which calls for
sustainable mineral resources development, environmental responsibility and a social
commitment to the general welfare and economic development of the people in the localities in
which it operates.

Over the past seven decades, the Company has established a strong foundation in the
Philippine mining industry.

Pursuant to its goal of seeking out projects to put into operation, the Company made a
continued careful and diligent evaluation of multiple metallic and non-metallic prospects forpossible investment. While it looked into investment possibilities in Laos, it ru."ntty decided to
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re-focus its effortsln.the Philippines with priority.on projects in the advanced stage, but notdisregarding greenfield exploration prospects with p6tentiat. oiscussioni atso continued for
mines with confirmed potential and previously operated but closed down during tne perioO wiifr
low metal prices. However, the Company hai not made any publicly-announc6O neiry pioOu,i,
or seruices nor it or any of.its security_ holders acquired securities of another person, aside fromthe previously stated acquisition by Tidemart of aoaitional shares of rorum, The Company has
no plans of purchase or selling any significant equipment.

Pafticipation in Bankruptcy, Receivership or similar proceedings

There were no bankruptcy, receivership, or similar proceedings involving the Company.

Business fndicators

The Company is exploring the possibility of entering into a business venture with local
and foreign entities to maximize the potentiai of its mineral properties and to enhance its
earnings in the very near future. It will abide by the principle of sustainable and socially
acceptable mineral resources development.

The viability of .expanding the current pilot plant operation and sustaining it at an
economically viable scale depends on the price of gold in the world market, the f,eso-dollarexchange rate, the efficiency of mining and milling operations, and the grade of ore, The
higher the grade of ore in grams gold per ton of ore, the higher the profit mirgin will be.

Patents, Franchise/Government Approvats

The Company has complied with government rules and regulations and has paid all the
necessary taxes and fees. It regularly coordinates with the Department of Energy (DOE) and
Depaftment of Environment and Natural Resources (DENR) with regard to new rules and
regulations that may be promulgated.

Employees

As of end of 20L7, the Company has three (3) regular employees while ABSTC, the
Company's subsidiary, has only one (1) regular employee, wnicn employees are not subject to
Collective Bargaining Agreement, The Company has no plans of adding additional empioyees
for the ensuing twelve (12) months. However, if the level of activitiei increase paraliel to a
more suppottive regulatory position on exploration and mining, the Company, is expected to
increase the number of its employees. The principal duties and responsibilities of the
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries are to conduct technical evaluation of potential
mining projects, maintain the validity and existence of the subsidiary's mining rights, conduct
exploration and development works, set and run a pilot gold processing plant, and secure all
other properties of the subsidiary, including the plant, equipment, recoids, maps and other
valuable information at the mine site.

Customers

_ The Company and its subsidiaries are not dependent on any single customer or on a
few customers,
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Transactions with andlor Dependence on Related parties

significant transactions with related pail.ties include the following:

a' The Company has existing subleasing agreement with ABSTC and other relatedpafties' Rent income earned from reLte-d parties amounted to zero for 2015 and20L4, and Pl million in 2013. No rent income was declared in 2015 and 2014 asthis purely peftains to affiliates'share in the rental cost. ABSTC is also beingbilled by AMPI for the rent and utility .*penles ii-in.urs and allocates the sameto its sub-lessees.

b' The.Company entered into a cost Sharing Agreement with philweb Corporation(Philweb), a rerated pafi under_common management with the compa ny, forits share in rental and salaries of its key manag6ment personnel. This
agreement has been terminated in October ZO1l.

c' Noninterest-bearing advances to and from related pafties which are due and
demandable.

The following table summarizes the Group's transactions with related parties(entitieswith common directors) for the years ended December 3L, zlLTand 2016andtherelated outstanding balances as at December 31, zotTand 2016:

t 2017 2016 2Ot7 ?016
Receivable from related parties
Entities under ammon management:

Alphaland Corporation (ALPHA)

Alphaland Heavy Equipment Corporation
The City Club at Alphaland Makati ptace,

Inc,
AlphalandBalesin Island Club, Inc.

Acentic Philippines Inc.
Alphaland Aviation Inc,
Alphaland Baguio Mountain Log Home,

Inc,
Choice Insurance Brokerage, Inc.
Philweb Cambodia Ltd.
Philweb

Allocated costs
Service fee

Allocated costs

Service fee
Reimbursemenb

Service fee
Allocated costs

Reimbursements

Sale of asset
Allocated costs

Reimbursements

Lease of office
space

and utilities

f- p-
180,000 180,000

,sqoo!

180,000
39,747

P2,794,966
168,000
579,30s

94,000
32,500

100,800
27,441

796

22t794t966
16,800

579,305

180,000 67200
- 34s00

180,000 50,400_ 2,500
- 796

418,019 
:

418,019
629,581
190,450
1 18,s60

P5,144,418

Payable to related parties
Entities under common management:

Alphaland Souhgate Tower, Inc. (ASTI)

Lease of offlce space
Alphaland Makati Place, hc. (AMpt) and utiiities

111,605 11,566,707 ?593p74 8582,369

266,524 117,387 262392
ALPHA Reimbursements

Allocated ren!
salaries and shared

187,182 tB7,1B2

Philwebr.rw'U costs _ 4,614,939 _ 350,621r 

-

P1,120,172

Aside from the foregoing, there are no transactions (or series of similar transactions)
during the last two (2) years, with or involving the Company or its subsidiaries, in which a
director, executive officer, or stockholder own'ing ten percent (lOo/o) or more of the totaloutstanding shares, or any member of his/her im-mediate family, had br will have a direct orindirect material interest.
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Patents, Trademarks, copyrights, Licenses, concessions and Royarty Agreements

The company does not own any registered patent, trademark or copyright, Neither is ita recipient of any ricense or concession nor a party to any royalty agreement.

Effect of Existing or probabte Governmentar Regutations

The Philippine government is currently reviewing its policy on mining. Any such policy,
yliJ,,.]1ortto, mav have a significant on tne Coripany's future unaJuuors into minins

Nonetheless, a combination of .political, administrative and social issues slowed the paceof mining permit processing in the nnitippinei.'Frr fii;;;;son, none of the pending projects forthe company progressed' R team sent^ry Jn: ar*aiy eratrated a potentially mineralizedarea in the Bicol region last september 2011. surtace iniications ioroil.Jwith the presenceof existing producing mines in tne vicinity gave intereit to tnis prorp..t. io*.u.r, the existingtenement application by the claim owner y: rejected by the Department of Environment and

|*t|:?''::;'J|:T:JTNR)' 
without a valid permit, u'ro,,u thoroush exptoration ni.!;;

rn 20L2, FEP encountered a delay in one of its drilling programs. It has submitted allthe requirements for the issuance of required permits for the drilling program. However, thepermit has not ve! !e.9n issued by the relevant Cou.rrr.nt body, The latest resourceassessment suppofted lh:^91t. to proceed with the drilling ano rep has been granted anextension up to August 2015 to complete its obligations under the service contract. FEpexpects to proceed with its commitment as soon as it is able to obtain the necessaryauthorization from the Government. The Philiipinl-o.prrtment of Energy has granted a forcemajeure on service contract 72 [sc 72] because this'contract area falls within the territorialdisputed area of the west Philippine sei, which is the iuu;ect of a United Nations arbitrationprocess between the Republic of the Philippines ano ini neoprut nepuuiii or gninu.

Research and Development Activities

The company does not allocate specific amounts or fixed percentages for research anddevelopment' The allocation for such activities may viry oepending on the nature of theproject,

Total cost incurred,-including exploration and development works, during calendar years
2013 t02017 amounted to p5.2 million broken down as follows:

Exploration Deve lopme nt Percentage on
RevenueRevenue and Environmental Cost

cY 2013
cY 2014
cY 201-s

cY 20L6
cY 201-7

165,450
2,456,558
l_,593,993

976,429

O%o

O%o

O%o

OYo

^)
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The above.-mentioned expenses were incurred pursuant to the mandatory requirement
to conduct annual assessment works, i.e. reconnaissance and semi-detailed exploration *oifs
such as geological mapping, sampling, opening up of assessment tunnels, ore reierve
development and a:s?y,lg of samples, etc., to prove mineable ore reserve, as provided underthe Philippine Bill of 1902, Presidential Decree irlo. 463, the New Mi;id Code, and applicable
laws, rules and regulations.

Compliance with Environmentat Laws

. The Company is currently not operating a mine or oil project. In the event that it does,all necessary pollution control and enviionmenial protection measures will be set in place.

Competition

The company is currently not operating a mine or oil project.

Risk Factors

. --The 
Company's profitability is dependent on the performance of its subsidiary ABSTC

and affiliate Forum.

Financial Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

o Credit Risk
. Liquidity Risk
o Market Risk

The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the risk management framework.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the
risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policiesr and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and Company's activities. All risks faced by the Company are
incorporated in the .annual operating budget. Mitigating strategies and procedures are also
devised to address the results. The Company, through iti training and management standards
and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control enviroiment in which all
employees understand their roles and obligation:s.

The Company's Board of Directors revielvs and institutes policies for managing each of
the risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the risk of loss ther Company would incur if credit customers and
counterparties fail to perform their contractual obligations. The Company's credit risk arises
principally from the Company's cash in banks and cash equivalents, trade receivables and
refundable deposits.

Receivables which are neither past due nor impaired are of good quality. These are
from clients that pay on time or even before maturity date.

d
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LiquidiV Risk

ourigutiil,Xu:l|rJff.;'rj::#'J#t the cc,mpanv will not be abre to meet its financiar

',o*' 
,ia i.ini,inin, a barance ,r#r,!!:ii:',JT,ly,l,,:.!tJ,t f::,ly,H ?l'li,::i,,:TlTreasury controls and procedrr", ir. in placer to 

"r'rri" that siffici"rl .urn is maintained toc,ver daily operational and working. capiial ruqrirements. Management closely monitors the
;'#:ffi::'fffrilf.;T',1'ri?:;6Jf;:;;;;ffi;ffip required cash reserves as necessary

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates,interest rates and other market prices *iit .orurr.l;;r[; t-d;;;il/ri.or" or the varueof its holdings of financial instruments. The ooi.&iru oi-marLet risk.management is to manageand control market risk exposures within ;.;p1;6[-pJiu*ut rs, while optimizing the return.

The company is subject to transaction and translation exposures resulting fromcurrency exchange fluctuations. The 
lomgany r.grluirv'ronitors outstanding financial assetsand liabilities in foreign currencies and ruint.irr-iror'lt u revel responsive to the changes incurrent exchange rates.

Capital Management

The primary objective of the company's capital management is to ensure its ability to

;::m:: 
as a going concern and that it maintainr [.rttt'.ry cafiitat ratios in order to support its

The companY monitgrs capital on the basis of debt-to-equity ratio which is calculated astotal debt divided by totg] gouitv. To.tal. aeui iompiises of accounts payabte and accruedexpenses, other current liabilities and due to related parties. Total equity comprises allcomponents of equity.

Mining Claims

The Company does not have any existing mining claim.

Item 2: Description of propefties

other than its shareholdings in ABSTC and in Forum (through Tidemark), the company
does not own any other significan[ property.

Item 3: Legal proceedings

The Company is not involved in any legal proceeding.

Item 4: submission of Matters to a vote of security Hotders

During the 2017 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the security holders present andrepresented (representing more than 2/iof the company's outstanding capital stock) approvedthe appointment of Reyes, Tacandong& co. as the cdmplnrc externar auditor.
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2018: 
The following were elected as members; of the company's Board of Director s for 20Ll-

Roberto V. Ongpin

Eric 0. Recto
Walter W. Brown

Anna Bettina Onqpin
Michael Angelo patrick i,i. Asperin

Dennis O. Valdes
Mario A. Oreta

Cliburn Arrthony A. Orbe
John peter Chick B. Castelo

Margarito B. Teves _ Independent Director
Gregorio Ma. Araneta _ Independent Director

PART II - OPEMTIONAL AND FINANCIAT INFORMATION

rtem 5: Market for rssuer's common Equity and Related stockholder Matters

A. Market Information

1. Principal Market - philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.

The company's common shares are traded in the Philippine stock Exchange. As of lasttrading date for March 31, 2o1B the closing price of the shares of the company is php12.7g.
The high and low sale prices of the shares f6r'each quarteiwithin the last tlrree (3) years are:

Approximate Number of Shareholders of Each Class of Common Security as ofDecember 3L,2OL7:

..1

High Low

o:. tr. rerlsreG;rer
18.30

L2.3t. rr - ltr-71
UU L3 .52J-- Quarter 16.0006.30.17 - 2nid-;;rt 15.00

o'r. i1 ir:-FE 73.20
11. ?a 10.00

z,Jr.tb - 4"" euarter 1n
09. 30. 16 3-" oua;G; 10. 98

9. tu
06.30.16 - ?nd 9.65

.UU lt.18QUarter 72. 18 t2. 58

LZ, J1 15 4"'Quarter 1,1.78
0g i0 1q ?rd 11.78
06. 30. 15 - 2od-eIlter

1U. 9U 9.00
03. 3l-. 15 --Tr-!uarter 10. 80

11.04
10.80

B. Holders

The company has 4,zoo stockhorders as of December3 r, zoL7.
ry
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The ToP 20 Registered stockholders of the company as of Decembe r 3t,20t7arez
The list of the top twenty (20) registered sharehorders is as foilows:

No. of Shares o/o

1.

2,

3.

4.

5.

6.

Boerstar Corporation
North Kitanglad Agricultural Co., Inc.
PCD Nominee Corporation:

Filipino - ZL2,L4O,SS4
Non-Filipino - L4g,OB7

Strong Gain Enterprises Limited
Progressive Development Corporation
Power Merchant International Limited
Carroll, Charles F.,TEE Carroll Family Trust FBO
Charles F. Carroll
Braasch, Herbert
Baron, Rose A. & William J.
Araneta, Jorge L.

McLarney, Jane Mary & Tmothy p. Mclarney
Silbeft, Solomon S. & Claire B. Silbert
Cohen, Sy R. & Barbara
Steiner, Norma
Coherco Sec., Inc. FAO 181513151200
Loo Ngo Kue

Pua, Luis

Cunningham, Edmund F. & pauline F.

Olasiman, Edilberto O.

Fores, Maria Lourdes A.
Roxas, Judy A,

Total issued and outstanding shares -
2,545,000,000

t,7"75,219$04
3119,000,000

2.L2,299,641

69.750/o

L2.L4o/o

9.340/o

7,

8.

9.

10.

11.

12,

13.

14,
15,

16.

t7.
18.

19.

20.

1i10,000,000

st3,963,474

30,000,000

593,200
g4,gg4
gt,7g7

73,535

70,975
56,567
43,195
39,656
39,000
36,020
35,542

33,275
33,100

29,840
29,840

4.720/o

3.690/o

1.180/o

0.02o/o

0.00%
0.000/o

0.00%

0.000/o

0.000/o

0.00%
0.00%
0.00o/o

0.00%

0,000/o

0,000/o

0.000/o

0.000/o

0.000/o

NOTE: NKACI has 200,000,000 shares lodged with PCD llominee Corporation.
NKACI owns 509,000,000 shares representin g 200/o of the totarl outstanding shares
Company.

In all,

of the
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C. Beneficial Owner of More than 5olo of Any Class of the Registrant's Common
Equity

x All shares subscribed by Ao
amount to 498,182,284.
xxNorth Kitanglad Agrrcultuml Co., Inc. (NMC, has 20Q00Q000 shares todged with pDTC and held by pCD
Nominee Corporation' In all, NMCI owns 509,00Q000 shares representing 20% of the total outstanding sh'ares of
the Company, Only the 20400Q000 shares are fulty-paid shares.

Except as stated above, the Board of Directors and Management of the Company have
no knowledge of any person who, as at Record Date, was indirectly or directly the beneficial
owner of more than 5olo of the Company's outstanding shares of common stock or who has
voting power or investment power with respect to shares comprising more than five percent of
the outstanding shares of common stock. There are no persons hoiOing more than 5olo of the
Company's common stocks that are under a voting trust or similar agreement,

D. Dividends

The Company has not declared any dividends during the last three (3) years.

The Company's Amended By-Laws provides that its Board of Directors may declare
dividends only from surplus profits arising from the business of the Company, in accordance
with the preferences constituted in favor of preferred stock when and if such preferred stock
be issued and outstanding. Restrictions under the Corporation Code of the philippines also
limit the Company's power to declare dividends.

ry
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Common Boerstar Corporation
6766 Ayala Avenue corner
Paseo de Roxas, Makati City
(Stockholder)

Roberto V, Ongpin and
Eric O. Recto -
Beneficial Owners

Filipino 1,775,218,904*
69.75o/o

Common North Kitanglad Agricultural
Co., Inc.
Ka I ug ma na n Ma noloFortich,
Bukidnon
(Stockholder)

Walter W. Brown -
controlling shareholder

Filipino 309,000,000xx t2,t40/o

Common PCD Nominee Corporation
(Stockholder)

North Kitanglad
Agricultural Co., Inc. -
beneficial owner

Filipino 200,000,000xx 8,35%
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rtem 6: Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial condition and Results ofOperations for the Last Three years

a) 2017 Operational Resutts

ATOK-B|G WEDGE CO., tNc. AND SUBS!DtARtEs
CO NSO LI DATED STATEM ENTS OF COM PREH ENSIVE ] NCO M E

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

oTHER TNCOME (EXPENSES)

Share in the net results of operations

ofan associate 
rrdlrons (13,735,209) (18,758,2731 5,023,064 _26.78%

Servlce fees 1,472,890 t,479,480 (5,590) -0.4s%lnterest income 1,051,021 2,784,483 1t,733,4621 _62.25%
Others

_n.g7%

-

-22.50Yo

IOSS BEFORE INCOME TA)(

NET LOSS
42.43%

orHER COMpREHENSTVE TNCOME (LOSS)

Item thot will be reclossified subsequently

to prolit or loss -

Foreign exchange differences on translation of the
financial statements of Tidemark 46,933,425 (4s,044,100)

TOTAT COMPREHENSIVE
13,

BASICAND DILUTED TOSS PER SHARE

20L7 operations resulted to a P17.3 million total comprehensive loss compared to p13.6
million in 2016. The total difference of P30.9 million were brought about by the
following:

1) + P10.9 million; decrease in the general and administrative mainly due to lower
salaries and wages consequent to manpower reduction, rent, representation
expenses, allocated mining exploration and communication costs during the current
year.

+P5 million; decrease in share on the income of operations of an associate
(Tidemark),

- P45 million; decrease on the foreign exchange differences of an associate
(Tldemark)

2)

3)

Years Ended December 31 lncrease (Decrease)

$
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b) 2016 Operational Results

ATOK.BIG WEDGE CO.,INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLI DATED STATEM ENTS O F COM PREH ENSIVE I NCO M E

GENERAT AND AOMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Share in the net results ofoperatlons
of an assoclate

Servlce fees

lnterest income

Others

(18,7s8,273) (.22,208,2s2l,

t,479,480

2,784,483

3,449,979

16,183

2,843,539 (s9,0s6)

'75.53o/o

t.lt%
-2.08o/o

9.04%

t,463,297

114,464,L69l- 117,873,77t1 3,409,604 -tg.ol%

LOSS BEFOREINCOME Til (33,15{627) (3%E01,412) 6,646,785 .16.70%

NET rOSS (33,364,582) (40,021,100) 6,6s6,s18 -16.63%

oTHER COMpREHENSTVE TNCOME (LOSSl

Item thot will be reclossified subsequently

to profit or loss -

Foreign exchange differences on translation of the

PROVISION FOR INCOME TA(

BASICAND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE

2016 operations resulted to a P13.6 million total comprehensive income compared to p0.5
million in 2015. The total difference of P13.0 million were brought about by the following:

1) + P3.2 million; decrease in the general and administrative expenses

2)+P3.4 million; decrease in share on the income of operations of an associate
(Tldemark),

3)+P6.4 million; increase on the foreign exchange differences of an associate
(Tidemark)

13

209,1ss 219,688 (9,733) 4.43%

financialstatements of Tidemark Holdings Limited 46,993,425 40,540,500 6,3g2,g2s t5.17%
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c) 2015 Operational Resutts

ATOK BtG WEDGE CO., tNC. And Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year increase (Decrease)
zots

GENERAL AND ADMINTSTRATIVE EXPENSES

-

oTHER TNCOME ( EXPENSES )
lnterest income
Service fees
Share in the net results of operations

of an associate
Others

2,843,539

1,463,297

(22,208,252)

3,055,442
1,438,880

2,647,051

(21 1,903)

24,417

(24,855,303)

(6.94o/o)

1.70%
o.oo%

(s38.e8%)
27

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

PROVISIONS FOR INCOME TAX

(39,801,412) (18,378,498) (21,422,914)

59o/o
103,158 347.24%

116.57%

3B.sB%(1 61,1

NET LOSS 40,021,100) 18,537,027) 1,484,073 115.90%

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Item that will be reclassified subsequentty

to profit or /oss -
Foreign exchange differences on translation

of the financial statements of Tidemark
Holdinqs Limited 40 5n0 1 Qlrq 7l,q aa a'2A -lcE .^.? i^n/

2015 operations resulted to a P0.5 million total comprehensive income compared to the
total comprehensive loss of P16.6 million in20L4. The total difference of ptT.Zmillion
were brought about by the following:

P3.7 million; decrease in the general and administrative expenses as compared to
20t4,

P24.9 million; decrease in share on the income of operations of an associate
(Tidemark), P22,2 million share on loss in 2015 as compared to the p2.6 million share
on the income for 2014

P0.2 million; decrease on interest income in 2015

P38.6 million; increase on the foreign exchange differences of an associate (Tidemark)

+1)

2)

3)

4)

16,631,282) 17,150,682 (103.1

W1

+



Plan of Operation for the Next Twelve (12) Months

The company is hoping to get the government approval jq its application for ExplorationPermitoveran area of 3,375 Hectares-in CADT134, lirr.n Del Norte.'while in the process, itwill continue to conduct series of field inspection [o u'riierstand the mineralization occurrencein preparation for.more detailed exploration activities." con.rrrent to the field activities inCADT134' exploration works continues in Mt. oqiugu (587 Hectaresi, r"r.na.. (4g6 Hectares)and Aboloc (567 Hectares) areas also in Agusan oui Nof,., all under u.ror*oa of Agreement."sweet" areas (HIGH GMDE areas ror 6oto il;;li;;tion) within Mt. Daraga and Mendezhave been identified for more detailed subsurraie, il.; involving oil and gas exploration havebeen shelved in relation.to.low oil prices and the uncertainty in supply and demand situation,sc-72 (Recto Bank) is still kept on hold depenil; ,; ile outcome of phitippine Governmentinitiatives involving west Philippine sea.-rne_enitiipine Department of gnulgv has granted aforce majeure on service coirlract 13 pc zz] riiirrse this contract area fals within theterritorial disputed area of the west Philippine 
's*; ;hil is the subject of a United Nationsarbitration processtetween the Republic_of th; Fhilid;ner ano the people,s Republic of china.From November 2013 to 31 December 2017, flre ,riining exploration iost of the company isPhp 5,t92,419.00.

The Company will continue to fund its operations in the next year or two depending on theactivities that will materialize using itscash and its money market investments.

The vision of the .company remains and that is to have a substantial involvement in theexploration and judicious-development of various natural resources that will contribute to theeconomic development of the Philippines. The company's mission to be the leader in chosenfields by creating value through change,.utilizing tlre gr'oupt knowledge capital and adoptingleading technologies, to enhance sharehold..o'rilre ario pront through growth in earnings andin intrinsic wotth, to be committed to a culture of excellence, loyaliT a"nd pride, and to be asocially responsible and environmentally conscious corporate citizen, adhering to the highestethical standards and respecting the communities to which it belongs remains.

Currently,-the company has no plans of increasing its number of employees during the nexttwelve (12) months, however, if the level of actiriities increase parallel to a more supportiveregulatory position on exploration and mining, the Company, is expected to increase the
number of its employees.



Key Performa nce Indicators

The Company's key performance indicators and their manner of
computation are as follows:

CU R R ENT/tIQUI D ITY RATI o

Current assets

Current liabilities

current aSsets

divided by

current liabilities

22.65t1

54,625,748

2,4tL,632

75.26:1.

159,039,881

2, 113,181

!2.97:L

184,845,834

14,256,356

SOTVENCY RATIO

Net los after tax

les depreciation

and impairment loses

Total liabilities

The sum of
net loss after tax

les depreciation

and impairment loses

divided by

total liabilities

(7.s5):1

(19,208,400)

40,589

2,4tL,632

(1s.58):1 (2.7s1:L

(33,364,s82) (40,021,100)

442,826 856,500

2,tt3,L9L 14,256,356

DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO

Total liabllities

Total equity

Total liabilities

divided by

tota I equity

0.004:1

2,4tL,632

635,025,815

0.003:1

2,LI3,L8L

652,344,890

0.022:1,

74,256,356

638,776,047

ASSETTO EQUTW RAT|O

Total assets

Total equity

Total assets

divided by

tota I equity

1.00:1

637,437,447

635,025,815

1.00:1

654,458,071

652,344,890

1.02:L

653,032,403

638,776,047

INTEREST RATE COVERAGE RATIO

lncome before interest and taxes

lnterest expense

lncome before taxes and interest

divided by

interest expense

(19,046,306) 133,L54,627) (39,801,412)

PROFITABILITY RATIO

Net los after tax

Total equity

Net loss after tax
divided by

total equity

(0.03):1

(19,208,400)

635,025,815

(0.05):1

(33,364,582)

652,344,890

(0.06):1

(40,021,100)

638,776,047

+

Manner of As of
Glculatlon Dec 31, 2017 Dec 31, 2016 Dec 31, 2015



Item 7, Financial Statements

Please see the attached Company's Financial Report as of 31 December 2017and its
supplementary schedules, as well as the Companyt audited Statement of Income and Cash
Flows for each of the three (3) preceding years.

There are no changes in, or disagreements with, the accountants on accounting and
financial disclosure.

Item S.Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financia!
Disclosure

89.
udit and Audit Related Fees

The company's external auditor for 2017is Reyes Tacandong&co..

The aggregate External Audit Fees (MC No. 14, Series of 2004) billed for each of the
last three (3) years, for the audit of the annual financial statements and seruices that are
normally provided by the External Auditor, are as follows:

Year

2015
2016
20t7

Amount

200,000.00
200,000.00
200,000.00

The above-mentioned audit fees are inclusive of: (a) other assurance and related
services by the External Auditor that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit;
and (b) review of the Company's financial statements, exclusive of tax fees and/or
representation fees for legal matters.

The Audit Committee makes recommendations to the Board of Directors concerning the
external auditors and pre-approves audit plans, scope and frequency before the conduct of tne
external audit.

The auditor of the Company conducted its audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the Philippines with the objective of expressing an opinion as to whether
the presentation of the financial statements, taken as a whole, conforms to accounting
principles generally accepted in the Philippines. They performed tests of the accountin!
records and such other procedures, as they considered necessary in the circumstances to
provide a reasonable basis for an opinion on the financial statements. They also assessed the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management and evaluated
overall financial statements presentation.

The auditor also considered the Company's internal control in order to determine the
nature, timing and extent of the audit procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the financial statements. There were no audit fees related to this.

There were no products and seruices provided by the external auditor other than the
seryices repofted under the above items.

\i
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There were no disagreements between the auditor and the Company with respect to
the accounting/auditing issues raised during the year.

B. Audit Committee Policies and Procedure - Externat Audit Seryices and Fees
Policies:

1. An external auditor is selected and appointed by the stockholders upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee through the Board of Directors.

2. All proposed professional fees from the external auditor for professional services are to be
approved by the Board of Directors through the Audit committee.

3. The Audit Committee. is to pre-approve tne scope of proposed professional seruices
andlor audit plans of the external auditor.

Procedure:

1, A proposal for the appointment of an external auditor is submitted by the external
auditor.
The stockholders, during their annual stockholders' meeting, shall appoint the external
auditor upon recommendation of the Audit Committee through the Board of Directors,
All proposed professional fees shall be submitted to the nuait Committee, outlining the
scope of work, deadlines and other pertinent information.
The Audit Committee reviews and decides on the proposal.
The acceptance of the proposal is fonruarded to the Board of Directors and formally
communicated to the external auditor.
After the external auditor renders its seruices, the Audit Committee evaluates and reviews
its final reports to ensure compliance with the seryice agreement.
The Audit Committee submits to the Board of Directors all significant items and findings in
the external auditor's repoft.

PART III - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Item 9. Directors and Executive Officers of the Issuer

89. Directors, Executive officers, promoters and control persons

The names of the Directors and Executive Officers of the Corporation as of December
3t, 20t7, and their respective ages, positions held, and periods of seruice are as follows:

2.

3.

4.
5.

6.

7.

4
r[

Roberto V. Ongpin Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer

and Director

12 November 2009 to Present

Vice Chairman, President
and Director

As Vice Chairman, 10 December
2009 to Present; as Director, 12

November to Present

10 December 2009 to Present
16 August 2013 to Present

12 November 2009 to Present
28 Auqust 2014 to Present



Director
Director

John Peter Chick B, Castelo 18 August 2011 to Present
26 May 2011 to Present

28 August 2014 to Present
Cliburn Anthony A. Orbe Director;

Corporate Information
Officer and Compliance

Officer;

13 May 2013 to present
13 May 2013 to present

13 December 2013 to

Compliance Officer-Anti
Money Laundering
Manualand Vice

President for Finance
Corporate Information

Officer; Deputy
Compliance Officer
Assistant Corporate

11 August 2015 to Present
Cristina B. Zapanta 31 May 2016 to Present

Jonamel G. Israel-Orbe As Assistant Corporate Secretary,
28 August 2014;

As Corporate Information Officer
and Compliance Officer, 13
December 2013 to

Following are information on the educational attainment, business experience and
credentials of each of the above-named Directors and Officerr; of the Corporation:

ROBERTO V. ONGPIN, Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer, and Director
Mr, Ongpin, Filipino, 81 years old,was elected Director and Chairman of the Board on 12
November 2009. He is also the Chairman of Alphaland Corporation (ALPHA) and a former
Chairman of Philweb Corporation, a former Director of San Miguel Corporation (SMC), pAL

Holdings, Inc. (PAL) and Petron Corporation (PCOR). He is also the chairman of Alphaland
Balesin Island Club, Inc. (ABICI). In Hong Kong, he is the former Non-Executive Director of
Shangri-La Asia and the former Deputy Chairman of the South China Morning post, both listed
in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He is also the formerNon-Executive Director of Forum
Energy PLC (United Kingdom). Mr. Ongpin joined SGV & Co. in 1964 and was Chairman and
Managing Partner of the firm from 1970 to 1979. He serued as the Minister of Trade and
Industry of the Republic of the Philippines from 1979 to 1986. Mr. Ongpin graduated cum laude
in Business Administration from the Ateneo de Manila University, is a Certified public
Accountant and has an MBA from the Haruard Business School.

ERIC O. RECTO, Vice Chairman and Director
Mr. Recto, Filipino, 54 years old, was elected Director on 12 November 2009 and appointed as
Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors on 12 December 2009. He is also the Chairman of the
ISM Communications Corporation (ISM), Philippine Bank of Communications (pBC) Chairman
and President of Bedfordbury Development Corporation, F,resident and Director'of Q-Tech
Alliance Holdings, Inc., Director of Petron Corporation, and a member of the Boird of
Superuisors of Acentic GmbH. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Recto serued as
Undersecretary of Finance of Republic of the Philippines, in charge of handling both the
International Finance Group and the Privatization Office. Befirre his siint with the government,
he was Chief Finance Officer of Alaska Milk Corporation and tBelle Corporation. Mr. Recto has a
degree in Industrial Engineering from the University of the Philippines as well as an MBA from
the Johnson School, Cornell University.

\
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Asperin

51 Director
Marqarito B. Teves 74
Greqorio Ma. Araneta III 69

44

Josephine A. Manalo 75 Treasurer
53

45



WALTER W. BROWN, Drector
Dr. Brown, 75, Filipino, is also the Chairman of A Brown Company, Inc., palm Thermal
Consolidated Holdings^Corporation, International Clean 2onvironmeni'Systems, Inc., North
Kitanglad Agricultural Company, Inc., PhiGold and A Brown Energy & Resources Dev,t. Inc.,President of Monte oro Resources and Tggv Inc., and Director of pa: corporation. He wasalso the chairman and chief Executive officlr of Philex Mining corporatfin, He received twoundergraduate degreeg: B.S. Physical Science (1959) and B.S. Geology (1960), both from theUniversity of the Philippines,. !.nq post graduate degrees from siinioro university: M.s.
Economic Geology (1963), and Ph.D..in Geology, and M"aior in Geoche;irit (196s). He was acandidate in Master of Business Economics ltsso; from th,: Urir;i;ty;f'Asia & the pacific
(formerly Center for Research & Communications). He is currently the Chairman and Director
of Family Farm School (PPAI), Chairman and President of Studium Theolojiae Foundation, vice
Chairman of the Board of Trustees of Xavier University, and Member of the Chamber of Mines
of the Philippines Inc., and the Georogical Society of the philippines

MICHAEL ANGELO PATRICK M. ASPERIN, Director
Mr. Asperin, Filipino, 59 years old, was elected Director ,on August 2g, 20L4. He is also
President and Chief Executive Officer of Alphaland Balesirr rslaid club, lnc. (ABICI) and
handles various matters for the Group including the development of the Balesin'tsland Club
project, as well as the operations of the aviation and security divisions of the Alphaland Group.
He is also the Chief Operating Officer of Alphaland Corpoiation. prior to joining ALpHA, he
seryed as Senior Vice President for security for wEB from 2100g to 2012. He graduated from
the Philippine Military Academy in 1981.

DENNIS O. VALDES, Director
Mr. Valdes, 56, Filipino, was elected Director on 12 Novemb,er 2009. He is also the president
and a Director of PhilWeb Corporation (since 2006) and a lDirector of Alphaland Corporation
(since 2011). His..previous_work experience includes 10 ys3r'r with the Inquirer Group of
Companies, as a Director of the newspaper, and he was arlso in charge of expanding ih.it
Internet, printing, and 

. 
ink-making operations. Prior to that, he sp"n1 six years witfr me

NutraSweet Company d.eveloping its businesses in Asia. He is a Certified public Accountant,
graduated magna cum laude in Business Administration and Accountancy from the University
of the Philippines and has an MBA from the Kellogg Schorrl of Management, Nofthwestern
University.

ANNA BETTINA ONGPIN, Dhector
Ms. Ongpin, Filipino, 53, was elected Director on 16 Augrlst 2013. She is also currentlya
Director, the Vice Chairman and President and Assistant to the chairman of Alphaland
Corporation' Ms' Ongpin has more than 20 years of conrmunications, marketing,'project
management, and operations experience in the management consulting and media fields. She
holds a Bachelor's Degree in political Science from wellesley college.

JOHN PETER CHICK B. CASTELO, Director
Mr. Castelo, Filipino, 51 years old, was elected Director on 28;August ZOt4. He is presently the
Senior Vice President for Business Development of Araneta Centei, Inc. and sits in the board of
its various subsidiaries and affiliates. He had 27 years of experience in real estate and finance
industries. He earned his Masters in Business Administration and Degree in Bachelor of Science
in Electrical Engineering from the University of the philippines in Diliman.

MARGARITO B. TEVES, Independent Director
Mr..Teves, 

-74, Filipino, is also the Chairman of Think TanI<, Inc., Member of the Board of
Advisers of Bank of Communications. He is also an Inclependent Director of Alphaland
Corporation, Alphaland Balesin Island Club, Inc. and The City blub at Alphaland Makaii place,

+
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Inc. He was forme-rly secretary of the Department of Finance, Landbank president and CEo,and a Member of the House of RepresSntatives (represe,nting th!- ia District or rvegrJd
Oriental). He obtained a Higher National Diploma (HND) in Business Studies, equivalent [o i
BSC in Business Economics from the Citv of London iolleqe and a Master of Arts (MA) i;
Development Economics from the Center-for Development Economics, Williams Cofled inMassachusetts, USA. He was recently conferred an l-ionorary Degree of Doctor of taws byWilliams College, and named Senior Adviser to the China-Asean Economic and cultureResearch Center and Visiting professor at the Guitin Univerrsity of EleJronic Technology in
China.

GREGORIO MA. ARANETA llt - Independent Director
Mr'Araneta III, Filipino, 69 years old,.is.also an Independent Director of philweb Corporation,
Alphaland corporation, Alphaland Balesin Island oub, Inc. and The city ctro at Alphalanj
Makati Place, Inc.. He is the Chairman and Chief Executive r3fficer of Araneta propefties, Inc.since 2010' He is President and Chairman of AMZA Resources corfoiation and Carmel
Development Corporation, Chairman of Gregorio Araneta Inr:., Gregorio Araneta Management
corporation, and Gamma Properties, Inc. Mr. Araneta studied at the-University of san Fr-ancisco
and Ateneo de Manila University where he earned his Bachelgr of Arts Oegree in Economics.

CLIBURN ANTHONY A. ORBE Director, Corporate Inforntation Officer; Comptiance Officer;
Corporate Secretary
Mr. Orbe, Filipino, 44 years old, was elected Corporate Information Officer on 13 December
2013 and elected Corporate_secretaryo_n 31 May 2016. He is also Director, Assistant Corporate
Secretary and Corporate Information Officer of WEB. He has a Bachelor of Laws degree from
Mindanao State University where he graduated cum laude and class valedictorian. He was
formerly an associate of Rodrigo Berenguer & Guno law firm, He is a member of the
Integrated Bar of the Philippines.

JONAMET G. ISRAEL-ORBE, Corporate Information Ofticer; Deputy Compliance Officer;
Assista nt Corporate Secretary
Ms. Israel-orbe, Filipino, 45 years old, was appointed C<lrporate Information Officer and
Deputy Compliance Officer on 13 December 2013 and appointed Assistant Corporate secretary
on 28 August 2014. Ms. orbe is also Legal Counsel for lrlphaland Development, Inc. and
Corporate Information Officer of Alphaland Corporation. She is a rxernber of the philippine Bar.

B. Term of Office

Under Article II, Section 1 of the Corporation's Amencled By-Laws, the directors chosen
by the stockholders of the Corporation entitied to vote at the annlal ,u.ting shall hold office
for one (1) year until their successors are elected and shall herve qualified. 

J

C. Dircctorships in Other Reporting Companies

Mr' Roberto V. Ongpin also serves as Chairman of the Board of Alphaland Corporation,
and Alphaland Balesin Island Club, Inc.

Mr. Eric O. Recto is alsoChairmanof the ISM Communications Corporation, as well as
the Vice Chairman of Philweb Corporation. He is also a Dire<tor of Petron Corporation and Q-
Tech Alliance Holdings, Inc.. Y

$
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Dr, Walter W. Brown is also the Chairman of A Brown Company, Inc. and a Director of
Philippine Realty &HoldingsCorporation.

Mr, Margarito B. Teves is an independent Director_of Alphaland corporation, The city
Club at Alphaland Makati Place, Inc. and Aiphaland Balesin Island Club, Inc. ' 

'

Mr' Gregorio 
Y?, {ra19ta III, is an independent Director of Alphatand corporation, TheCity Club at Alphaland Makati Place, Inc. and alpnarino ailesin lslandtirO, ir..

Mr' Dennis o. Valdes is Director and President of philweb Corporation (WEB) and aDirector of Alphaland Corporation.

Ms' Anna .Bettina ongpin is also the Vice Chairman and Director of Alphalandcorporation, Alphaland Balesin Istand Club, Inc. and The city Club at Aphiiand tvtakaii pfaie,

Shares of ISM Communicatiors_,Corporation (ISM), philWeb corporation (wEB),Philippine Bank of Communications (PBc) Petron corporation (pCoR), nrriiippine nuurtv-6.
H-oldings Corporation (RLT) and A Brown Company, Inc. (BRN) are all lisfed in the pSE, Shares
of The City Club at Alphaland Makati flace, inc.'and Alphalind Balesin Island Club, Inc. are
covered by Registration Statements filed with the SEC.

D. Significant Employees

The Company considers its subsidiaries' entire workforce as signiflcant employees.
Everyone is expected to work together as a team to achieve the Company,i goals.

E. Family Relationships

Ms. Anna Bettina ongpin is the daughter of Mr. Roberto V. ongpin. Messrs. Recto and
Valdes are nephews of Mr. Ongpin. Mr. Recto, Mr. Valdes and Ms. Ong-pin are first cousins, Mr.
Cliburn Anthony A. Orbe and Ms. Jonamel G. Israel-Orbe are married to each other. Other than
the foregoing, the persons nominated or chosen by the Company to become directors or
executive officers are not related to each other up to the iourtn civil degree either by
consanguinity or affi nity.

F. Involvement in Ceftain Legal proceedings

1. Atty, Zenaida Ongkiko-Acorda, as afforney in fact of Atty. Mario E. Ongkiko and in behalf
of Philex Mining Corporation us, Roberto V. Ongpin, et a/., SEC Case'No. 1l-166, Branch
158, Regional Trial Court of Pasig. This involves a purported "derivative suit,, filed on
behalf of Philex against RVO and other companies 

'beneficially 
owned by RVO in

connection with Section 23.2 of the Securities Regulation Code and in order to recover
the "shott-swing profits" which were allegedly realized from supposed transactions
involving Philex shares. A related Petition for Review on Certiorari is also pending before
the Supreme Court in G.R. No. 204166, entitled Robefto V. Ongpin, et ai. us. Aiorda, et
al.

2. People vs, Reynaldo G. Davie et ar., s.B.-13-cRM-010s and s,B.-13-cRIM-0106,
Sandiganbayan ffhird Division), This case was filed against RVO and others in
connection with two loans obtained by Deltaventure Resources, Inc. (DVRI) from DBp.
The Informations in both cases for violations of Section 3 € of R.A, No. 3019 were filed
on 10January 2013,In a Resolution promulgated on 28 lvlay 2014, the Third Division of

(



the Sandiganbayan granted the Accused's Motions to Quash and DISMISSED Criminal
Case Nos. S.B.-13-CRM-0105 and S.B.-13-CRIM-0106. A related Petition for Review on
Ceftiorari is pending before the Supreme Court in G.R. Nos. 217417 and 2L79L, entitled
" People of the Philippines vs. Reynaldo G, David, et al,'

3. In the matter of: Roberto V. Ongpin, Mario A. Oreta, Margarito B. Teves, et al., SEC-
EIPD Case No. 14-3039.This concerns the findings of the Enforcement and Investor
Protection Department on the liability of respondents for violation of Section 26(3) of the
Securities Regulation Code (SRC) in connection with the issuance of shares of Alphaland
Corporation in a capital call, stock rights offering and property for share swap which
were approved and ratified by respondents as officers and members of the Board of
Alphaland Corporation. On August 24, 2015, Respondents elevated the matter through
notice of appeal to the SEC En Banc, where the matter is presently pending resolution.
The appeal is docketed as SEC En Banc Case No. 08-15-384, entitled "Robefto V.
Ongpin, Mario A. Oreta, Margarito B. Teves, et al. vs. Enforcement and Investor
Protection Depa rtm ent".

4. n the Matter of: Philex Mining Corporation, SEC-EIPD Case No, t4-3044. This concerns
the findings of the Enforcement and Investor Protection Department against Mr. Roberto
V. Ongpin for allegedly committing Insider Trading when he purchased Philex shares at
Php19.25 to Php 19.50 per share from the open market in the morning of 02 December
2009 without disclosing to the public that the group of Mr. Manuel V, Pangilinan had
agreed to purchase the said shares from him at P21.00 per share. RVO appealed the
case to the SEC En Banc but the latter affirmed the findings of the EIPD. Mr. Ongpin
elevated the case to the Coutt of Appeals by way of a Petition for Review docketed as
CA-G.R. SP. No. L46704, entitled "Roberto V. Ongpin v. Enforcement and Investor
Protection Depaftment". In a Resolution dated September 29, 2076, the Couft of
Appeals issued a writ of Preliminary Injunction enjoining the enforcement of the SEC En
Banc's decision. The case is submitted for resolution as of 14 July 2017.

Other than the foregoing, the Corporation knows of no legal proceeding including
without limitation any (a) bankruptcy petition, (b) conviction by final judgment, (c) order,
judgment or decree, or (d) violation of a securities or commodities law, during the last five (5)
years up to the date of the filing of this Statement, to which any of its Directors and Executive
Officers is a pafty and which is material to an evaluation of their ability or integrity to act as
such.

Neither have they been convicted by finaljudgment in any criminal proceeding or have
been subject to any order, judgment or decree of competent jurisdiction, permanently or
temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting their involvement in any type
of business, securities, commodities or banking activities, nor found in action by any courL of
administrative bodies to have violated a securities or commodities law.

Item 10. Executive Compensation

Although authorized to give per diems, the Company did not do so in the year 20t4,ln the
year 2015, the Company gave directors per diem in the total amount of Php40,000.00 each,
net of withholding taxes.Further, the directors and officers did not receive any compensation
from the Corporation in the form of bonus, warrants, options, or participation in any profit-
sharing plan in the years 20L4-20L7.

There are no material terms of, nor any other arrangements with regard to
compensation as to which directors are compensated, directly or indirectly, for any services
rendered as director.
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There is no employment contract between the Company and a named executive officer,

There is no compensatory plan or arrangement between the Company and any
executive officer in case of resignation, retirement or any other termination of the executive
officer's employment with the Company, or from a change in the management control of the
Corporation, or a change in the named executive officer's responsibilities following a change in
the management control.

The aggregate salaries of the CEO and the four highest compensated officers
are as follows:

(a) (b) (e)(d)(c)

1.

2.

3,

.+,

P Position Year

Roberto V. Ongpin
Chairman/CEO
Eric O. Recto

Vice Chairman &President
Benedicto D.V. Tan

General Manager for ABSTC

Merilyn G. De Guzman

OIC General Administraion and Support

Aggregate Compensation of the Five
Most H ighly-Paid Executives

including the CEO:

2015

2016
20L7

3,952,000

3,945,552
975,000

Item 11. Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficia! Owners and
Management

s

ffiffiry"
Common Roberto V. Ongpin 1 (direct)

1,485,685,983
(indirect)

Filipino Nit

58,380/o

Common Eric O. Recto 1 (direct)
289,532,821

(indirect)

Filipino Nil

11.380/o

Common Walter W. Brown 1 (direct)
509,000,000

(indirect)

Filipino Nil
20.00o/o

Common Dennis O. Valdes 1 (direct) Filipino Nil

Common Anna Bettina Onqpin 100 (direct) Nil
Common Jesusa Loreto A. Arellano-

Aquda
100 (direct) Filipino Nil



Common Michael Angelo Patrick M.

Asperin
100 (direct) Filipino Nil

Common Margarito B. Teves 100 (direct) Filipino Nit

Common John Peter Chick B.

Castelo
102 (direct) Filipino Nit

Common Gregorio Ma. Araneta III 1,000 Filipino Nit
Total 2,284,2L9,704 89.750/o

Total Issued & Outstanding Shares 2,545,000,000 100.00o/o

Messrs. Roberto V. Ongpin and Eric O. Recto beneficially own and control Boerstar
Corporation f'BoerstarJ, which is the registered owner of approximately 69.750/o of the
Company.

To the extent known to the Corporation, there is no person holding more than five
percent (50/o) of the Corporation's voting stock under a voting trust or similar agreement.

Changes in Control

The Corporation is not aware of any change in control or arrangement that may result
in a change in control of the Corporation during the period covered by this Statement.

Item 12. Ceftain Relationships and Related Transactions

There are no transactions (or series of similar transactions) during the last two (2)
years, with or involving the Company or its subsidiaries, in which a director, executive officer,
or stockholder owning ten percent (100/o) or more of the total outstanding shares, or any
member of his/her immediate family, had or will have a direct or indirect mateiial interest.

PART TV . CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Integrated Annual Corporate Governance Repoft (I-ACGR) will be submitted by the
Company on May 30, 2018, pursuant to SEC Memorandum Circular No. 15, Series of 20L7.

25Y
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PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

List of ltems Repofted under SEC Form L7-q as amended (During the Last 6
Months)

March 27,2OL7

Notice of Annual Stockholders' Meeting

March 3L,2OL7

Corporate Governance Guidelines for Companies Listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange for
the year ended December 3L,20Lo

April 9, 2Ot'7

Acquisition by the Company (through its wholly-owned subsidiary, T'idemark Holdings Limited)
of Shares of Stock in Forum Energy Limited

May 10,20L7

Results of the Annual Stockholder's Meeting

$
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SIGNATORIES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Securities Regulation Code and

undersigned, thereunto duly authorized in the City of Makati onllrB'il'f I lur$iuer 
bY theSection 141 of the Corporation Code, this report is signed on.fle,{talf

Eric O. Recto
President

Cristin . Zbpanta
Senior Vice P sident - Finance
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City by the affiants, personally known to me, who are the same persons who personally

signed' before me the foregoing Annual Report and acknowledged that they executed the

sJme. Affiants, whose identities are personally known to me, exhibited to me their competent

evidence of identity as follows:
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Corporate Secretary

Name Evidence of ldentiW Details

Eric O. Recto TIN No. 108-730-891

Cristina B. Zapanta TIN No. 102-116-723

Cliburn Anthony A. Orbe TIN No. 180-004-166
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ATOK.BIG WEDGE CO., INC.
ALPHALAND MAKATI PLACE
7232 AYALA AVENUE CORNER MALUGAY ST.,

BRGY. BEL.AIR, MAKATI CITY 1209 PHILIPPINES

TELEFAX NO.: +63.2.310-71 00

January 19, 20{8

..STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS"

The management of Atok-Big Wedge Co., lnc. and Subsidiaries (the Group) is

responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements including the
schedules attached therein, for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, in

accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but

to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible in overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

The Board of Directorsreviews and approves the financial statements including the
schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders.

Reyes Tacandong & Co., the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders, has

audited the financial statements of the Group in accordance with Philippine Standards on

Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of
presentation upon completion of such audit.

\oLenro v. oNGPtN
Chairman & CEO

{a.'*' u*t'':*'* *'-n

ERIC O. RECTO
Vice Chairman & President

Ahr-x*.a
CRISTINA EUZAPNNTA
Senior Vice President fo3[inance



SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this at Makati City,
affiants exhibiting to me their respective identification documents, and personally known to
me, follows:

NAME COMPETENT EVIDENCE DATE OF PLACE OF ISSUE
OF IDENTITY ISSUE

Roberto V. Ongpin Passport No: P0300707A 0911712016 DFA Manila

Eric O. Recto Passport No: EC3544131 0212712015 DFA Manila
Cristina B.Zapanta Passport No: P34510624 0612212017 DFA NCR East
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Dlrectors
Atok-Big Wedge Co., lnc. and Subsidiaries
Alphaland Makati Place,

7232 Ayala Avenue corner Malugay Street
Makati City

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Atok-Big Wedge Co., lnc. and
Subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2Ot7 and 2016, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated
statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for the three years ended
December 31., 2017,2016 and 2015, and notes to consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

ln our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Group as at December 3L, 2Ot7 and 2016, and its financial performance and its cash flows for
the three years ended December 3L,2017,2016 and 2015 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS).

Bosis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in lhe Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidoted
Financiol Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of
Ethics for ProfessionalAccountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to the audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphosis of Motter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Notes 1 and 7 to consolidated financial statements
concerning the delay in one of the planned drilling programs of Forum Energy Ltd., an associate of a

subsidiary. The ultimate outcome of the uncertainty related to this delay cannot be presently determined.

Key Audit Motter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audits of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

ga agaraa

RSTl,

not itself a separate legal entity of any description in anyjurisdiction
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Valuation of lnvestment in an Associate

The Group is required to review the carrying amount of its investment in an associate at each reporting date
whenever there is any indication of impairment loss. The impairment review is significant to our audits since
the carrying amount of investment in an associate of P579.2 million, which represents 91% of the
consolidated total assets as at December 3L, 2O!7, is material to the consolidated financial statements.
Further, the impairment review of the investment involves management's judgment and estimate on the
commencement and feasibility of the Associate's exploration projects, which are affected by future market or
economic conditions, particularly the outcome of territorial deliberations in the West Philippine Sea.

Our audit procedures include, among others, the review of the assumptions used by the Group in the
impairment assessment, in particular those involving the forecasted cash flows from the related service
contracts, timing of exploration and the discount rate used. We also focused on the adequacy of the Group's
disclosures pertaining to the status of the Associate's significant exploration projects and the financial
information of the Associate as disclosed in Notes l and 7 to consolidated financial statements.

Other lnformation

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the SEC Form 20-lS (Definitive lnformation Statement), SEC Form L7-4 and Annual Report for the
year ended December 31,2017, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors'
report thereon. The SEC Form 20-lS (Definitive lnformation Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for
the year ended December 31,, 2Ol7 are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors'
report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audits or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Monagement ond Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidoted Financiol
Stotements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial

statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using

the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

I ilfl tllilfl fiil iltilffi il ilfiiltillltiltililllilllfl llilfiil|Iffi lil ll]



-3-

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Finoncial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
these could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the grcing concern basis of accounting and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. lf we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We

are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance r:f the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audits.

@ttr*ris
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we also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that

were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are

therefore, the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation

precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a

matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is EmmanuelV' Clarino'

REYEs TAcANDONG & CO.

fu-).nn,
EMMANUEL V. CLARINO

Partner
CPA Certificate No, 27455
Tax ldentification No. 102-084-004-000
BOA Accreditation No. 4782;Valid until December 31, 2018

SEC Accreditation No. 1021-AR-2 Group A

Valid until March 27, 2020
Bl R Accreditation No. 08-005 I44-005-20L7

Valid until January 73,2020
PTR No. 6607954

lssued January 3,20L8, Makati CitY

March 23,201,8
Makati City, Metro Manila
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ATOK.BIG WEDGE CO., INC. AND SUBSIDIAFIIES

CONSOLTDATED STATEMENTS OF F!NANCIAL POSITION

Decemier 31

trtot" zorz l zoro

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Other current assets

4

5

6

74O,764,8O1
4,523,710
9,337,237

e145,837,63!
5,672,O78
7,53O,t72

Total Current Assets 54,625,748 159,039,881

Noncurrent Assets
Investment in an associate

Available-for-sale financial asset
Property and equipment
Advances to mining right holders
Rental and security deposits

7

8

10
7

15

579,241,L75
1,ggg,g50

45,574
1,525,000

49O,326,OsL

1,ggg,g5o
125,61.0

1,525,000
1,,441.,579

Total Noncurrent Assets 582,811 699 495,418,190

P637,437,447 P654,458,071_

LIAB!IITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities
Payables and other current liabilities
lncome tax payable

11 ?2,411,632 P2,095,070
l-8,111

Total Current Liabilities 2,4!t,632 2,1,13,1,8t

Equity
Capital stock
Deficit
Cumulative translation adjustment

13 1,060,000,000 1,060,000,000
(529,797,2O2) (510,588,802)

704,823,077 102,933,692
Total Equity 535,025,815 652,344,89O

?637,437,447 P654,458,071

See accomponying Notes to Consolidoted Finonciol Stotements.



ATOK.BIG WEDGE CO., INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLI DATED STATEMENTS OF COM PREH ENSIVE I NCOME

Years Ended December 31

Note 2017 201.6 20L5

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 14 P7,836,824 P18,690,458 P21,,927,639

orHER TNCOME (EXPENSES)

Share in net results of operations of an associate
Service fees
lnterest income
Others

7

4

(13,735,209)
L,472,890
1,051,021

1,816

(18,758,2731 (22,208,2521
L,479,480 1,463,297
2,784,483 2,843,539

30,141 27,643

1tL,209,4821 (1.4,464,'.t69lt (17,873,773)

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

PROVISION FOR CURRENT INCOME TAX

(19,046,3051 (33,154,627l.

162,094 209,95517

(39,801,41.2)

2!9,688

NET LOSS (19,208,400) (33,364,582) (40,021,L00)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Item thot will be reclossified subsequently
to profit or loss -

Foreign exchange differences on translation of
the financial statements of Tidemark Holdings
Limited 1,999,325 46,933,425 40,540,500

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE TNCOME (LOSS) lPt7,3t9,O75l P13,568,843 P519,400

BASIC AND DITUTED LOSS PER SHARE 15 (F0.0201) (P0.03s0) (P0.0420)

See occompanying Notes to Consolidoted Finoncial Stotements.



ATOK-BIG WEDGE CO., INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

coNsoLrDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES rN EQUTTY

Years Ended December 31

Note 2017 201.6 2015

CAPITAL STOCK - P1 par value 13 F1,060,000,000 p1,060,000,000 P1,060,000,000

DEFICIT

Balance at beginning of year

Net loss

(510,588,802) (477,224,220) (437,203,1201

(19,208,400) (33,364,5821 (40,021,100)

Balance at end of year (529,797,2021 (51-0,588,802) (477,224,220)

CU M U LATIVE TRANSLATION ADJ USTM ENT

Balance at beginning of year
Foreign exchange differences on translation

of the financial statements of Tidemark
Holdings Limited

102,933,692

1,999,325

56,0O0,267

46,933,425

!5,459,767

40,540,500

Balance at end of year 1O4,823,O17 'J.02,933,692 56,O00,267

P535,025,815 P652,344,890 P638,776,047

See accomponying Notes to Consolidoted Finoncial Statements.



ATOK.BIG WEDGE CO., INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

Note 2017 201.6 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVIT]ES

Loss before income tax
Adjustments for:

Share in net results of operations of an associate

lnterest income
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on sale of property and equipment

(F19,046,306) (F33,1.54,627) (P39,801,412)

7

4
10
10

13,735,2O9
(1,051,021)

40,589

18,758,273
(2,784,483\

442,826
7,102

22,208,252
(2,943,539)

855,500

Operating loss before working capital changes
Decrease (increase) in:

Receivables

Other current assets

lncrease (decrease) in payables and other current
liabilities

(6,321,529l,

l,lg,.,22g
(365,360)

3L6,562

(16,730,909) (19,580,199)

(593,809) (824,640)

{.614,266]' (861,916)

(12,068,147) 5,715,027

Net cash used for operations
lnterest received

(5,189,098)
1,018,160

(30,L07,L31) ('J.6,3.5L,728)

2,923,',J,57 2,847,382
lncome tax paid (180,331) (725,4O4) (t62,4tO)
Net cash used in operating activities (4,351,269) (27,409,378) (13,466,756)

CASH FTOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to:
lnvestment in an associate
Property and equipment
Advances to mining right holders

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 10

7

10

(100,761,008)

39,447

(37,A,;)
(77,s1,4)

608,929

(1,#g;l
(421.,89L1

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ltoo,72t,56tl 493,603 (433,288)

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EqUIVATENTS

CASH AND CASH EqUIVAIENTS AT BEGINNING OF

YEAR

(105,072,8301 126,915,7751 (L3,900,044)

145,837,63L 172,753,406 186,653,450

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR ?4O,764,8OL P1.45,837,631 P!72,753,406

COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on hand and in banks

Short-term placements
P3,405,747 P3,155,576 P2,991_,299

37,359,054 L42,682,O55 169,762,L07

?40,764,80! P1.45,837,631, P172,753,406

See accomponying Notes to Consolidoted Finonciol Statements.



ATOK-BIG WEDGE CO., INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 AT DECEMBER 3!,2017 AND FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3L,20L7,2016, AND 2015

1,. Corporate Matters

Corporate !nformation

Atok-Big Wedge Co., lnc. (the Parent Company) was incorporated and registered with the Philippine

Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on September 3, 1931. The Parent Company's corporate

life was extended to another 50 years from September 25, 1,98L. The Parent Company's primary

purpose is to engage in the business of exploration and development of mining, oil, gas and other
natural resources.

The Parent Company listed its shares in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) on January 8, 1948. As

at December 3L,2017 and 2015, 953,963,474 of the Parent Company's shares are listed in the PSE.

The Parent Company's subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
I ncorporation

Percentage of Ownership

Subsidiary Nature of Business 2017 2076

Tidemark Holdings Limited
(Tidemark)

AB Stock Transfers Corporation
(ABsrc)

Hong Kong

Philippines

Holding

Stock Transfer Agency

L00% 100%

L00% 100%

The Parent Company and subsidiaries are collectively referred herein as "the Group."

As at December 3L, 2017 and 2016, the Group, through Tidemark, has 20.00% and27.1.4% interest
in Forum Energy Ltd. (FEL), respectively. FEL's shares were listed and traded at the London Stock
Exchange's Alternative lnvestment Market until June 26,2015. On March 22,20L7, the Board of
Directors (BOD) approved the subscription to additional 6,666,667 new shares of FEL (through
Tidemark) at USD0.30 a share or a total of USD2.0 million. Together with the subscription
simultaneously made by other major shareholder of FEL, the new subscription resulted to the
decrease of the Company's ownership in FELfrom 27.1,4% in 2016 to20.00%in2O!7. The additional
subscription was ratified by the stockholders on May 10,2017 .

FEL has interests in various service contracts as follows:

Service Contract I nterest
Service contract 72 (Reed Bank)

Service contract 40 (North Cebu)

Service contract 1aA (Nido)

Service contract 14B (Matinloc)

Service contract 14B-1 (North Matinloc)
Service contract 14C-1 (Galoc)

Other service contracts

70%
t00%

8.47%

12.4L%

L9.46%

2.28%
s%-9%

As at December 31, 2OL7 and 201"6, the Parent Company is 69.75% owned by Boerstar Corporation,
a holding company incorporated in the Philippines. The ultimate parent of the Group is

Compact Holdings, lnc., a Philippine entity engaged in holding and investing activities.
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The Parent Company's registered address is Alphaland Makati Place, 7232 Ayala Avenue corner

Malugay Street, Makati City.

Status of the Sienificant Proiects of FEL (Associate Entitv)

Service Controct 72 (Reed Bonk). FEL's principal asset is a 70% interest in Service Contract (SC) 72

which covers an area of 8,800 square kilometers in the West Philippine Sea. SC 72 is currently under

Sub-Phase 2 of its exploration. However, the Philippine government was unable to grant FEL the
permission to deploy vessels for drill site survey work due to the territorial deliberations in the West
Philippine Sea.

On February 26, 2015, the Department of Energy (DOE) granted Force Mojeure to SC 72 work

commitments effective December 15,201.4. ln view of this, allexploration activities in the block are

suspended until the DOE notifies FELto commence drilling. On July 12,20t6, the Permanent Court

of Arbitration in The Hague released a ruling on the maritime case filed by the Republic of the
Philippines against the People's Republic of China. ln particular, the Tribunal ruled that Reed Bank,

where SC 72 lies, is within the Philippines' Exclusive Economic Zone as defined under the United
NationsConventionontheLawoftheSeas. lnNovember2OlT,theAssociationofSoutheastAsian
Nations and China has arrived at a negotiation to commence talks on drafting an effective Code of
Conduct in the disputed seas.

Upon lifting of the Force Majeure, FEL will have 20 months to complete the Sub-Phase 2 work
commitment comprising the drilling of two wells. The terms of the succeeding sub-phase will remain

the same but will be adjusted accordingly. As at December 31, 2017, Force Mojeure is still enforced
and FEL is still waiting until this is lifted in order to commence the remaining Sub-Phase 2 work
commitment. The ultimate outcome of the uncertainty on the conduct of drilling operations cannot
be presently determined.

Service Contract 40 (North Cebu). The Libertad Field had been shut-in since August 20L5. lt was

deemed that FEL would not be able to resume operations due to fluctuating pressure, thus FEL

decided to decommission the field and to plug and abandon the 195-1 production well permanently.

Service Contracts 1.4A (Nido), 148 (Motinloc) ond 148-1 (North Motinloc). The three fields produced

oil on a cyclical basis in 2077 and 2016. Total production in2Ot7 was 125,755 barrels, or an average

of 345 barrels of oil per day (bopd).

Service Contract 14C-1 (Galoc/. The Galoc Field produced a total of 1.5 million barrels of oil in 2017

or 4,00L bopd, as compared to 1.9 million barrels or 5,134 bopd in 2016. Cumulative production

starting October 2008 up to reporting date is 20.18 million barrels of oil.

Other Service Contracts. FEL has participating interests in other service contracts including SC6A

(Octon) and SC14C-2 (West Linapacan), among others, which are currently under exploration phase.

Potential Acquisition of Certain Minine Rights

The Parent Company entered into various Memoranda of Understanding for the potential

acquisition of certain mining rights. Total advances to the mining right holders amounted to
Pl.5 million as at December 31, 2017 and 201.6. ln view of the prevailing regulatory environment,
the Parent Company is continuously evaluating the feasibility of this potential acquisition.
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Sienificant Corporate Acts of the Parent Companv

Stock Option Plan (SOP). ln 2015, the BOD approved the SOP which provides among others the
allocation of no more than 5% of the authorized capital for the SOP; each grant is for three years
and will vest 1/3 for each of the succeeding years; and the strike price shall not be less than 80% of
the market value at the time of grant. This was ratified by the stockholders on May 31,,2016.

As at December 31, 2017, the Parent Company is still completing the requirements for the SEC's

approvalof the exemption from its registration requirements and the PSE's approvalof the listing of
the shares under the SOP. To date, no grants have been made under the SOP.

Approval and Authorization for lssuance of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements as at December 3L,2017 and 20L6 and for the years ended
December 31,,2077,2016 and 2015 were approved and authorized for issue by the Executive
Committee of the BOD on March 23,2018.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial

Reporting Standards (PFRS) issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council and

adopted by the SEC. This financial reporting framework includes PFRS, Philippine Accounting
Standards (PAS), Philippine lnterpretations from lnternational Financial Reporting lnterpretations
Committee (lFRlC), and SEC provisions.

Measurement Bases

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (Peso), the Group's
functional and presentation currency. All values are rounded to the nearest Peso, except otherwise
indicated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on the historical cost basis

of accounting. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in

exchange for an asset and fair value of consideration received in exchange for incurring liability. Fair

value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the transaction date.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
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Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring

basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by

re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair value is included in Note 18.

Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Group adopted effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January L,2017:

o Amendments to PAS 7, Stotement of Cash Flows - Disclosure lnitiative - The amendments
require entities to provide information that enable the users of financial statements to evaluate

changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

Amendments to PAS 12, lncome Taxes - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unreolized

losses - The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred tax assets related to unrealized
losses on debt instruments measured at fair value, to address diversity in practice.

Amendments to PFRS 12, Disclosures of lnterests in Other Entities - Clorificotion of the Scope of
the Standord-The amendments are part of the Annual lmprovements to PFRS 2014-2016 Cycle

and clarify that the disclosure requirements in PFRS 12 apply to interests in entities within the
scope of PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale ond Discontinued Operotions except for
summarized financial information for those interests (i.e. paragraphs B10-B16 of PFRS L2).

The adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS did not have any material effect on the
consolidated financial statements. Additional disclosures have been included in the notes to
consolidated financial statements, as applicable.

New and Amended PFRS in lssue But Not Yet Effective
Relevant new and amended PFRS which are not yet effective for the year ended December 31.,2017
and have not been applied in preparing the consolidated financial statements are summarized

below.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,2018:

o PFRS 9, Finonciol lnstruments - This standard will replace PAS 39, Financiol lnstruments:
Recognition and Meosurement (and all the previous versions of PFRS 9). lt contains
requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities,
im pairment, hedge accounti ng and derecognition.
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PFRS 9 requires all recognized financial assets to be subsequently measured at amortized cost or
fair value (through profit or loss or through other comprehensive income), depending on the
classification by reference to the business model within which these are held and its contractual
cash flow characteristics.

For financial liabilities, the most significant effect of pFRS 9 relates to cases where the fair value
option is taken: the amount of change in fair value of a financial liability designated as at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL) that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is recognized in other comprehensive income (rather than in profit or loss), unless this creates
an accounting mismatch.

For the impairment of financial assets, PFRS 9 introduces an "expected credit loss,, model based
on the concept of providing for expected losses at inception of a contract; it will no longer be
necessary for there to be objective evidence of impairment before a credit loss is recognized.

For hedge accounting, PFRS 9 introduces a substantial overhaul allowing financial statements to
better reflect how risk management activities are undertaken when hedging financial and
nonfinancial risk exposures.

The derecognition provisions are carried over almost unchanged from pAS 39.

PFRS l'5, Revenue from Contract with Customers - The new standard replaces pAS LL,
Construction Controcts. PAS 18, Revenue and related interpretations. lt establishes a single
comprehensive framework for revenue recognition to apply consistently across transactions,
industries and capital markets, with a core principle (based on a five-step model to be applied to
all contracts with customers), enhanced disclosures, and new or improved guidance
(e.g. the point at which revenue is recognized, accounting for variable considerations, costs of
fulfilling and obtaining a contract, etc.).

Amendment to PFRS 15, Revenue from Controct with Customers - Ctarificotion to pFRS -25 - The
amendments provide clarifications on the following topics: (a) identifying performance
obligations; (b) principal versus agent considerations; and (c) licensing. The amendments also
provide some transition relief for modified contracts and completed contracts.

Amendments to PFRS 2, Shore-based Payment - Classification ond Meosurement of Shore-based
Poyment Tronsoctions - The amendments clarify the effects of vesting and non-vesting
conditions on the measurement of cash-settled share-based payment transactions, the
accounting for share-based payment transactions with a net settlement feature for withholding
tax obligations, and the effect of a modification to the terms and condition of a share-based
payment that changes the classification of the transaction from cash-settled to equity settled.

Amendments to PAS 28, lnvestments in Associotes and Joint Ventures - Meosuring on Associote
or Joint Venture at Fair Value - The amendments are part of the Annual lmprovements to PFRS

201,4'201,6 Cycle and clarify that the election to measure at FVPL an investment in an associate
or a joint venture that is held by an entity that is a venture capital organization, mutual fund,
unit trust or other qualifying entity, is available for each investment in an associate or joint
venture on an investment-by-investment basis, upon initial recognition.
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. Philippine lnterpretation IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transoctions and Advance Considerotion -
The interpretation provides guidance clarifying that the exchange rate to use in transactions that
involve advance consideration paid or received in a foreign currency is the one at the date of
initial recognition of the nonmonetary prepayment asset or deferred income liability.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,,20Lg:

o PFRS 16, Leoses -The most significant change introduced by the new standard is that almost all
leases will be brought onto lessees' statements of financial position under a single model
(except leases of less than 12 months and leases of low-value assets), eliminating the distinction
between operating and finance leases. Lessor accounting, however, remains largely unchanged
and the distinction between operating and finance lease is retained.

o Philippine lnterpretation IFRIC 23, Uncertointy Over lncome Tox Treotments - The interpretation
provides guidance on how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting for income taxes
under PAS l-2, lncome Toxes, in particular (i) whether uncertain tax treatments should be
considered separately, (ii) assumptions for taxation authorities' examinations, (iii) determination
of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, and
(iv) effect of changes in facts and circumstances.

Deferred effectivity -

o Amendment to PFRS 10, Consolidated Finoncial Stotements and PAS 28, lnvestments in
Associotes and Joint Ventures - Sole or Contribution of Assefs Between on lnvestor ond its
Associote or Joint Venture - The amendments address a current conflict between the two
standards and clarify that a gain or loss should be recognized fully when the transaction involves
a business, and partially if it involves assets that do not consl.itute a business. The effective date
of the amendments, initially set for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, was
deferred indefinitely in December 2015 but earlier application is still permitted.

Under prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS is not
expected to have any material effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group, except
for PFRS 16. Additional disclosures will be included in the consolidated financial statements, as

applicable.

The Group anticipates that the application of PFRS 16 might have a significant effect on amounts
reported in respect of the Group's leases. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been completed.

Basis of Consolidation

Subsidiories - Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Parent Company. The consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries. The Parent Company
has control when it is exposed, or has right, to variable returns from its investment with the investee
and it has the ability to affect those returns through its powers over the investee.
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Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition or incorporation, being the date on which
the Parent Company obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date such control
ceases, Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control
until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

changes in the controlling equity ownership (i.e., acquisition of non-controlling interest or partial
disposal of interest over a subsidiary) that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions.

When the Parent Company has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

o The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
r Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; or
o The Parent Company's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Parent Company re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control.

Functionol ond Presentotion Currency - The consolidated financial statements are presented in peso,
which is the Parent Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency, which is the currency that best reflects the economic
substance of the underlying transactions, events and conditions relevant to that entity, and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.
When there is a change in those underlying transactions, events and conditions, the entity accounts
for such change in accordance with the Group's policy on change in functional currency. At the
reporting date, the assets and liabilities of Tidemark, a subsidiary whose functional currency is in
United States (US) Dollar are translated into the presentation currency of the parent Company using
the foreign exchange closing rate at the reporting date, components of equity using historical
exchange rate, and their statement of comprehensive income are translated at the foreign exchange
weighted average daily exchange rates for the year. The exchange differences arising from
translation are taken directly to a separate component of equity under the "Cumulative Translation
Adjustment" account. Upon disposal of the foreign entity, the cumulative translation adjustment
shall be recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Business Combinotions ond Goodwill- Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred,
measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree. For each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets.
Acquisition costs incurred are recognized as expense.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

lf the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.
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Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquiren will be recognized at fair value at the
acquisition date' Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is
deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognized in accordance with pAS 39 either in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. lf the contingent consideration is classified as
equity, it should not be remeasured. Subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. ln
instance where the contingent consideration does not fall within the scope of pAS 39, it is measured
in accordance with the appropriate pFRS.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognized for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. lf this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized in profit or loss. lf the initial accounting for
business combination can be determined only provisionally by the end of the period by which the
combination is effected because either the fair values to be assigned to the acquiree's identifiable
assets, liabilities or contingent liabilities or the cost of the combination can be determined only
provisionally, the Group accounts the combination using provisional values. Adjustments to these
provisional values as a result of completing the initial accounting shall be made within L2 months
from the acquisition date. The carrying amount of an identifiable asset, liability or contingent
liability that is recognized as a result of completing the initial accounting shall be calculated as if its
fair value at the acquisition date had been recognized from that date and goodwill or any gain
recognized shall be adjusted from the acquisition date by an amount equal to the adjustment to the
fair value at the acquisition date of the identifiable asset, liability or contingent liability being
recognized or adjusted.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned
to those units.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed
of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Tronsoctions Eliminated on Consolidation - All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and unrealized gains and losses are eliminated in full.

Accounting Policies of Subsidiories - The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year using uniform accounting policies as that of the Parent Company.

Financial Assets and Liabilities

Dote of Recognition. The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the consolidated
statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial
instrument. All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of the assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the market place.
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lnitiol Recognition of Finonciol lnstruments. Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair
value of the consideration given (in the case of an asset) or received (in the case of a liability).
Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of all financial assets and liabilities, except
for financial instruments measured at FVPL. Fair value is determined by reference to the transaction
price or other market prices. lf such market prices are not readily determinable, the fair value of the
consideration is estimated as the sum of all future cash payments or receipts, discounted using the
prevailing market rate of interest for similar instruments with similar maturities.

"Doy 1-" Difference. Where the transaction in a non-active market is different from the fair value
of other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation
technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the
difference between the transaction price and fair value (a "Day 7" difference) in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. ln cases where there is no observable data on inception,
the Group deemed the transactions price as the best estimate of fair value and recognizes "Day 1"
difference in profit or loss when the inputs become ob,servable or when the instrument is

derecognized. For each transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing
the "Day 1" difference.

Clossificotion of Financiol lnstruments. The Group classifies its financial assets into the following
categories: financial assets at FVPL, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, available-for-sale (AFS)

financial assets and loans and receivables. The Group classifles its financial liabilities into financial
liabilities at FVPL and other financial liabilities.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets on initial recognition and, where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each financial year-end.

The Group does not have financial instruments classified as financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVPL and HTM investments.

AFS Finqncial Assets. AFS financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as such or are not classified as another category of financial assets. After initial
measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value with unrealized gains or
losses recognized in other comprehensive income. These fair value changes are recognized in

other comprehensive income until the investment is derecognized or until the investment is

determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in

other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss. lnvestment in equity instruments
that do not have a quoted market price and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are

carried at cost.

This category includes the Group's investment in unquoted shares of stock.

Loons and Receivobles. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, loans

and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method less any

allowance for impairment. The calculation takes into ar:r3ount any premium or discount on

acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in consolldated statement of comprehensive
income when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the
amortization process.
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Loans and receivables are included in current assets if rmaturity is within 12 months from
reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents, receivables (excludin5; advances to officers and employees),
and rental and security deposits are classified under this category.

Other Finoncial Liobilities. Other financial liabilities at amortized cost pertain to issued financial
instruments or their components that are not classified or designated at FVPL and contain
obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset to the lrolder as to settle the obligation other
than by the exchange of fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of own
equity.

The amortized cost of a financial liability is the amount at whir:h the financial liability is measured at
initial recognition minus the principal repayments plus or minus the cumulative accretion using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount.
lnterest expense, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, is

charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method. lnterest expense is added to the carrying amount of the instrument to
the extent that these are not settled in the period in which these arise.

The Group's payables and other current liabilities (excludirng statutory payables) are classified

under this category.

lmpairment of Financial Assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial or
group of financial assets is impaired. Objective evidence includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about loss events such as but not limited to significant financial
difficulty of the counterparty, a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, probability that borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization.

Loons and Receivobles. lf there is objective evidence that arn impairment loss on financial assets
carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. Time value is generally not considered
when the effect of discounting is not material. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of imparirment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant.

lf it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed

financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is incnuded in the group of financial assets

with similar credit risk and characteristics and that group of flnancial assets is collectively assessed

for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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lf, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because of an

event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss

is reduced by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is

recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehenslve income, to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

AFS Financiol Assets. ln the case of equity investments, evidence of impairment would include a
significant or prolonged decline in fair value of investment below its cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the differrence between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized, is

removed from other comprehensive and recognized in profit or loss. lmpairment losses on equity
investments are not reversed through profit or loss. lncreases in fair value after impairment are

recognized directly in other comprehensive income.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and [iabilities

Financiol Assets. A financial asset (or, when applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group

of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

a. the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;

b. the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an

obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass through'
arrangemenU or

c. the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially allthe risks and rewards of the asset nortransferred control
of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the
asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is

measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of tlre asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to pay.

Financiol Liobilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange

or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new

liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.
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Offsetting of Financial Assets and [iabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously. This is not genr:rally the case with master netting
agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Other Current Assets
Other current assets consist of excess of input value added tax (VAT) over output VAT, rental and
security deposits, prepayments and creditable withholding taxes (CWT).

VAT. Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT. The net amount of
VAT recoverable from the taxation authorities is recognized under "Other current assets" account in

the consolidated statement of financial position.

Prepoyments. Prepayments represent expenses not yet incurred but already paid in cash.
Prepayments are initially recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash paid.
Subsequently, these are charged to expense as these are consumed in operations or expire with the
passage of time. Prepayments that are expected to be incurrr:d no more than L2 months after the
reporting date are classified as current assets. Otherwise these are classified as noncurrent assets.

CWT. CWT represents the amount withheld by the Group's customers in relation to its income.
CWT can be utilized as payment for income taxes provided that these are properly supported by
certificates of creditable tax withheld at source subject to the rules on Philippine income taxation.

lnvestment in an Associate
The Group's investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method. An associate is an

entity in which the Group has significant influence.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
associate but is not control or joint control of those policies.

Under the equity method, investment in an associate is carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost plus post acquisition changes in the Group's share of net assets of the
associate. Goodwill relating to an associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment
and is neither amortized nor individually tested for impairment.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income reflects the share of the results of operations
of the associates. Where there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate,
the Group recognizes its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealized galns and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and the associates are eliminated to the extent of the interest in

the associate.

The share in net loss of the associate is shown as "Share in the net results of operations of an

associate" account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the
Group.

Upon loss of significant influence over an associate, the Group measures and recognizes any
retaining investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate

upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retaining investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

Propertv and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any

accumulated impairment in value.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, after deducting trade

discounts and rebates, and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working

condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as

repairs, maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally recognized in profit or loss in the year the

costs are incurred. ln situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have

resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an

item of property and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the

expenditures are capitalized as additional costs of property and equipment. The cost of replacing a

component of an item of property and equipment is recognized if it is probable that the future

economic benefits embodied within the component will flow to the Group, and its cost can be

measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced component is derecognized.

When significant parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, these are

accounted for as separate items (major components) of property and equipment.

Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives of the property and equipment:

Asset Type Number of Years

Exploration equipment
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Transportation equipment

3

5 or lease term, whichever is shorter
4

3

5

The estimated useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed periodically to
ensure that these are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of
property and equipment.

Fully depreciated items are retained as property and equipment until these are no longer in use.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated

depreciation, amortization and any impairment in value are removed from the accounts. Any

resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.
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Advances to Minins Risht Holders
Advances to mining right holders are amounts
certain mining rights. These are carried at the
corresponding asset account when the mining
ultimately acquired.

Deferred Minins Exploration Cost

Deferred mining exploration cost is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Exploration and evaluation activity involves the search for mineral resources, the determination of
technical feasibility and the assessment of commercial viability of the mineral resource.

Exploration and evaluation activity includes:

Gathering exploration data through geological studies;

Exploratory drilling and sampling; and

Evaluating the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting the mineral resource.

Deferred mining exploration cost is no longer classified as such when the technical feasibility and

commercial viability of extracting the mineral reserve are demonstrable. Deferred mining
exploration cost is assessed for impairment, and any impairment loss is recognized, before
reclassification to mineral reserves.

lmpairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The nonfinancial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. lf any such indication exists

and where the carrying amount exceeds its estimated recoverable amounts, the asset or
cash-generating unit is written down to its recoverable amount. The estimated recoverable amount
of the asset is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal or value in use. ln assessing

value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks

specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the

recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

lmpairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously

recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. lf such indication exists,

the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if

there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since

the last impairment loss was recognized. lf that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is

increased to its recoverable amount. However, that increased amount cannot exceed the carrying

amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization for property and

equipment, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is

recognized in profit or loss. After such reversal, the depreciation and amortization charge is

adjusted in future years to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount, on a systematic basis over

its remaining useful life.

paid in advance for the potential acquisition of
amount of cash paid and are reclassified to the
rights for which the advances were made are

a

a

a
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Derecosnition of Nonfinancial Assets

A nonfinancial asset is derecognized upon disposal or when it is permanently withdrawn from use

and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on

derecognition of a nonfinancial asset is included in profit or loss in the period in which it is

derecognized.

Equitv

Copitol Stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Unpaid subscriptions are

recognized as a reduction of subscribed capital shares.

Deficit. Deficit represents the cumulative balance of net loss.

Cumulative Tronslotion Adjustment. All resulting exchange differences arising from translation of

financial statements of Tidemark are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in

"Cumulative Translation Adjustment" account, a separate component of equity.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the

amount of the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received, excluding discounts and rebates. The Group has concluded that it is the

principal in all of its revenue arrangements. The following specific recognition criteria must also be

met before revenue is recognized.

Service Fees. Service fees are recognized in profit or loss when related services are rendered.

lnterest income. lnterest income is recognized as the interest accrues taking into account the

effective yield on the assets.

Other lncome. lncome from other sources is recognized when earned during the period.

Expense Recognition
Expenses are recognized in profit or loss when a decrease in future economic benefits related to a

decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably.

General ond Administrqtive Expenses. General and administrative expenses constitute costs of
administering the business. These are recognized in profit or loss upon receipt of goods, utilization

of services or when the expenses are incurred.

Basic and Diluted Loss per Share
The Group presents basic and diluted loss per share. Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing

the profit attributable to equity holders of the Group by the weighted average number of common

shares outstanding during the year, excluding common shares purchased by the Group and held as

treasury shares. Diluted loss per share is calculated in the same manner, adjusted for the effects of
allthe dilutive potential common shares.
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Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at inception date of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. A
reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

a. there is a cha nge in contractua I terms, other tha n a renewa I or extension of the a rrangemenq

b. a renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension
was initially included in the lease term;

c. there is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset;

or

d. there is a substantial change to the asset.

Where reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (c) or (d) and at the date of
renewal or extension period for scenario (b).

Group os o Lessee. Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an

expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Short-term Emplovee Benefits
The Group provides short-term benefits to its employees in the form of basic pay, 13th month pay,

bonuses, employer's share on government contribution, and other short-term benefits.

The Group recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an expense for services rendered

by employees during the year. Short-term employee benefit liabilities are measured on an

undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

lncome Taxes

Current fox. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax

rate enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred lox. Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reporting date between

the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are

recognized for all deductible temporary differences, and carry forward benefits of the excess of
minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and net

operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be

available against which the deductible temporary differences, excess MCIT and NOLCO can be

utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be available to allow all

or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rate (and tax laws) in effect

at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax

assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the

same taxation authority.

Foreign Currencv Transactions
The Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the consolidated financial

statements are measured using that functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are

initially recorded in the functional currency rate at the transaction date.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional

currency rate at the reporting date. All differences are taken to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income. Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.

Nonmonetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange

rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Related Parties
Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly, or indirectly

through one or more intermediaries, or exercise significant influence over the other party in making

financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist between and/or among entities

which are under common control with the reporting entity, or between , andf or among the

reporting entity and its key management personnel, directors or its stockholders. ln considering

each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship,

and not merely to the legal form. A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or

obligations between the Group and its related parties, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Segment ReportinF
Operating segments are components of the Group: (a) that engage in business activities from which

they may earn revenue and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to
transactions with other components of the Group); (b) whose operating results are regularly

reviewed by the Group's senior management, its chief operating decision maker, to make decisions

about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance; and (c) for which

discrete financial information is available.

For purposes of management reporting, the Group's operating businesses are organized and

managed separately based on the nature of the business segment, with each business representing

a strategic business segment.

Provisions and Contingencies
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present

of past events, it is more likely than not that an outflow
obligation; and the amount can be reliably estimated.

legal or constructive obligation as a result

of resources will be required to settle the

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle

the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time

is recognized as interest expense.
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Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting year and adjusted to reflect the current best

estimate.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are

disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not recognized in the

consolidated financial statements but disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events After the Reporting Date
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group's financial position at the
end of reporting year (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post

year-end events that are non-adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial

statements when material.

3. Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated

financial statements and accompanying notes. The judgments and estimates used in the
consolidated financial statements are based upon management's evaluation of relevant facts and

circumstances as at the reporting date.

While the Group believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant
differences in the actual experience or significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect
the estimated amounts. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Changes in

accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the change

affects only that period or in the period of the change and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the significant judgments, accounting estimates and assumptions made by the
Group.

Determinotion of Functional Currency. Based on the economic substance of the underlying
circumstances relevant to the Parent Company, the functional currency of the Parent Company

has been determined to be the Philippine Peso. The Philippine Peso is the currency of the primary

economic environment in which the Parent Company operates.

Determination of Reportoble Operoting Segments. Determination of operating segments is based on

the information about components of the Group that management uses to make decisions about
the operating matters. Operating segments use internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the
Parent Company's chief operating decision maker, which is defined to be the Parent Company's

BOD, in order to allocate resources to the segment and assess its performance. The Group reports

separate information about an operating segment that meets any of the following quantitative

thresholds: (a) its reported revenue, including both sales to external customers and intersegment

sales or transfers, is 70% or more of the combined revenue, internal and external, of all operating
segments; (b) the absolute amount of its reported profit or loss is 10% or more of the greater, in

absolute amount, of (i) the combined reported profit of all operating segments that did not report a
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loss and (ii) the combined reported loss of all operating segments that reported a loss; and
(c) the assets of the segment are 1.0% or more of the combined assets of all operating segments.

The Group determined that its operating segments are organized and managed separately based on

the nature of the business segment, with each business representing a strategic segment.

As at December 3l-, 2017, 20L6 and 2015, the Group's operating segments consist of its mining,

exploration and development, and stock transfer agency activities.

Classification of Leoses - Group os o Lessee. The Group has operating lease agreement for its office

spaces. The Group has determined that the risks and rewards of ownership related to the leased

property are retained by the lessor. Accordingly, the agreement is accounted for as an operating

lease.

Rental expense amounted to P269,541, P2.0 million and P2.2 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015,

respectively (see Note 16).

Assessment for lmpairment of Receivables. The Group maintains allowance for impairment losses at

a level considered adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables. The level of this

allowance is evaluated by management on the basis of factors that affect the collectability of the
accounts. These factors include, but are not limited to, significant financial difficulties or

bankruptcy, the length of the Group's relationship with the customer, the customer payment

behavior, and known market factors. The Group identifies and provides for specific accounts that
are doubtful of collection and reviews the age and status of the remaining receivables and

establishes a provision considering, among others, historical collection and write-off experience.

No provision for impairment losses on receivables was recognized in 2017, 2016, and 2015.

Receivables, net of allowance for impairment losses, amounted to P4.5 million and P5.7 million as at

December 31., 201-7 and 2016, respectively. Allowance for impairment losses amounted to
P41,550 as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 (see Note 5).

Assessment for lmpoirment of AFS Financial Asset. The Group assesses AFS financial asset as

impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or
whether other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is 'significant'
or 'prolonged' requires judgment. ln addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is

evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry and sector performance,

and financing cash flows.

No provision for impairment losses on AFS financial asset was recognized in2017,201-6 and 2015.

The carrying amount of the Group's AFS financial asset amounted to P2.0 million as at
December 31,2017 and 2016 (see Note 8).

Capitolization of Explorotion and Evoluotion Expenditures. The capitalization of exploration and
evaluation expenditures requires judgment in determining whether there are future economic
benefits from future exploitation or sale of reserves. The capitalization requires management to
make certain estimates and assumptions about future events or circumstances, in particular,

whether an economically viable extraction operation can be established, Estimates and

assumptions made may change if new information becomes available. lf, after expenditure is

capitalized, information becomes available suggesting that the recovery of expenditure is unlikely,
the amount capitalized is written off in profit or loss in the period when the new information
becomes available.
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As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, deferred mining exploration costs amounting to P2.6 million

were fully impaired upon management's assessment that the related projects were unsuccessful

(see Note 9).

Estimotion of lJsefut Lives of Property ond Equipment. The Group estimates the useful lives of

property and equipment based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for

use. The estimates are based on a collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical

evaluation and experience with similar assets. The estimated useful lives of property and

equipment are reviewed at each reporting date and are updated if expectations differ from previous

estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other

limits on the use of the assets. Future results of operations could be materially affected by changes

in estimates brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above. The amount and timing of

recording of depreciation and amortization expense for any period would be affected by changes in

these factors and circumstances.

There were no changes in the estimated useful lives of the Group's property and equipment for the

years ended December 31-,2017 ,201'6 and 20!5.

Depreciation and amortization amounted to P40,589, P442,826 and P856,500 for the years ended

December 31.,2017,2016 and 2015, respectively. Property and equipment, net of accumulated

depreciation and amortization amounted to P45,574 and P125,610 as at December 3L,20!7 and

20L6, respectively (see Note 10).

Assessment for Recoverability of lnput VAT. The carrying amount of input VAT is adjusted to an

extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable revenue subject to output VAT will be available to

allow all or part of the input VAT to be utilized. Any allowance for unrecoverable portion of input

VAT is maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for potentially unrecoverable portion.

The level of allowance is based on past application experience and other factors that may affect

realizability,

No impairment loss was recognized on input VAT in2017,2016 and 2015. lnput VAT amounted to

P7.7 million and P7.5 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 6).

Assessment for tmpairment on lnvestment in on Associate ond Property and Equipmenf. The Group

assesses the impairment on investment in an associate and property and equipment whenever

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of these assets may not be

recoverable. Factors that the Group considers in deciding when to perform impairment review of

investment in an associate and property and equipment include the following, among others:

A significant financial difficulty of the associate.

A significant change in the technological, legal or economic environment in which the business

operates.

A significant decline in market value of asset is more than would be expected from the passage

of time or normal use.

A significant adverse change in how the asset is being used or in its physical condition.

A current-period loss combined with a history of losses or a projection of continuing losses

associated with the asset.
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o A realization that the asset will be disposed of significantly before the end of its estimated useful

life.

|n2017,2016 and 2015, management assessed that there are no impairment inrdicators relating to
the Group's property and equipment.

As at December 31, 2O17 and 2016, the recoverable amount from the Group':; investment in FEL

exceeded its carrying amount.

The aggregate carrying amount of investment in an associate, and proper"ty and equipment

amounted to P579.3 million and F490.5 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively

(see Notes 7 and 10).

Recognition of Deferred Tox Assets. The carrying amount of deferred tax assel.s at each reporting

date are reviewed and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable

profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. The Group's

assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assets on deductible temporary'differences is based

on the forecasted taxable income of the subsequent reporting periods. This forecast is based on the

Group's past results and future expectations on revenue and expenses.

The Group did not recognized deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences totaling

P47.L million and P63.9 million as at December 3L, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note L7).

Management has assessed that it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available in the

near future against which these deferred tax assets on these temporary differenr:es can be utilized.

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

20L7 2016

Cash on hand and in banks
Short-term placements

P3,4O5,747 P3,155,576

37,359,054 '142,682,055

P4O,754,80L P1.45,837,631

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates and are immediately available for

use in the current operations.

Short-term placements are made for varying periods of up to three months and earn interest

ranging from 2.1,2% to 2.25% at the respective short-term placement rates.

lnterest income earned on cash in banks and short-term placements amounted to P1.1 million in
2017 and F2.8 million in 2016 and 2015.
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5. Receivables

This account consists of:

Note 2017 201.6

Receivable from:
Related parties

Third party
Accounts receivable
Advances to officers and employees
Accrued interest
Others

72 P3,544,467

190,450
4tt,76L
348,20O
50,049
20,333

P5,144,418

't24,07L

409,397
L7,1,88

18,554

Less allowance for impairment losses

4,555,260
(41,550)

5,713,628
(41,550)

P4,523,710 P5,672,078

Accounts receivable pertain to stock transfer services billed by ABSTC to its external clients. These

are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and normally collected in cash within 30 days from the date of
billing.

Advances to officers and employees are unsecured, noninterest-bearing, and are subject to
liquidation.

6. Other Current Assets

This account consists of:

Note 20t7 201.6

lnput VAT

Rental and security deposits
Prepayments

CWT

Others

16

P7,7O3,38O

t,44L,579
155,848

LZ6

35,304

P7,485,493

44,679

P9,337,237 P7,530,172

Prepayments consist of medical and dental insurance provided to employees ancl license fees which

will expire within one year.

7. lnvestment in an Associate

lnvestment in an associate pertains to Tldemark's 20.OO% and 27.14% ownershipr of FEL in 2017 and

20L5, respectively (see Note 1).
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Movements of this investment are as follows:

2017 201.6
Cost
Balance at beginning of year
Additions

?767,159,868 P767,159,868
100,751,009

Balance at end of year g67,920,g76 767i5g,g68
Accumulated Share in frf

Balance at beginning of year 1379,767,5091 (361,009,235)
share in net results of operations (13,735,2091 (Lg,7sg,z73)
Balance at end of year (393,502, (379,767,5O9)
Cumulative Translation Adjustment
Balance at beginning of year
Foreign exchange differences

1o2,933,692
1,899,325

56,OOO,267

46,933,425
Balance at end of year !o4,823,OL7 toz,933,692

?579,241,175 P490,326,051.Carrying Amount

As discussed in Note 1, FEL encountered a delay in one of its drilling programs. lt has submitted all
the requirements for the issuance of required permits for the drilling program, however, the permit
has not yet been issued by the relevant Government body. The ultimate outcome of the uncertainty
on the conduct of drilling operation cannot be presently determined.

On July 1.2,201.6, the Permanent Court of Arbitration in The Hague released a ruling on the maritime
case filed by the Republic of the Philippines against the People's Republic of China. ln particular, the
Tribunal ruled that Reed Bank, where SC 72 lies, is within the Philippines' Exclusive Economic Zone
as defined under the United Nations Convention on the Law of the Seas. ln November 2017,the
Association of Southeast Asian Nations and China has arrived at a negotiation to commence talks on
drafting an effective Code of Conduct in the disputed seas.

Management determined that there is no impairment loss to be recognized in 20t7,201.6 and 2015
based on the most recent cash flow projections from FEL's service contracts,

The projections are mainly based on cash flows expected to be generated by SC 72 as approved by
the management and are determined from feasibility studies and expectations on market
development. Cash inflows consider the existing contracts and management's estimate of the
average price per barrel of oil and revenue growth range. The cash flow projections were
discounted using a rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of money and the
risk specific to FEL. The Management's assessment of the status of each service contracts is also
discussed in Note 1.

Following are the summarized financial information of FEL as at and for the years ended
December 3I,2017,20L6 and 2015 (in millions):

20L7 201,6 201,s

Current assets
Noncurrent assets

Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Equity
Net loss

P167.9
1,659.5

465.4
2L.3

L,349.7
(53.2)

P143.0
1,661,.'.).

3.6
1,096.4

704.1,

(6e.1)

P109.4
1,,627.7

3.3

1,016.5

717.3
(81.8)
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8. AFS FinancialAsset

This account pertains to
carried at cost amounting

the Parent company's investment in unquoted shares of stock which is
to P2.0 million as at December 31, ZO!7 and 2016.

Fair value bases for the shares (i.e., quoted market prices) are neither readily available nor is there
an alternative basis of deriving a reliable valuation as at reporting date.

9. Deferred Mining Exploration Cost

The realizability of deferred mining exploration cost is dependent upon the success of future
exploration and development activities in proving the mining property's viability to produce
minerals in commercial quantities, the outcome of which cannot be determined at this stage of the
Parent Company's operations. As at December 3L, 2017 and 2016, deferred mining costs amounting
to P2.6 million were fully impaired upon management's assessment that the related projects were
unsuccessful.

L0. Property and Equipment

The balances and movements of this account are as follows:

2077
Exploration [easehold

lmprovements
Furniture and

Fixtures
Office Transportation

t Equipment Total
Cost
Balances at beginning of year Fs6,235 p4,422,5L8 p1,382,532 F1,333,885 p1,565,s48 F8,860,719
e.l:pgllLslretirement--(8,049)(63,1ss)_(71,204)
Balances at end of year 56,235 4,4Z2,SLB t,37L4g3 L,zt},t3:. p1,G65,548 8,789,515
Accumulated Depreciation

and Amortization
Balance at beginning of year
Depreciation and amortization

39,79a
L,43a

4,409,424
6,833

L,350,992
9,011

L,269,347
23,307

1,665,548 8,735,109

- 40,589
Disposals/retirement--(8,049) lz3,7}Bl_l3L,7S7l
Balance at end of year 41,236 4,4t6,2s7 1,351,954 t,258,946 1,66s,s48 8,743,94r

201.6

Exploration Leasehold Furniture and Office Transportation
Equipment lmprovements Fixtures Equipment Equipment Total

Cost
Balances at beginning of year
Additions

F12a,378 p4,422,5!8 F1,,346,4a6 F1,363,780 p3,068,40s FL0,329,s67
36,046 1,166 37,812

Disposals (72,143) (31,660) (t,4)2,g'7l (1,506,660)
Balances at end of year 56,235 4

Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization

Balances at beginning of year 93,500 4,400,805 t,346,486 1,280,301 2,061,,820 g,1.Bz,g7z
Depreciation and amortization 12,429 8,619 4,506 20,706 396,566 442,g26
Disposals (66,131) - - (31,660) (792,838) (890,629)
Balances at end of year 39,798 4,409,424 1,350,992 1,269,347 1,665,548 8,735,109
Carrying Amount P76,437 P13,094 P3 1,540 P64,539 P_ P1.25,61.0

ln 20!7, the Group
The Group also sold its

retired its fully depreciated
office equipment for P39,447

furniture and fixtures
which is equivalent to its

with cost of P8,049.
carrying amount.
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ln 201"6, the Group sold its property and equipment located at the exploratlon site for a

consideration of P608,929, resulting to a loss of P7,I02.

11,. Payables and Other Current Liabilities

This account consists of:

20t7 20t6Note
Payable to:

Related parties
Third party

Advances from officers and employees
Accruals:

Professional fees
Utilities and other office expenses

Others

L2 P1,043,548
447,548
368,924

200,000
ltg,43t
233,18t

P1.,1.20,L72

256,824

190,000
204,1.53

333,921.
P2,411,632 P2,O95,O70

Payable to related parties and advances from officers and employees are noninterest-bearing, due
and demandable, and are payable in cash.

Accrued expenses and other payables are normally settled within the following month.

Other payables consist of:

2017 201,6

Retention payable

Statutory payables

Others

P95,000
41,586
95,595

P95,000
50,047

188,874

F233,181 P333,921

12. Related Party Transactions

The Group, in its regular conduct
outstanding balances and amount of

transactions with its related parties. The

related parties are as follows:

Amount of Transactions Outstanding Balance

20L7 20L6

of business, has

transactions with

Nature of
Transaction 20L7 20t6

Receivable from related parties
Entities under common monogement:

Alphaland Corporation (ALPHA)

Alphaland Heavy Equipment Corporation
The City Club at Alphaland Makati Place, lnc
Alphaland Balesin lsland Club, lnc.

Acentic Philipplnes lnc.

Alphaland Aviation lnc.
Alphaland Baguio Mountain Log Homes, lnc
Choice lnsurance Brokerage, lnc.

Philweb Cambodia Ltd.

Philweb Corporation (Philweb)

Allocated costs
Service fee

Allocated costs

Service fee
Reimbursements

Service fee
Allocated costs

Reimbu rsenrents

Sale of asset

Allocated costs

Reim bu rsements
Service fee

P2,794,966
16,800

579,305
67,200
32,500
50,400

2,500
,,:

P7,794,966
168,O00

579,305
84,000
32,500

100,800

27,447
796

4t8,Otg
629,58L
190,450
1 18,560

P-
180,000

180,0o0

180,000

,9,747

,ro,ooi

F_
180,000

180,000

180,000

55 2,918

180,000
P?,544,467 P5,1,44,41,4
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Nature of
Transaction

Amount of Transactions Outstanding Balance

20L7 2016 7016
Payable to related parties

Entities under common monogement:

Alphaland Southgate Tower, lnc. (ASTI)

Alphaland Makati Place, lnc. (AMPI)

ALPHA

Philweb

Lease of office space
and utilities

Lease of office space
and utilities

Reimbu rsenrents
Allocated rent,

salaries and other
shared costs

P11,605

266,524

2,547,42a

Pl,566,707

7t7,387

4,674,938

P593,974

262',392
L87,L82

P582,369

1,87,1,82

350,62 1

P1,043,548 PI,L20,L72

Receivable from and payable to related parties are unsecured, noninterest-bearing, due and
demandable, and settlement occurs in cash. Receivable from related parties arising from service
fees are subject to the Company's normal credit terms. ln 2017 and 2016, the Group has not made
any provision for impairment losses relating to the amounts owed by related parties.

The Parent Company had a Cost Sharing Agreement (the Agreement) with Philweb for its share in
rental and salaries of shared corporate services and its key management personnel. This agreement
has been terminated in October 2017.

Details of shared costs charged to the Group are as follows (see Note 14):

20t7 2016 2015

Salaries and allowances
Rental

Others

Pt,935,720
itL,708

P3,234,369

1,380,569

P3,205,L82

1,,173,349

28,919
?2,547,428 P4,6L4,938 P4,407,450

ln 2017, Philweb cease to be a related party of the Group.

Following are the intergroup balances presented under receivables account in the Parent Company's
separate financial statements which were eliminated in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amount of Transactions Outstandlng Balance

Nature of Transaction 20L7 2076 20L7 20L6

Dividend receivable
ABSTC Dividend declaration F2,000,000 P- F2,O00,000

Receivable from related parties
Tidemark

ABSTC

Working capital advances

Allocated Tent, salaries,
utilities and reimbursements

P-

757,52L

P-

8 13,946

P22t,901

195,405

P223,90L

932,251-

?4L9,307 ?1-,156,1-52

lntergroup balances which were eliminated in the consolidated financial statements are unsecured,
noninterest-bearing, due and demandable, and normally settled in cash.

Compensation of Kev Management Personnel
The compensation of the key management personnel is included as part of the Agreement with
Philweb under the allocated salaries and allowances. Subsequent to October 2017, the

compensation of key management personnel of the Parent Company is being handled by ASTI at no

cost to the Parent Company.
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13. CapitalStock

The composition of the Parent Company's capital stock consisting of all common shares as at
December 31.,2017 and 2016 is as follows:

Sha res Amount
Authorized - P1 par value 10,000,000,000 Pl_0,000,000,000

lssued and outstanding
Subscribed

953,963,474
'1,,591,036,526

P953,963,474
1,591,036,526

Less subscription receivable
2,545,000,000 2,545,000,000

1,495,000,000
2,545,000,000 F1,060,000,000

14. General and Administrative Expenses

This account consists of:

Note 20L7 201.6 2015
Allocated expenses
Salaries and wages
Professional fees
PSE listing fee
Rent

Supplies
Taxes and licenses
Utilities, dues and subscriptions
Depreciation and amortization
Medical and hospitalization
Representation
Communications
Transportation and travel
Mining exploration cost
Others

L2

16

10

P2,547,428
2,log,L15
7,2tO,341

990,2t4
269,541
L74,644
139,209

98,707
40,589
31,456
21,447
!6,49t
6,779
1,599

180,165

P4,61,4,939
4,91,4,255

831,507

1,123,769
2,O4g,g4g

369,391
55,833

705,502
442,826
563,139
643,841,
464,1,04

1,94,942

976,428
840,'J.34

P4,407,450
5,793,506

732,889
1,,123,769
2,170,757

302,578
7,L82,1.O3

1,093,730
856,500
378,608
876,500

569,741
291.,704

1,593,983

563,821,
P7,836,824 P18,690,458 P21,,927,639

15. Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share

Basic and diluted loss per share is computed as follows:

20L7 2016 201.5

Net loss (a)

Weighted average number of
outstanding shares (b)

(P19,208,400)

953,963,474

(F33,364,582) (P40,021,100)

953,963,474 953,963,474
Basic and diluted loss per share

(a/b) (F0.0201) (F0.03s0) (P0.0420)
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The Group has no dilutive potential common shares outstanding, therefore basic loss per share is
the same as diluted loss per share.

16. Operating Leases

The Parent Company is a party to a noncancellable lease agreement with ASTI covering its office and
parking spaces for a period of five years from January L,201.0, renewable upon mutual consent of
both parties. The lease agreement was terminated on september 30,201,6.

Under the terms of the covering lease agreements, the Parent company is required to pay rental
and security deposits which are included as part of "Other noncurrent assets" in the consolidated
statement of financial position aggregating P1.4 million as at December 31, 20L6. These deposits
will become refundable to the Parent comrpany at the end of the lease contract. As a result of
termination of the lease agreement with ASI'1, the Parent Company expects to collect these deposits
within one year from reporting date. Accordingly, the Parent Company reclassified these deposits to
"Other current assets" account in2077 (see Note G).

ln october 2016, the Parent Company entererd into a lease agreement with AMpl for its office space.
The term of the lease shallcommence on October 10,2OtG untilterminated by any party upon sixty
(60)days advance written notice to the other party. ln March 2017,the lease agreement with AMpl
was amended by both parties to stipulate a different office space.

Rent expense on leased properties amountr:d to F269,541, pz.O million and p2.2 million in 2017,
2016 and 20L5, respectively (see Note 14).

17. lncome Taxes

ln 2OI7 and 201,6, the provision for current income tax amounting to pL62,0g4 and p209,955,
respectively, represents RCIT for ABSTC. The Parent Company had no provision for current income
tax in 2017 and 2016 due to its tax loss position. ln 2015, the provision for current income tax
amounting to P219,688 represents the combined MCIT for the Parent Company and RCIT for ABSTC.

The deferred tax assets on the following decluctible temporary differences remain unrecognized as
management has assessed that it is not probieble that sufficient taxable profit will be available in the
near future against which the benefits of the deferred tax assets on these temporary differences can
be utilized.

2017 2016
NOLCO

Accumulated impairment losses on:
Deferred mining exploration cost
Receivables

Excess MCIT over RCIT

P44,435,570

2,613,94O
41,550

29

P61,,252,1,41,

2,613,94O
41,550

'J,,764

P47,091,099 P63,909,395
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The Parent Company has NOLCO which can be carried forward and claimed as deduction from
future taxable income as follows:

Balance at
Year lncurred of Year Expired

P_

Balance at
End ofYear
P6,862,105
L7,256,270
20,317,195

Valid UntilI ncu rred
F- P6,862t,7052077

2076
201s
2014

2020
2079
2018
2017

77,256,270
20,317,L95
23,678,676 23,678,676

P61,252,741. P6,8621,105 P23,679,675 P44,435,570

The Parent Company has excess MCIT over RCIT which can be carried forward and claimed as
deduction against future income tax liability as follows:

Balance at Balance at
End of YearYear lncurred of Year Expired Valid Until

2015

201.4

P29

1,735 1,735
P_ P29 2018

2077
Pl,764 Pl,735 P29

The reconciliation between the benefit from income tax at statutory income tax rate and provision
for income tax at effective tax rate is as follows:

20L7 2076 2015
Benefit from income tax computed at

statutory income tax rate
Expired NOLCO

Changes in unrecognized deferred tax assets
Expired MCIT

Add (deduct) tax effects of:
Share in net results of operation of an

associate
lnterest income already subjected to final

tax
Nondeductible expenses

(P5,713,8921

7,!03,603
(5,046,706)

!,735

4,L20,563

(315,305)
!2,O97

(P9,945,399)

4,592,195
584,686

5,627,492

(835,345)

t87,325

(P11,94O,4241

5,862,705
203,279
29,203

6,662,476

(853,062)

255,51.1
Provision for income tax at effective tax rate P162,094 P209,955 P219,688

18. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group's principal financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, receivables
(excluding advances to officers and employees), AFS financial asset, rental and security deposits, and
payables and other current liabilities (excluding statutory payables).

The main purpose of the Group's dealings in financial instruments is to fund its operations and
capital expenditures.
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The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Group's activities. All risks faced by the Group are incorporated in the annual operating
budget' Mitigating strategies and procedures are also devised to address the risks that inevitably
occur so as not to affect the Group's openations and detriment forecasted results. The Group,
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The main risks arising from the Group's finarrcial instruments are market risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The BOD reviews and institutes policies for managing each of the risks and these are
summarized below.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and other
market prices will adversely affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risll management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

The Group is subject to minimal transacti(cn and translation exposures resulting from currency
exchange fluctuations in relation to its financial instruments. The Group regularly monitors
outstanding financial assets and liabilities in foreign currencies and maintains them at a level
responsive to the current exchange rates so as to minimize the risks related to these foreign
currency denominated assets and liabilities.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is a risk due to uncertainty in counterparty's ability to meet its obligations. When
counterparty defaults, the maximum exposure is equal to the carrying amount of the related
financial asset. The Group's credit risk arises principally from cash and cash equivalents and
receivables (excluding advances to officers and employees), and rental and security deposits.

The Group trades mainly with recognized and creditworthy third parties as well as with related
parties. lt is the Group's policy that all custrcmers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. ln addition, the Group only deals with financial institutions duly
evaluated and approved by the BOD.

The table below shows the credit quality per class of financial assets as at December 31:

2017

Neither Past Due nor lnrpaired
Standard Past Due but

High Grade Grade Total not lmpaired
Loans and receivables:

Cash in banks and

cash equivalents*
Receivables* *

Rental and security
deposits+ * +

AFS financial asset

P40,738,075
3,759,801

1,441,579

1,999,9s0

P-. 240,738,075

- 3,759,801

-. t,44L,579
- 1,999,950

F-
415,709

P- P4O,738,O75

41,550 4,2t7,O60

- L,44t,579

- 1,999,950

P47,939,405 P-. 747,939,405 P4t5,709 P41,550 F48,396,664
*Excludes cosh on hond omounting to P26,726.
** Excluding odvonces to officers ond employees.
*** Presented under "Other current ossets" occount

lmpaired
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2016
Neither past Due nor lmpaired

-

Standard past Due but
Total not lmpaired

Loans and receivables:
Cash in banks and
cash equivalents+
Receivables* *

Rental and security
deposits

AFS financial asset

F145,810,905
5,262,687

7,447,579
1,999,950

P- P_P145,810,905

5,262,68L

7,447,579
1,999,950

P- P145,810,905
41,s50 5,304,237

7,441.,579
1,999,950

P154,515,115 F154,515,115 P154,556,665
* Excludes cosh on hond omounting to p26,726.
** Excluding odvonces to officers ond employees.

The credit quality of the financial assets i:; managed by the Group using internal credit quality
ratings. High grade consists of financial assets from counterparties with good financial condition
and with relatively low defaults. This also includes transactions with related parties. Financial
assets having risks of default but are still colh:ctible are considered as standard grade accounts.

Cash in banks and cash equivalents are considered high grade as these pertain to deposits and
placements in reputable banks.

The aging analysis of financial assets that are past due but not impaired as at December 31, 2017 is
presented below:

Days Past Due Amount
1 to 30 days
3L to 60 days

P257,099
158,611

P4I5,709

Liquiditv Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Group manages liquidity risk by' forecasting projected cash flows and maintaining a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility in operations. Treasury controls and
procedures are in place to ensure that sufficient cash is maintained to cover daily operational and
working capital requirements. Managemenrt closely monitors the Group's future and contingent
obligations and sets up required cash reserves as necessary in accordance with internal
requirements.

The Group's payable to related parties and advances from officers and employees amounting to
P1.4 million as at December 31, 20!7 and 2016 are due and demandable. The remaining balance of
payables and other current liabilities (exclurding statutory payables) amounting to P957,574 and
?658,027, as at December 3L, 2017 and 2r0L5, respectively, have a maturity of less than three
months.
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Fair Value Measurement
The table below presents the financial assets and liabilities of the Group whose carrying amounts
approximate fair values due to the short-term nature of the transactions:

2017 201,6

Financial Assets

Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables*
Rental and security deposits**

?40,764,8OL P1,45,837,631.
4,L75,510 5,262,68I
1,441,579

P46,381,890 P151,100,312

Financial tiabilities
Other financial liabilities -

Payables and other current liabilitiesx** P2,37O,O46 P2,045,023
* Excluding odvances to officers ond employees.
** Presented under "Other current ossets" occount os ot December 37, 2077.

"** Excluding stotutory poyobles.

Rentol and Security Deposits. The fair value of rental and security deposits as at December 31, 2016
amounted to P1.4 million. Fair values are estimated by discounting the expected cash flow using a

discount rate of 2.45%. This fair value measurement approach is categorized under Level 2 of fair
value hierarchy (significant observable inputs).

AFS Finonciol Asset. AFS financial assets pelrtain to an investment in unquoted securities that are
measured at cost since the fair value of the shares are not readily available.

Capital Management Policv
The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure its ability as a going concern
and that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support its business operations and maximize
shareholder value.

The Group considers its total equity amounting to P635.0 million and P652.3 million as at
December 31.,2017 and 2016, respectively, as capital employed.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio which is calculated as total debt
divided by total equlty. Total debt comprises of payable and other current liabilities. Total equity
comprises all components of equity.

The debt-to-equity ratios as at December 31 are as follows:

2017 201.6

Total debt
Total equity

?2,4LL,632 P2,1"1.3,181.

635,025,815 652,344,890
0.004:1 0.003:1

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in

economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust its

borrowings or raise capital. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes in 2017

and 2016.



-33-

19. Segment lnformation

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is
services (business segment) or in providing the services within
(geographic segment).

engaged either in providing types of
a particular economic environment

The table below present financial information on business segments as at and for the years ended
December 31,,2017 ,2016 and 20i.5:

2017
Mining,

Exploration and Stock Transfer

Revenue from external customers
Dividend income
lnterest income
Other income
lncome from other segments

P-
2,,000,000

1,,019,603

1,706

PL,472,890

31,418

110
180,000

F-
(2,000,000)

{180,000)

P1,472,89O

1,051,021

1,816

(13,73s,209)Share in net results of operations of an associate 13,,7

Depreciation and amortization
Other general and administrative expense

(10,,713,900)
(28,901)

(6,87s,23s)

L,6a4,4LA
(11,588)

(1,101,000)

(2,180,000)

180,000

|.LL,2O9,4821
(40,s89)

(7,796,23sl,

:-(1G2,0s4)-(162,0s4iProfit 17,618,035)

P637,437,447

2076
Mining,

Exploration and Stock Transfer

Segment Revenue
Revenue from external customers
lnterest income
Other income
lncome from other segments

F-
2,751,642

28,104

{1,8,7s8,273\

P7,479,480
26,847

7,437
180,000

P_

(180,OO;)

?7,479,480
2,184,483

30,747

Share in net results of operations of an associate

Depreciation and amortization
Other general and administrative expense
Provision for current income tax

(7s,971,927)
(43s,643)

(17,464,468)

1,687,758
(7,183)

(963,164)

( 180,000)

180,000

t8,758,21;)
(r4,464,1691

(442,826]|
(78,247,632]|

(209,9ss)
Profit ([oss)

ess)

P507,456 P- (P33,364,s82)

2015

Mining,
Exploration and Stock Transfer

Development Agency Eliminations Total
Segment Revenue
Revenue from external customers
lnterest income
Other income
lncome from other segments
Share in net results of operations of an associate

P_

2,833,830
26,261

l'22,2O8,252]'

P',t,463,297

9,709
7,382

198,200

F-

(198,20;)

P!,463,297
2,843,539

27,643

(22,208,2s21

Depreciation and amortization
Other general and administrative expense
Provision for current income tax

(19,348,161)
(854,704]|

(20,340,4s4)
(2e)

1,672,588
(1,7e6)

(928,88s)

(198,200)

198,200

(77,813,773\
(8s6,s00)

(27,O77,7391
(219,6s9) (2 19,688)

(P40,543,348) Ps22,248 P- (P40,021,100)Segment Operating Profit (Loss)

P1,,548,377,682 P3,287,037 (P898,626,3 10) P6s3,032,403
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILTNG WITH THE

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Atok-Big Wedge Co., lnc. and Subsidiaries
Alphaland Makati Place,
7232 Ayala Avenue corner Malugay Street
Makati City

We have audited the accompanying consolidaterJ financial statements of Atok-Big Wedge Co., lnc.
(the Parent Company) and Subsidiaries as at and for the year ended December 31,2017, on which we
have rendered our report dated March23,2018.

ln compliance with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, as amended, we are stating that the Parent
Company has 2,980 stockholders owning one hundned (100)or more shares each.
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fu)oa;,
EMMANUEL V. CLARINO

Pa rtner
CPA Certificate No. 27455

Tax ldentification No. 102-084-004-000
BOA Accreditation No. 4782; Valid until December 31, 2018

SEC Accreditation No. 1021-AR-2 Group A
Valid until March 27, 2O2O
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Atok-Big Wedge Co., lnc. and Subsidiaries

Alphaland Makati Place,

7232 Ayala Avenue corner Malugay Street
MakatiCity

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financlal statements
of Atok-Big Wedge Co., lnc. and Subsldiaries (the Group) as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 and for the years

ended December 31,2017,2016, and 2015, and have issued our reportthereon dated March 23,20L8. Our

audits were made forthe purpose of forming an opirrion on the consolidated financial statements taken as a

whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules are the responsibility of the Group's management.

These supplementary schedules include the following:

Financial Ratios

Adoption of Effective Accounting Standards and lnterpretations
Schedules required by Part ll of SRC Rule 68, as Amended

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

Map of Group Structure

These schedules are presented for purposes of complying with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 Part ll, as

amended, and are not part of the consolidated financial statements. This information have been subjected

to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financialstatements, including comparing
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated

financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves. ln our opinion, the information

is fairly stated in all material respect in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.
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D.k-
EMMANUEL V. CLARINO

Pa rtner
CPA Certificate No. 27455

Tax ldentification No. 102-084-004-000

BOA Accreditation No. 4782;Yalid until December 31, 2018

SEC Accreditation No. 1021-AR-2 Group A

Valid until March 27 ,2020
Bl R Accreditation No. 08-005 t44-OO5-201'7
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PTR No. 6607954
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ATOK.BIG WEDGE CO., INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

FINANCIAL RATIOS
DECEMBER 3L,2,0L7,2016 AND 201.5

Below is a schedule showing financial soundness indicators for the years 2017 ,2016 and 2015.

20t7 2076 20]-5

Current/Liquidity Ratio
Current assets

Current liabilities

22.65:l
P54,625,748

2,4t1,532

75.26:1.

P159,039,881-

2,1!3,181

1,2.97:1,

P1.84,845,834

1,4,256,356

Solvency Ratio
Net loss before depreciation and amortization
Total liabilities

(7.e5):1
(F19,157,811)

2,411,632

(15.58):1 (2.75):L
(P32,s21.,7s6) (P39,164,600)

2,113,181 74,256,356

Debt-to-equity Ratio
Total liabilities
Total equity

0.004:1
?2,411,532

535,025,815

0.003:1

P2,1,13,181

652,344,890

O.022:L

P14,256,356

638,776,047

Asset-to-equity Ratio
Total assets

1.00:1 1.00:1 t.O2:1.

?637,437,447 P654,458,071, P653,032,403

Totalequity 535,025,815 652,344,890 638,776,047

Profitability Ratio
Net loss

Totalequity

(0.03):1

(P19,208,400)

535,025,815

(0.05):1 (0.06):1
(P33,354,582) (F40,021,100)

652,344,890 638,776,047



ATOK.BIG WEDGE CO., INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ADOPTION OF

EFFECTIVE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
DECEMBER 3t,2OL7

Title Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements

Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative characteristics

PFRS Practice Statement Management Commentary

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS)

PFRS Title Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

PFRS 1 (Revised)
First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting

Standards

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exr:mption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures fo,r First-time

Adopters

Amendments to PFRS L: Severe Hlrperinflation and

Removal of Fixed Date for First-tinte Adopters

Amendments to PFRS L: Governm,ent Loans

PFRS 2 Share-based Payment

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and

Cancellations

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-

based Payment Transactions

PFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

Amendment to PFRS 3: Accounting for Contingent

Consideration in a Business Combination

Amendment to PFRS 3: Scope Excr:ptions for Joint

Ventures

PFRS 4 lnsurance Contracts

Amendments to PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee Contracts



PFRS Title Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

PFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale arrd Discontinued
Operations

Amendment to PFRS 5: Changes in Methods of Disposal

PFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of tr,4ineral Resources

PFRS 7 Financial lnstruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial
Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial
Assets - Effective Date and Transiti,cn

Amendments to PFRS 7: lmproving Disclosures about
Financial lnstruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendment to PFRS 7: Servicing Contracts

Amendment to PFRS 7: Aprplicability of the
Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed lnterim Financial

Statements

PFRS 8 Operating Segments

Amendments to PFRS 8: Aggregation of Operating
Segments

Amendments to PFRS 8: Reconciliation of the Total of
the Reportable Segments' Assets to the Entity's Assets

PFRS 9
Financial lnstruments; Classification and Measurement
of Financial Assets

Financial lnstruments: Classification and Measurement
of Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

PFRS 10 Consolidated Flnancial Statements

Amendments to PFRS 10: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10: lnvestme:nt Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10: lnvestmernt Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

PFRS 11 Joint Arrangements



PFRS Title Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

Amendments to PFRS 11: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 11: Accountirrg for Acquisitions
of lnterests in Joint Operations

PFRS 12 Disclosure of lnterests in Other Entities

Amendments to PFRS 12: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS L2: lnvestment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 12: lnvestment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Amendment to PFRS 12: Clarification of the Scope of
the Standard

PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

Amendment to PFRS L3: Short-ternr Receivables and
Payables

Amendment to PFRS 13: Portfolio E.xception

PFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS)

PAS Title Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

PAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendments to PAS 1 (Revised): Puttable Financial
lnstruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendments to PAS 1 (Revised): Presentation of ltems
of Other Comprehensive lncome

Amendment to PAS 1: Clarification of the
Requirements for Comparative Presentation

Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosure lnitiative

PAS 2 lnventories

PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

Amendments to PAS 7: Disclosure lnitiative

PAS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors

PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period

PAS 11 Construction Contracts

PAS 12 lncome Taxes



PAS Title Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

Amendments to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

Amendment to PAS 16: Classification of Servicing
Equipment

Amendment to PAS 1"6: Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Depreciation

Amendment to PAS 16: Property, Plant and
Equipment - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortization

Amendment to PAS 1-5: Agriculture: Bearer Plants

PAS 17 Leases

PAS 18 Revenue

PAS 19
(Revised)

Employee Benefits

Amendment to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans -

Employee Contributions

Amendment to PAS 19: Discount Rate - Regional

Market lssue

PAS 20
Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance

PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Amendment: Net lnvestment in a Foreign Operation

PAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

PAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

Amendment to PAS 24: Key Management Personnel

PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans

PAS 27
(Amended)

Separate Financial Statements

Amendments to PAS 27: lnvestment Entities

Amendments to PAS 27: Equity Method in Separate

Financial Statements

PAS 28
(Amended)

lnvestments in Assoclates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to PAS 28: lnvestment Entities: Applying

the Consolidation Exception



PAS Title Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

PAS 32 Financial lnstruments: Disclosure and Presentation

Financial lnstruments: Presentation

Amendments to PAS 32: Puttable Financial lnstruments
and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights lssues

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 32:Tax Effect of Distribution to
Holders of Equity lnstruments

PAS 33 Earnings per Share

PAS 34 lnterim Financial Reporting

Amendment to PAS 34: lnterim Financial Reporting and
Segment lnformation for Total Assets and Liabilities

Amendment to PAS 34: Disclosure of lnformation
'Elsewhere in the lnterim Financial Report'

PAS 36 lmpairment of Assets

Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Nonfinancial Assets

PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

PAS 38 lntangible Assets

Amendment to PAS 38: Revaluation Method
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Amortization

Amendment to PAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

PAS 39 Financial lnstruments: Recognition and Measurement

Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and lnitial
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting
of Forecast I ntragroup Transactions

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option

Amendments to PAS 39: Financial Guarantee Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassification of Financial

Assets

Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassification of Financial

Assets - Effective Date and Transition



PAS Title Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

Amendments PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives

Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged ltems

Amendments to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and

Continuation of Hedge Accounting

PAS 40 lnvestment Property

Amendment to PAS 40: lnvestment Property -

Clarifying the lnterrelationship between PFRS 3,

Business Combination and PAS 40 when Classifying

Property as lnvestment Property or Owner-occupied
Property

PAS 41 Agriculture

Amendment to PAS 41: Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Phili ppine lnterpretations

lnterpretations Title Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

IFRIC 1
Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and

Similar Liabilities

IFRIC 2
Members'Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar
lnstruments

IFRIC 4
Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a

Lease

tFRtc 5
Rights to lnterests arising from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

IFRIC 6
Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific

Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment

IFRIC 7
Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

Amendments to Philippine lnterpretation IFRIC 9:

Embedded Derivatives

rFRrc 10 lnterim Financial Reporting and lmpairment

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements

lFRtc 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

IFRIC 14
The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum
Funding Requirements and their lnteraction



lnterpretations Title Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

Amendments to Philippine lnterpretations IFRIC 14,

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

tFRtc 16 Hedges of a Net lnvestment in a Foreign Operation

IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers

IFRIC 19
Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity

lnstruments

tFRlc 20
Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface

Mine

IFRIC 21 Levies

PHILIPPINE INTERPRETATIONS . SIC

lnterpretations Title Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

SIC-7 lntroduction of the Euro

stc-10
Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to
Operating Activities

stc-15 Operating Leases - lncentives

stc-25
lncome Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity

or its Shareholders

stc-27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactlons lnvolving the
Legal Form of a Lease

src-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures.

stc-31
Revenue - Barter Transactions lnvolving Advertising

Services

stc-32 lntangible Assets - Web Site Costs



ATOK-BIG WEDGE CO., INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule

SEC SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES AS REQUIRED BY PAR. 6 PART !I OF
SRC RULE 58 AS AMENDED

DECEMBER 3T,2OL7

Table of Contents

Description Page

FinancialAssets

Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related
Parties, and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties)

Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated during
the Consolidation of Financial Statements

lntangible Assets - Other Assets

Long-Term Debt

lndebtedness to Related Parties

Guarantees of Securities of Other lssuers

Capital Stock

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

F

G

N/A

N/A

A - The Group's AFS finonciol osset does not exceed five percent (5%) ol the totol current ossets. There ore no financial
ossets meosured at fair volue through profit or loss and held-to-moturity investments.

B - All receivobles arises from the ordinory course of business

D - No intangible ossets

E - No long term debts

F - Total indebtedness to related parties does not exceed five percent (5%) of total assets

G - No guarontees of securities of other issuers
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ATOK.BIG WEDGE CO., INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

MAP OF GROUP STRUCTURE

DECEMBER 31,20T7

Compact Holdings



ATOK-BIG WEDGE CO., INC

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS

AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

DECEMBER 3L,2OL7

Deficit as shown in the financial statements, at beginning of year (P356,425,188)

223,495,475Adjustment for 2OtZ impairment loss on investment in a subsi

Deficit, as adjusted, at beginning of year

Net loss closed to deficit

(132,929,7!31
(3,884,533)

Deficit, as adjusted, at end of year



ATOK.BIG WEDGE CO., INC.
ALPHALAND MAKATI PLACE

z2_3?-4yALA AVENUE CORNER MALUGAY ST.,
BRGy. BEL-AIR, MAKATT crry r209 psrr_rpni,ihs

TELEFAX NO.: +63.2.310.7100

January 19, 201g

'STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT,S RESPONSIBILITY
Fo R S E PARATE FI NAN c IAr. s rnrErvrE r,rib;; 

-

The management of Atok-Big wedge- co., lnc. (the company) is responsible for thepreparation and fair presentatio-n of thJ tinaniiiar'stateme_nts including the schedules attachedtherein' for the years ended December sl, ;r.i,2016 and 2o1s: in accordance with theprescribed financial reporting framework indircated therein, ,nJ toi'such internal control asmanagement determines is necessary to enable tne preparation of tinaniiat statements that arefree from materiar misstatement, *n"tn", due t'fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, m.anagernent is responsible for assessing the company,sability to continue as a going .on."rn, oiscro"sing, aL appriiaob ;;G;;Iiateo to going concernand using the going conceri basis of'accounti.U ,rr"l. management either intends to riquidatethe company or to tease operations, or has no lu.iiiiil alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible in overseeing the company's financial reporting process.
The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedulesattached therein, and submits the same to the stockhorders.

Reyes Tacandong & 9o',1he independent auditor.appointed by the stockholders, has auditedthe financial statements of the company in acc;ordance witn prririppine-Sianoaros on Auditing,and in its report to the stockholders, nai "r,6;; iis opinion on'tn" rriin"rr'iiil;;iliil,,.,upon completion of such audit.ry
\T,ROBERTO V. ONGPTN

Chairman & CEO

rg*3**!-."(***J"

ERIC O. RECTO
Vice Chairman & president

cRtslNdb.lLaperurew
Senior Vice president for Finrn."

,r€ f f iu



SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to beforeme thi, _ : , ft .! ii ,[:ljii. at Makati City, affiantsexhibiting to me their respective iOJniification Oocum nd personally known to me, follows:

NAME COMPETENT EVIDENCE DATE OF
OF IDENTITY ISSUE

PLACE OF ISSUE

,;l.iioi._i,i

Roberto V. Ongpin
Eric O. Recto
Cristina B. Zapanta
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Passport No: p0300707A Ogt1tt2O16 DFA Manila
Passport No: EC3Ii44131 O2t27l2O1S DFA Manita
Passport No: p3451062A O6t22t2O1Z DFA NCR East

' it *=:.
-'d' ,t;



COVER SHEET
for

AUDITED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

SEC Registration Number

I I i I "t I r

ioiwioirjTi-iAi
COMPAilY NAME

PRINGIPAL OFFICE

tl, M a k a t I

il lt
Form Type

[l-{irH
Department requiring the report

T*r*T-*r--1
IClRlrvtlDl{ I I tl

Secondary License Type, lf Applicable

mzbl
COMPANY INFORMAT!ON _i

No. of Stockholders

Mobile Number

__ .1!gfqe]$e9!1nq(\{o1th / Day) Fiscal Year (Month / Day)

[---trrsll:ua--] [:m4,200

The Commission and/or non-receipt of Notice of Deficiencies. Further, non-receipt shall not excuse the corporation from liability for its
deficiencies designated contact person MUST be an Officer of the Corporation

Name of Contact Person Email Address

i:" "r:I:lr* ?i:::::l L::3rre."*srsi,'"" 1

I coNTAGTPERsoN,sADDREss
'.---,.*".*_ -.-.. 

1

I

"',,,,,,,,,,,,,,,.,,,.,....''.,'.-',''''.,'''.,,',,',','',,.'' l

l-"-**-**..* : . :.:- -***]
i _ ___*Arph"g_Ivr*,ti 

p!=l231Avi3 A,::5:'i1 M'"15-vll=hy:g:cjt __* _l
NOTE 7: ln cose of death, resignotion or cessotion of office ofthe officer desiqnoted os contoct person, such incident sh1tl be reported to the Commission
within thirty (j0) colendor doys from the occurrence thereof with information and complete contoct detoils of the new contoet person designoted.

2: All Boxes must be properly ond completely filled-up. Foilure to clo so sholl cause the delay, in updoting the corporotion's records with;,the
Commission ond/or non-receipt of Notice of Deliciencies. Further, non-receipt sholl not excuse the corporotioi fgoyq.rliobitity for its deliciencies.

_ tu.l,{ ,, Ii' xt' 
" l'!' t

Telephone Number/s

[-rli::l-:[,al
Mobile Number

t::l'r:*i{l

A T o K i'l G W E D G E c o I N c

A I p h a a n d M a k a t I P I a c LI 7 2 3 2 A v a I a A

v e n u e c o r n elr M a I u tg
F v s t r e e

Compan'y's Telephone Number/s



Rnvr:s Tnr:ANDoNc & Clo.
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BOA/PRC Accreditation No. 4782
December 29, 2015, valid until December 31, 2018

SEC Accreditation No. 0207-FR-2 (Group A)
September 27, 2016, valid until September 27, 2019

Citibank Tower
8741 Paseo de Roxas

Makata City 1226 Phrlippjnes

Phone : +632 982 9100
Fax : +632 982 9111

Website :ww.reyestacandong.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Atok-Big Wedge Co., lnc.
Alphaland Makati Place

7232 Ayala Avenue corner Malugay Street
MakatiCity

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of Atok-Big Wedge Co., lnc.,
(the Company) which comprise the separate staterrnents of financial position as at December 31, 2Ot7 and
2016, and the separate statements of comprehens;ive income, separate statements of changes in equity and
separate statements of cash flows for the three years ended December 31,2A17,2016 and 201.5, and notes
to separate financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

ln our opinion, the separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the separate financial
position of the Company as at December 31, 2017'and 2016, and its separate financial performance and its
separate cash flows for the three years ended December 37, 2077, 2016 and 2015 in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in tlrc Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Separote
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to the audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Emphosis of Motter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Notes L and 7 to separate financial statements
concerning the delay in one of the planned drilling programs of Forum Energy Ltd., an associate of a

subsidiary. The ultimate outcome of the uncertainl.y related to this delay cannot be presently determined.
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Responsibilities of Monogement and Those chorgetl with Governonce for the Seporote Financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the separate financial statements inaccordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable thepreparation of separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraudor error.

ln preparing the separate financial statements, rnanagement is responsible for assessing the Company,s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and usingthe going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the separote Financiol statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors, report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
these could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the separate financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. lf we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attentiorf h:p.rr" auditors',report to
the related disclosures in the separate financial statements or, if such disclo€f,r€s ar;e inEdequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the {ite of our
auditors' report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease tb tohtinue as a
going concern.
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r Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the separate financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the separate financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair preserrtation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internalcontrol
that we identify during our audits.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, anct communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Rryrs TRcaruooruG & Co.

fu).oa*
EMMANUEL V. CLARINO
Pa rtner
CPA Certificate No. 27455
Tax ldentification No. 102-084-004-000
BOA Accreditation No. 4782; Valid until December 31, 2018
SEC Accreditation No. 1021-AR-2 Group A

Valid until March 27,2020
Bl R Accreditation No. 08-005 144-005-2017

Valid until January 13, 2020
PTR No. 6607954

lssued January 3,2018, Makati City

March 23,20L8
Makati City, Metro Manila
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ATOK-BIG WEDGE CO.,

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF FIN

December 31

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Other current assets

4

5

5

P36,95L,297
6,369,909

P1,41.,922,104

6,1.99,267

7,527,5519,239,449'
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
lnvestments in subsidiaries
Available-for-sale financial asset
Property and equipment
Advances to mining right holders

7

B

10

1.

L6

52,560

645,594,229
1,ggg,g50

21,260
1,525,000

L55,537,g22

544,933,220
L,ggg,g50

gg,60g

1,525,000

1,,447,579
Rental and security deposi

Total Noncurrent Assets 649,L4O,439 549,999,357

P7Ol,7OO,gg2 P705,427,279

LIABILITY AND EQUITY

Current tiability
Payables and other current liabilities PL,852,467

Equity
Capital stock
Deficit

1,050,000,000

1360,309,72t,

1,060,000,000
(356,425,188)

Total Equity 699,690.279 703,574,9L2

?70L,7OO,gg2 P705,427,279

See occomponying Notes to Separote Finoncial Stotements.
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ATOK-BIG WEDGE CO., INC.

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

Note 20t7 2076 2015

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 14 (F6,904,136) lp77,goo,!77) (p21,195,158)

OTHER INCOME

Dividends

lnterest
Others

7 2,000,000
4 1,019,603 2,757,642 2,933,930

L,463
3,019,603 2,757,642 2,935,293

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

PROVISION FOR CURRENT INCOME TAX

(3,884,533) (15,1-42,469) (18,359,965)

29t7

NET LOSS

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(3,894,533) (15,742,469) (18,359,894)

TOTAL COMPREHENSTVE LOSS (p3,884,533) (p15,142,469) (p18,359,894)

BASIC AND DTLUTED LOSS pER SHARE 1s (p0.004x) (P0.01ss) (P0.01e2)

See accompanying Notes to Seporote Finonciol Statements.
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ATOK.BIG WEDGE CO., INC.

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EqUITY

Years Ended December 31
Note 2017 201.6 2015

CAPITAL STOCK - P1 value

DEFICIT

Balance at beginning of year (355,425,188)
Net loss (3,884,533)

,000,000 P1",060,000,000 PL,050,000,000

1341,282,7191 (322,922,8251
(15,142,469) (19,359,894)

Balance at end gllyear (350,309,721) (356,425,188) (341,282,719)

7699,690,279 F703,574,8L2 P71"8,7L7,281.

See occomponying Notes to Seporote Financiol Stotements.
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ATOK-BIG WEDGE CO., INC.

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31
Note 20t7 2076 201.5

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTTVITIES
Loss before income tax
Adjustments for:

Dividend income
lnterest income
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on sale of property and equipment

(F3,894,533)

(2,000,000)
(1,019,503)

28,901
(2,757,64;)

435,643
7,L02

(2,g33,g3;)
854,704

(P15,742,469',) (P19,359,965)

7

4
10

10
Operating loss before working capital changes
Decrease (increase) in:

Receivables

Other current assets

lncrease (decrease) in payables and other current
liabilities t58,246 (12,034,905)

|16,875,2351

1,951,599
(270,318)

(17,457,366)

(773,035)

(613,413)

(20,338,991)

(923,2631
(861,995)

5,139,307
Net cash used for operations
lnterest received

I nvestments in subsidiaries
Property and equipment
Advances to mining right holders

(5,135,719) (30,878,6191, (16,984,9421

986,473 2,797,636 2,936,098
lncome tax paid - (1,578)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to:
7 . (100,751,008)

10 Q,tsz) (s,:s5)
(427,891.1* (77,5141

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 10 39,447 608,929 -
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (100,721,561) 529,649 (425,257)

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EqUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING

OF YEAR

(104,870,807) (27,551,3341 (1.4,575,6791

74t,822 104 769,373,438 !83,949,117

CASH AND CASH EqUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR P36,95L,297 Pt4t,B2Z,L04 P169,373,438

COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on hand and in banks

Short-term placements
PL,576,209
35,375,094

"PL,079,764 ..P526,774

7:410,742,340 168,8!6;;,6'64

See occomponying Notes to Separate Finonciql Stotements,



ATOK.BIG WEDGE CO., INC.

NOTES TO SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31,2017 AND

FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER ?!,20!7,2016 AND 2015

1, Corporate Matters

Corporate lnformation

Atok-Big Wedge Co., lnc. (the Company) was incorporated and registered with the philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on September 3, L93L. The company,s corporate life
was extended to another 50 years from September 25, 198L. The Company's primary purpose is to
engage in the business of exploration and development of mining, oil, gas and other natural
resources.

The Company listed its shares in the Philippine Stock Exchange (pSE) on January g, 194g, As at
December 37,20L7 and 2016, 953,963,474 shares of the Company are listed in the pSE.

As at December 31, 2Ot7 and 2016, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Tidemark Holdings Limited (Tidemark), has 20.00% and27.74% interest in Forum Energy Ltd. (FEL),
respectively. FEL's shares were listed and traded at the London Stock Exchange's Alternative
lnvestment Market untilJune 26,2015. On March 22,20L7, the Board of Directors (BOD) approved
the subscription to additional 6,666,667 new shares of FEL (through Tidemark) at USD0.30 a share or
a total of USD2.0 million. Together with the subscription simultaneously made by other major
shareholder of FEL, the new subscription resulted to the decrease of the Company's ownership in
FEL from 27.14% in 2015 to 20.00% in 20t7. The additional subscription was ratified by the
stockholders on May 70,2O!7.

FEL has interests in various service contracts as follows:

Service Contract I nterest
Service contract 72 (Reed Bank)

Service contract 40 (North Cebu)

Service contract 14A (Nido)

Service contract 14B (Matinloc)
Service contract 14B-1 (North Matinloc)
Service contract 14C-1 (Galoc)

Other service contracts

70%

L00%

8.47%
1.2.41%

19.46%
2.28%

5%-9%

As at December 31, 2017 and 201-6, the Company is 69.75% owned by Boerstar Corporation, a

holding company incorporated in the Philippines. The ultimate parent of the Group is Compact
Holdings, lnc., a Philippine entity engaged in holding and investing activities.

The Company's registered address is Alphaland Makati Place,72i.2 hyala Avenue corner Malugay
Street, Makati City.
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Service Cont'roct 72 (Reed Bonk). FEL's principal asset is a 700/, interest in Service contract (sc) 72
which covers an area of 8,800 square kilometers in the West Philippine Sea. SC 72 is currently under
Sub-Phase 2 of its exploration. However, the Philippine government was unable to grant FEL the
permission to deploy vessels for drill site survey work due to the territorial deliberations in the West
Philippine Sea.

On February 26, 2015. the Department of Energy (DoE) grant ed Force Mojeure to SC 72 work
commitments effective December 15,2074. ln view of this, all exploration activities in the block are
suspended until the DOE notifies FEL to commence drilling. On July LZ, 2016, the permanent Court
of Arbitration in The Hague released a ruling on the maritime case filed by the Republic of the
Philippines against the People's Republic of China. ln particular, the Tribunal ruled that Reed Bank,
where Sc 72 lies, is within the Philippines' Exclusive Economic Zone as defined under the United
Nations Convention on the Law of the Seas. ln Novembe r 2017, the Association of Southeast Asian
Nations and China has arrived at a negotiation to commence talks on drafting an effective Code of
Conduct in the disputed seas.

Upon lifting of the Force Majeure, FEL will have 20 months to complete the Sub-phase 2 work
commitment comprising the drilling of two wells. The terms of the succeeding sub-phase will remain
the same but will be adjusted accordingly. As at December 3L,2077, Force Majeure is still enforced
and FEL is still waiting until this is lifted in order to commence the remaining Sub-phase 2 work
commitment. The ultimate outcome of the uncertainty on the conduct of drilling operations cannot
be presently determ ined.

Service Controct 40 (North Cebu). The Libertad Field had been shut-in since August 2015. lt was
deemed that FEL would not be able to resume operations due to fluctuating pressure, thus FEL
decided to decommission the field and to plug and abandon the 195-L production well permanently.

Service Contract 74A (Nido), L48 (Motinloc) and 748-L (North Matinloc). The three fields produced
oil on a cyclical basis in 2017 and 201.6. Total production in 2077 was 125,755 barrels, or an average
of 345 barrels of oil per day (bopd).

Service Controct 14C-1 (Goloc/. The Galoc Field produced a total of 1.5 million barrels of oil in 2017
or 4,001 bopd, as compared to 1.9 million barrels or 5,134 bopd in 2016. Cumulative production
starting October 2008 up to reporting date is 20.18 million barrels of oil.

Other Service Controcts. FEL has participating interests in other service contracts including SC6A
(Octon) and SC14C-2 (West Linapacan), among others, which are currently under exploration phase.

Potential Acquisition of Certain Mining Rishts

The Company entered into various Memoranda of Understanding for the potential acquisition of
certain mining rights. Total advances to the mining right holders amounted to P1.5 million as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016. ln view of the prevailing regulatory environment, the Company is

continuously evaluating the feasibility of this potential acquisition.
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Significant Corporate Acts

stock option Plon (soP). ln 20L5, the BOD approved the sop which provides among others theallocation of no more than 5% of the authorized capital for the sop; each grant is for three years
and will vest L/3 for each of the succeeding years; and the strike price shall not be less than g0% ofthe market value at the time of grant. This was ratified by the stockholders on May 3J.,20L6.

As at December 3L, 2017, the Company is still completing the requirements for the sEC,s approval of
the exemption from its registration requirements and the PSE's approval of the listing of the shares
under the soP. To date, no grants have been made under the sop.

The separate financial statements as at December 3L, 20!7 and 20i.6 and for
December 3L,2017,2016 and 2015 were approved and authorized for issue
Committee of the BOD on March 23, ZO1.g.

the years ended
by the Executive

2. Summary of Significant Accounting policies

Basis of Preparation
The separate financial statements have been prepared in compliance with philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS) issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council and
adopted by the SEC. This financial reporting framework includes PFRS, philippine Accounting
Standards (PAS), Philippine lnterpretations from lnternational Financial Reporting lnterpretations
Committee (lFRlC), and SEC provisions.

The Company also prepares and issues consolidated financial statements for the same period in
accordance with PFRS as the separate financial statements presented. ln the consolidated financial
statements, subsidiary undertakings have been fully consolidated. Users of these separate financial
statements should read them together with the consolidated financial statements in order to obtain
full information on the consolidated statements of financial position, consolidated financial
performance and consolidated cash flows of the Company and its subsidiaries. The consolidated
financial statements are available for public use and may be obtained at the Company's registered
office address and at the SEC and PSE.

Measurement Bases

The separate financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (Peso), the Company's functional
and presentation currency, All values are rounded to the nearest Peso, except otherwise indicated.

The separate financialstatements of the Company have been prepared on the historicalcost basis of
accounting. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for an asset and fair value of consideration received in exchange for incurring liability, Fair

value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the transaction date.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the separate financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the separate financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair value is included in Note 1g.

Adoption of New and Amended pFRS

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Company adopted effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January l,2Ol-7:

Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows - Disclosure lnitiative * The amendments
require entities to provide information that enable the users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

Amendments to PAS 12, lncome Taxes - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for L)nrealized
losses - The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred tax assets related to unrealized
losses on debt instruments measured at fair value, to address diversity in practice.

Amendments to PFRS 12, Disclosures of lnterests in Other Entities - Clorification of the Scope of
the Standard - The amendments are part of the Annual lmprovements to PFRS 2014-201.6 Cycle
and clarify that the disclosure requirements in PFRS 12 apply to interests in entities within the
scope of PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale ond Discontinued Operotions except for
summarized financial information for those interests (i.e. paragraphs 8L0-816 of PFRS 12).

The adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS did not have any material effect on the
separate financial statements. Additional disclosures have been included in the notes to separate
financial statements, as applicable.
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New and Amended pFRS in tssue But Not yet Effective
Relevant new and amended PFRS which are not yet effective for the year ended December 3.J.,2017
and have not been applied in preparing the separate financial statements are summarized below.

Effective for annuar periods beginning on or after January !, zo!g:

o PFRS 9, Financial lnstrumenfs - This standard will replace pAS39, Financiol lnstruments:
Recognition ond Measurement (and all the previous versions of pFRs g). lt contains
requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities,
impairment, hedge accounting a nd derecognition,

PFRS 9 requires all recognized financial assets to be subsequently measured at amortized cost or
fair value (through profit or loss or through other comprehensive income), depending on the
classification by reference to the business model within which these are held and its contractual
cash flow characteristics.

For financial liabilities, the most significant effect of PFRS 9 relates to cases where the fair value
option is taken: the amount of change in fair value of a financial liability designated as at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL) that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is recognized in other comprehensive income (rather than in profit or loss), unless this creates
an accounting mismatch.

For the impairment of financial assets, PFRS 9 introduces an "expected credit loss,, model based
on the concept of providing for expected losses at inception of a contracq it will no longer be
necessary for there to be objective evidence of impairment before a credit loss is recognized.

For hedge accounting, PFRS 9 introduces a substantial overhaul allowing financial statements to
better reflect how risk management activities are undertaken when hedging financial and
nonfinancial risk exposures,

The derecognition provisions are carried over almost unchanged from pAS 39,

PFRS 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers - The new standard replaces pAS 11,
Construction Controcts, PAS 18, Revenue and related interpretations. lt establishes a single
comprehensive framework for revenue recognition to apply consistently across transactions,
industries and capital markets, with a core principle (based on a five-step modelto be applied to
all contracts with customers), enhanced disclosures, and new or improved guidance
(e.g. the point at which revenue is recognized, accounting for variable considerations, costs of
fulfilling and obtaining a contract, etc.),

Amendment to PFRS L5, Revenue from Controct with Customers - Clarification to PFRS 15 - The
amendments provide clarifications on the following topics: (a) identifying performance
obligations; (b) principal versus agent considerations; and (c) licensing. The amendments also
provide some transition relief for modified contracts and completed contracts,
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Amendments to PFRS 2, Shore-based Payment - Classificotion and Measurement of Shore-bosed
Poyment Transactions - The amendments clarify the effects of vesting and non-vesting
conditions on the measurement of cash-settled share-based payment transactions, the
accounting for share-based payment transactions with a net settlement feature for withholding
tax obligations, and the effect of a modification to the terms and condition of a share-based
payment that changes the classification of the transaction from cash-settled to equity settled.

Philippine lnterpretation IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Tronsoctions and Advonce Consideration -
The interpretation provides guidance clarifying that the exchange rate to use in transactions that
involve advance consideration paid or received in a foreign currency is the one at the date of
initial recognition of the nonmonetary prepayment asset or deferred income liability.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,2019:

PFRS16, Leases -Themostsignificantchangeintroducedbythenewstandardisthatalmostall
leases will be brought onto lessees' statements of financial position under a single model
(except leases of less than 12 months and leases of low-value assets), eliminating the distinction
between operating and finance leases. Lessor accounting, however, remains largely unchanged
and the distinction between operating and finance lease is retained,

Philippine lnterpretation IFRIC 23, Uncertointy Over lncome Tox Treotments - The interpretation
provides guidance on how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting for income taxes
under PAS 12, lncome Toxes, in particular (i) whether uncertain tax treatments should be
considered separately, (ii) assumptions for taxation authorities' examinations, (iii) determination
of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, and
(iv) effect of changes in facts and circumstances.

Deferred effectivity -

Amendment to PFRS 70, Consolidated Finoncial Stotements and PAS 28, lnvestments in
Associotes ond Joint Ventures - Sqle or Contribution of Assefs Between an lnvestor ond its
Associote or Joint Venture - The amendments address a current conflict between the two
standards and clarify that a gain or loss should be recognized fully when the transaction involves
a business, and partially if it involves assets that do not constitute a business. The effective date
of the amendments, initially set for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 20L6, was
deferred indefinitely in December 2015 but earlier application is still permitted.

Under prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS is not
expected to have any material effect on the separate financial statements of the Company, except
for PFRS 16. Additional disclosures will be included in the separate financial statements, as

applicable.

The Company anticipates that the application of PFRS 16 might have a significant effect on amounts
reported in respect of the Company's leases. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable

estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been completed.
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Financial Assets and Liabilities

Date of Recognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset 0r a financial liability in the separate
statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial
instrument. All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of the assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

lnitial Recognition of Finoncial lnstruments. Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair
value of the consideration given (in the case of an asset) or received (in the case of a liability).
Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of all financial assets and liabilities, except
for financial instruments measured at FVPL. Fair value is determined by reference to the transaction
price or other market prices. lf such market prices are not readily determinable, the fair value of the
consideration is estimated as the sum of all future cash payments or receipts, discounted using the
prevailing market rate of interest for similar instruments with similar maturities.

"Day 7" Difference, Where the transaction in a non-active market is different from the fair value
of other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation
technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the
difference between the transaction price and fair value (a "Day 1" difference) in the separate
statement of comprehensive income. ln cases where there is no observable data on inception,
the Company deemed the transaction price as the best estimate of fair value and recognizes

"Day 7" difference in profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is

derecognized. For each transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of
recognizing the "Day L" difference.

Classificotion of Financiol lnstrumenfs. The Company classifies its financial assets into the following
categories: financial assets at FVPL, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, available-for-sale (AFS)

financial assets and loans and receivables. The Company classifies its financial liabilities into
financial liabilities at FVPL and other financial liabilities.

The Company determines the classification of its financial assets on initial recognition and, where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each financial year-end.

The Company does not have financial instruments classified as financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVPL and HTM investments.

AFS Financial Assets. AFS financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as such or are not classified as another category of financial assets. After initial
measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value with unrealized gains or
losses recognized in other comprehensive income. These fair value changes are recognized in

other comprehensive income until the investment is derecognized or until the investment is

determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in

other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss. lnvestment in equity instruments

that do not have a quoted market price and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are

carried at cost.

This category includes the Company's investment in unquoted shares of stock.
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Loans ond Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, loans
and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method less any
allowance for impairment' The calculation takes into account any premium or discount on
acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in separate statement of comprehensive income
when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization
process.

Loans and receivables are included in current assets if maturity is within L2 months from
reporting date. otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

The Company's cash and cash equivalents, receivables (excluding advances to officers and
employees), and rental and security deposits are classified under this category.

Other Financial Liabilities. Other financial liabilities at amortized cost pertain to issued financial
instruments or their components that are not classified or designated at FVpL and contain
obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder as to settle the obligation other
than by the exchange of fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of own
equity.

The amortized cost of a financial liability is the amount at which the financial liability is measured at
initial recognition minus the principal repayments plus or minus the cumulative accretion using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount.
lnterest expense, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, is
charged to the separate statement of comprehensive income on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method. lnterest expense is added to the carrying amount of the instrument to
the extent that these are not settled in the period in which these arise.

The Company's payables and other current liabilities (excluding statutory payables) are classified
under this category.

lmpairment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
or group of financial assets is impaired. Objective evidence includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Company about loss events such as but not limited to significant financial
difficulty of the counterparty, a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, probability that borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization.

Loans ond Receivables. lf there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets
carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. Time value is generally not considered

when the effect of discounting is not material. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in the
separate statement of comprehensive income.

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets

that are not individually significant.
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lf it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in the group of financial assets
with similar credit risk and characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

lf, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss
is reduced by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is

recognized in the separate statement of comprehensive income, to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

AFS Financial Assets. ln the case of equity investments, evidence of impairment would include a
significant or prolonged decline in fair value of investment below its cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized, is

removed from other comprehensive and recognized in profit or loss. lmpairment losses on equity
investments are not reversed through profit or loss. Increases in fair value after impairment are

recognized directly in other comprehensive income.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

FinancialAssefs. Afinancialasset (or, when applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group

of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;

the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an

obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass through'
arrangement; or

the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially allthe risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially allthe risks and rewards of the asset nortransferred control
of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement in the
asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is

measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of

consideration that the Company could be required to pay.

Financiol Liobilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially

different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange

or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new

liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the separate

statement of comprehensive income.

a.

b.

c.
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Offsetting of Financial Assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount rep0rted in the separate
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting
agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the separate statement of
financial position.

Other Current Assets
Other current assets mainly consist of excess of input value added tax (VAT) over output VAT, rental
and security deposits, and prepayments.

VAT. Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT. The net amount of
VAT recoverable from the taxation authorities is recognized under "Other current assets" account in
the separate statement of financial position.

Prepoyments. Prepayments represent expenses not yet incurred but already paid in cash.
Prepayments are initially recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash paid.
Subsequently, these are charged to expense as these are consumed in operations or expire with the
passage of time. Prepayments that are expected to be incurred no more than 12 months after the
reporting date are classified as current assets. Otherwise these are classified as noncurrent assets.

lnvestments in Subsidiaries
The Company's investments in subsidiaries are carried in the separate statement of financial
position at cost, less any impairment in value. A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company has
control.

An investor controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee.

Propertv and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any
accumulated impairment in value,

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates, and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as

repairs, maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally recognized in profit or loss in the year the
costs are incurred. ln situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have

resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an

item of property and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the
expenditures are capitalized as additional costs of property and equipment. The cost of replacing a

component of an item of property and equipment is recognized if it is probable that the future
economic benefits embodied within the component will flow to the Company, and its cost can be

measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced component is derecognized.
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When significant parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, these are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property and equipment.

Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives of the property and equipment:

Number of Years

Exploration equipment 3

Leasehold improvements 5 or lease term, whichever is shorter
Furniture and fixtures 4

Office equipment 3

Transportation equipment 5

The estimated useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed periodically to
ensure that these are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of
property and equipment.

Fully depreciated items are retained as property and equipment until these are no longer in use.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated
depreciation, amortization and any impairment in value are removed from the accounts. Any
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Advances to Minine Rieht Holders
Advances to mining right holders are amounts paid in advance for the potential acquisition of
certain mining rights. These are carried at the amount of cash paid and are reclassified to the
corresponding asset account when the mining rights for which the advances were made are
ultimately acquired.

Deferred Mining Exploration Cost
Deferred mining exploration cost is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Exploration and evaluation activity involves the search for mineral resources, the determination of
technical feasibility and the assessment of commercial viability of the mineral resource.

Exploration and evaluation activity includes:

o Gathering exploration data through geological studies;
. Exploratory drilling and sampling; and
o Evaluating the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting the mineral resource.

Deferred mining exploration cost is no longer classified as such when the technical feasibility and

commercial viability of extracting the mineral reserve are demonstrable. Deferred mining

exploration cost is assessed for impairment, and any impairment loss is recognized, before

reclassification to mineral reserves.
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lmpairment of Nonfinancial Assets
The nonfinancial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. lf any such indication exists
and where the carrying amount exceeds its estimated recoverable amounts, the asset or
cash-generating unit is written down to its recoverable amount, The estimated recoverable amount
of the asset is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal or value in use. ln assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
lmpairment losses are recognized in the separate statement of comprehensive income.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. lf such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognized. lf that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is

increased to its recoverable amount. However, that increased amount cannot exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization for property and

equipment, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is

recognized in profit or loss. After such reversal, the depreciation and amortization charge is

adjusted in future years to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount, on a systematic basis over
its remaining useful life.

Derecognition of Nonfinancial Assets

A nonfinancial asset is derecognized upon disposal or when it is permanently withdrawn from use

and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on

derecognition of a nonfinancial asset is included in profit or loss in the period in which it is

derecognized.

Equitv

Capital Stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Unpaid subscriptions are

recognized as a reduction of subscribed capital shares.

Deficit. Deficit represents the cumulative balance of net loss.

Revenue RecoFnition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount of the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received, excluding discounts and rebates, The Company has concluded that it is the
principal in all of its revenue arrangements. The following specific recognition criteria must also be

met before revenue is recognized.

Dividend lncome. Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive the payment

is established.

lnterest lncome. lnterest income is recognized as the interest accrues taking into account the

effective yield on the assets.

Other lncome. lncome from other sources is recognized when earned during the period.
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Expense Recognition
Expenses are recognized in profit or loss when a decrease in future economic benefit related to a

decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably,

General and Administrotive Expenses. General and administrative expenses constitute costs of
administering the business. These are recognized in profit or loss upon receipt of goods, utilization
of services or when the expenses are incurred.

Basic and Diluted Loss per Share
The Company presents basic and diluted loss per share. Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the year, excluding common shares purchased by the Company
and held as treasury shares. Diluted loss per share is calculated in the same manner, adjusted for
the effects of all the dilutive potential common shares.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at inception date of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. A
reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

a. there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangemen|

b. a renewal option is exercised orextension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension
was initially included in the lease term;

c. there is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset;

or

d. there is a substantial change to the asset.

Where reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (c) or (d) and at the date of
renewal or extension period for scenario (b).

Company os a Lessee. Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an

expense in the separate statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease

term.

Short-term Emplovee Benefits
The Company provides short-term benefits to its employees in the form of basic pay, 13th month

pay, bonuses, employer's share on government contribution, and other short-term benefits.

The Company recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an expense for services

rendered by employees during the year. Short-term employee benefit liabilities are measured on an

undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.
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lncome Taxes

Current lox, Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax
rate enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred lax. Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reporting date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward benefits of the excess of
minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and net
operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and excess MCIT and NOLCO can be
utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rate (and tax laws) in effect
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
sa me taxation authority.

Foreign Currencv Transactions
The Company determines its own functional currency and items included in the separate financial
statements are measured using that functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are

initially recorded in the functional currency rate at the transaction date.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rate at the reporting date. All differences are taken to the separate statement of
comprehensive income. Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.
Nonmonetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange

rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Related Parties
Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly, or indirectly

through one or more intermediaries, or exercise significant influence over the other party in making

financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist between andlor among entities

which are under common control with the reporting entity, or between, andf or among the

reporting entity and its key management personnel, directors or its stockholders. ln considering

each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship,

and not merely to the legal form. A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or

obligations between the Company and its related parties, regardless of whether a price is charged.
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Provisions and Continsencies
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a

result of past events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time
is recognized as interest expense.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting year and adjusted to reflect the current best

estimate.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the separate financial statements. These are disclosed in

the notes to separate financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources

embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not recognized in the separate

financial statements but disclosed in the notes to separate financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

Events After the Reporting Date
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company's financial position at

the end of reporting year (adjusting events) are reflected in the separate financial statements, Post

year-end events that are non-adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to separate financial
statements when material.

3. Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Company's separate financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the separate financial

statements and accompanying notes. The judgments and estimates used in the separate financial
statements are based upon management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as at the
reporting date.

While the Company believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant
differences in the actual experience or significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect

the estimated amounts. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Changes in

accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the change

affects only that period or in the period of the change and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

The following are the significant judgments, accounting estimates and assumptions made by the

Company:

Classification of Leoses - Company as a Lessee. The Company has operating lease agreement for its
office spaces. The Company has determined that the risks and rewards of ownership related to the

leased property are retained by the lessor. Accordingly, the agreement is accounted for as an

operating lease.
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Rental expense amounted to P175,282, Pt.g million and F2.1 million in 2017,2016 and 2015,

respectively (see Note 16).

Assessment for lmpoirment of Receivables. The Company maintains allowance for impairment
losses at a level considered adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables. The level of
this allowance is evaluated by management on the basis of factors that affect the collectibility of the
accounts. These factors include, but are not limited to, significant financial difficulties or
bankruptcy, the length of the Company's relationship with the debtor, the debtor's payment
behavior, and known market factors. The Company identifies and provides for specific accounts

that are doubtful of collection and reviews the age and status of the remaining receivables and

establishes a provision considering, among others, historical collection and write-off experience.

No provision for impairment losses on receivables was recognized in 20!7, 20L6, and 2015.

Receivables, net of allowance for impairment losses, amounted to F6.4 million and P6,2 million as at

December 3L, 2OL7 and 2016, respectively. Allowance for impairment losses amounted to
P41,550 as at December 31, 2OL7 and 2016 (see Note 5).

Assessment for lmpoirment of AFS Finoncial Asset. The Company assesses AFS financial asset as

impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or
whether other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is 'significant'

or 'prolonged' requires judgment. ln addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is

evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry and sector performance,

and financing cash flows.

No provision for impairment losses on AFS financial asset was recognized in2O\7,2016 and 2015.

The carrying amount of the Company's AFS financial asset amounted to P2.0 million as at
December 3t,2077 and 2016 (see Note 8).

Copitalization of Explorotion ond Evoluation Expenditures. The capitalization of exploration and

evaluation expenditures requires judgment in determining whether there are future economic
benefits from future exploitation or sale of reserves. The capitalization requires management to
make certain estimates and assumptions about future events or circumstances, in particular,
whether an economically viable extraction operation can be established, Estimates and
assumptions made may change if new information becomes available. lf, after expenditure is

capitalized, information becomes available suggesting that the recovery of expenditure is unlikely,
the amount capitalized is written off in profit or loss in the period when the new information
becomes available.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, deferred mining exploration costs amounting to P2.6 million

were fully impaired upon management's assessment that the related projects were unsuccessful
(see Note 9).

Estimation of Useful Lives of Property ond Equipmenf. The Company estimates the useful lives of
property and equipment based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for
use. The estimates are based on a collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical

evaluation and experience with similar assets. The estimated useful lives of property and

equipment are reviewed at each reporting date and are updated if expectations differ from previous

estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other

limits on the use of the assets. Future results of operations could be materially affected by changes

in estimates brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above. The amount and timing of

recording of depreciation and amortization expense for any period would be affected by changes in

these factors and circumstances.
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There were no changes in the estimated useful lives of the Company's property and equipment for
the years ended December 3t,2017,2016 and 2015.

Depreciation and amortization amounted to F28,901, P435,643 and F854,704 for the years ended
December 31, 20L7, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Property and equipment, net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization amounted to F21,260 and F89,608 as at December 31, 2017 and
2015, respectively (see Note 10).

Assessment for Recoverobility of lnput VAT. The carrying amount of input VAT is adjusted to an
extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable revenue subject to output VAT will be available to
allow all or part of the input VAT to be utilized. Any allowance for unrecoverable portion of input
VAT is maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for potentially unrecoverable portion.
The level of allowance is based on past application experience and other factors that may affect
realizability.

No impairment loss was recognized on input VAT in2017,2016 and 2015. lnput VAT amounted to
F7.7 million and P7.5 million as at December 31, 2077 and 20L5, respectively (see Note 6).

Assessment for lmpoirment of lnvestments in Subsidiaries ond Property and Equipment. The

Company assesses impairment on investments in subsidiaries and property and equipment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of these assets may

not be recoverable. Factors that the Company considers in deciding whether to perform

impairment review of investment in subsidiaries and property and equipment include the following,
among others:

o A significant financial difficulty of the subsidiaries.

. A significant change in the technological, legal or economic environment in which the business

operates.

o A significant decline in market value of asset is more than would be expected from the passage

of time or normal use.

o A significant adverse change in how the asset is being used or in its physical condition.

o A current-period loss combined with a history of losses or a projection of continuing losses

associated with the asset.

o A realization that the asset will be disposed of significantly before the end of its estimated useful

life.

|n2O17,2016 and 2015, management assessed that there are no impairment indicators relating to

the Company's property and equipment and investments in subsidiaries'

Accumulated impairment losses on investments in subsidiaries amounted to P223.5 million as at

December 31,2077 and 20L6 (see Note 7).

The aggregate carrying amount of investments in subsidiaries and property and equipment

amounted to P645.6 million and P544.9 million as at December 31, 2OL7 and 2016, respectively

(see Notes 7 and 10),



-18-

Recognition of Deferred Tox Assets. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets at each reporting
date are reviewed and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. The Company's
assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences is based
on the forecasted taxable income of the subsequent reporting periods. This forecast is based on the
Company's past results and future expectations on revenue and expenses.

The Company did not recognized deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences totaling
P47.1 million and P63.9 million as at December 31, 20L7 and 20L6, respectively (see Note 17).
Management has assessed that it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available in the
near future against which these deferred tax assets on these temporary differences can be utilized.

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

20L7 2016
Cash on hand and in banks
Short-term placements

?1,576,203 PL,079,764
35,375,094 1,4O,742,340

P35,95\,297 Pt4t,822,104

Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates and are immediately available for
use in the operations.

Short-term placements are made for varying periods of up to three months and earn interest
ranging from 2,t2%to 225% at the respective short-term placement rates,

lnterest income earned on cash in banks and short-term placements amounted to P1..0 million in
2017 and F2.8 million in 2016 and 2015,

5. Receivables

This account consists of:

Note 20Lt 2016

Receivable from:
Related parties
Third party

Dividends receivable
Advances to officers and employees
Accrued interest
Others

12

1.2

P3,826,874
190,450

2,000,000
l25,,.ol
48,501
20,333

P5,809,494

385,298

t5,471
L8,554

Less allowance for impairment losses

6,41L,359
41,550

6,229,8!7
41,550

P6,359,809 P6,188,267

Advances to officers and employees are unsecured, noninterest-bearing, and are subject to
liquidation.
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6. Other Current Assets

This account consists of:

Note 20t7 201"6

lnput VAT

Rental and security deposits
Prepayments
Others

16

P7,7O3,380
t,44t,579

72,t93

P7,485,493

18,555
23,50222.296

P9,239,448 P7,527,557

Prepayments consist of medical and dental insurance provided to employees and license fees which

will expire within one year.

7. lnvestments in subsidiaries

Movements in this account are as follows:

20t7
AB Stock Transfer

Corporation
Tidemark (ABSTC) Total

Cost

Balances at beginning of year

Additional investment
P767,328,700

100,761,008

F999,995 P768,328,695

100,761,008

Balances at end of year

Less accumulated impairment
868,089,708
223,495,475

999,995 859,089,703
223,495,475

Carrying Amount P644,594,233 P999,995 P645,594,228

20L6
Tidemark ABSTC Total

Cost

Less accumulated impairment
P767,328,700

223,495,47s
P999,995 P768,328,695

223,495,47s

Carrying Amount P543,833,225 P999,995 P544,833,220

ABSTC was incorporated on June 24, 2070 and registered with the Philippine SEC to establish,

operate and act as a transfer agent. As at December 31., 2OL7 and 2016, the Company has 99.99%

ownership in ABSTC. ABSTC's principal place of operations is Alphaland Makati Place, 7232 Ayala

Avenue corner Malugay Street, Makati City.

The Company, through Tidemark, a wholly-owned subsidiary based in Hong Kong, has 27.1.4%

interest in FEL as at December 31, 2016. On March 22,20t7, the BOD approved the subscription to

additional 6,666,667 new shares of FEL (through Tidemark) at USD0.30 a share or a total of

USD2.O million. Together with the subscription simultaneously made by other major shareholder of

FEL, the new subscription resulted to the decrease of the Company's ownership Io20.00%in2017.
This was ratified by the stockholders on May 10, 2017. As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the

Company's interest in FEL is 20.OO% and 27 .'J'4%, respectively,
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As discussed in Note L, FEL encountered a delay in one of its drilling programs. lt has submitted all

the requirements for the issuance of required permits for the drilling program, however, the permit

has not yet been issued by the relevant government body. The ultimate outcome of the uncertainty
on the conduct of drilling operation cannot be presently determined. Managements' assessment of
the status is also discussed in Note 1.

On July t2,20\6, the Permanent Court of Arbitration in The Hague released a ruling on the maritime
case filed by the Republic of the Philippines against the People's Republic of China. ln particular, the
Tribunal ruled that Reed Bank, where SC 72 lies, is within the Philippines' Exclusive Economic Zone

as defined under the United Nations Convention on the Law of the Seas. ln November 2077, the
Association of Southeast Asian Nations (ASEAN) and China has arrived at a negotiation to commence

talks on drafting an effective Code of Conduct in the disputed seas.

|n2072, the carrying amount of the Company's investment in FEL through Tidemark amountlng to
P767.3 million exceeded its recoverable amount of P543.8 million by P223.5 million. Accordingly,

impairment loss was recognized in2Ot2 forthe same amount. No impairment loss was recognized

in2077,2016 and 2015.

Following are the aggregated summarized financial information of the subsidiaries as at and for the
years ended December 3t,2017,2016 and 2015 (in millions):

2017 20t6 201,5

Assets
Liabilities
Equity

Net income

ln 2017, the Company recognized dividend income

F2.0 million (see Note L2).

P959.4
665.6
303.8

0.4

F866.9
664.2
202.7

0.5

P819.0

663.8
155.2

0.5

from its investment in ABSTC amounting to

8. AFS FinancialAsset

This account pertains to the Company's investment in unquoted shares of stock which is carried at

cost amounting to P2.0 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Fair value bases for the shares (i.e., quoted market prices) are neither readily available nor is there
an alternative basis of deriving a reliable valuation as at reporting date.

9. Deferred Mining Exploration Cost

The realizability of deferred mining exploration cost is dependent upon the success of future

exploration and development activities in proving the mining property's viability to produce

minerals in commercial quantities, the outcome of which cannot be determined at this stage of the

Company's operations. As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, deferred mining exploration costs

amounting to P2.6 million were fully impaired upon management's assessment that the related

projects were unsuccessful.
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L0. Property and Equipment

The balances and movements of this account are as follows:

20t7
Exploration Leasehold Furniture and Office
Equipment lmprovements Fixtures Equipment

Transportation
Equipment Total

Cost
Balances at beginning of year 756,235 74,422,5L8 7L,324,746 F1,253,858
Disposals/retirement (8,049) (63,155)

F1,665,548 ?8,722,955
17L,2O4l

Balances at end of vear 55,235 4,422,5L8 r,tL6,7t7 1,190,713 1,655,548 9,551,751

Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortlzation

Balances at beginning of year
Depreciation and amortization
Disposals/retirement

39,798
1,438

4,409,424
6,833

L,324,786 L,L93,79t 1,555,548

- 20,530
(8,049) (23,708)

8,633,347
28,901

13L,7s71

Balances at end of year 4L,2r6 4,4L6,257 L,3L6,737 1,190,713 1,665,548 8,630,491

Carrying Amount F14,999 |6,26L P- F- F- ?2L,26O

201,6

Exploration Leasehold Furniture and Office Transportation
Equipment lmprovements Fixtures Equipment Equipment Total

Cost
Balances at beginning of year F128,378 P4,422,578 P!,324,7a6 ?\283,762 P3,068,40s ?10,227,849

Additions'7,766-7,766
Disposals (72,143) - - (31,660) (1,402,8s7) (1,505,660)

Balances at end ofyear 56,235 4,422,518 1,324,786 1,253,868 1,665,548 1,722,955
Accumulated Depreciation

and Amortization
Balances at beginning ofyear 93,500 4,400,805 7,324,786 L,208,3I4

Depreciation and amortization f2,429 8,519 - 17,737

Disposals (66,131) t11,69E

2,060,928 9,088,333
397,458 435,643
(7e2,838) (8e0,629)

Balances at end of year 39,798 4,409,424 1,324,786 1,193,797 1,665,548 8,633,347

CarryingAmount P76,437 P13,094 F- P60.9I P- F89,ffi

ln2OI7, the Company retired its fully depreciated furniture and fixtures with cost of P8,049. The

Company also sold its office equipment for F39,447 which is equivalent to its carrying amount.

ln 201.6, the Company sold its property and equipment located at the exploration site for a

consideration of P608,929, resulting to a loss of P7,702.

11, Payables and Other Current Liabilities

This account consists of:

2017 2016Note

Payable to:
Related parties

Third party

Advances from officers and employees

Accruals:

Professional fees

Utilities and other office expenses

Others

L2 ?726,397
447,548
368,924

1.80,000

1O3,216
L84,628

P927,2L6

256,824

190,000

179,566
308,861

Accrued expenses and other payables are normally settled within the following month.
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Other payables consist of:

20fi 2015

Retention payable

Withholding taxes payable

Other statutory payables

Others

F95,000
14,900
L2,933
6t,795

P95,000

2t,598
13,389

178,874
P184,628 F308,861

L2. Related Party Transactions

The Company, in its regular conduct of business, has transactions with its related parties' The

outstanding balances and amount of transactions with related parties are as follows:

Transactions During the Year Outstanding Balances

Nature of Transaction 2017 2016 20L7 2016

Receivable from related Parties

W holly-ow ned subsidi o rie s :

Tidemark

ABSTC

Entities under common monogement:
Alphaland Corporation
Alphaland Heavy Equipment

Corporation
Alphaland Balesin lsland Club, lnc.

Alphaland Aviation, lnc.

Choice lnsurance Brokerage, lnc.

Philweb Cambodia Ltd.

Acentic Philippines Inc.

Alphaland Baguio Mountain Log

Homes, lnc.

Working capital advances

Allocated rent, salaries,

utilities and other
shared costs

Allocated costs

Allocated costs

Reimbursements
Reimbursements

Allocated costs

Reimbursements

Allocated costs

Sale of assets

B.

757,621

:

3L,O2;

F-

813,946

: 579,305
32,500

*:
579,305

32,500
796

509,865
190,450

27,447

F223,901 ?223,901

195,406 932,251.

2,794,966 2,794,966

918 418,019

?3,8268 !_____Ps,892-,4e 4 _

Dividends receivable

Wholly-ow ned subsidiary -

ABSTC

Payable to related parties

Wholly-owned subsidiory -

ABSTC

Entities under common monogement:
Alphaland Southgate Tower, lnc.

(ASI)

Alphaland Makati Place, lnc. (AMPI)

Dividend declaration

Stock transfer

Lease of office space,

utilities and allocated
salaries

Lease of office space

and utilities

F180,000 P180,000

8,814 1,s76,214

777,387

585,413 576,595

Allocated rent, salaries

and other shared costs

t29,563 140,984
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Receivable from and payable to related parties are unsecured, noninterest-bearing, due and

demandable, and settlement occurs in cash. ln 20L7 and 2016, the Company has not made any

provision for impairment losses relating to the amounts owed by the related parties,

The Company had a Cost Sharing Agreement (the Agreement) with Philweb for its share in rental

and salaries of shared corporate services and its key management personnel. This agreement has

been terminated in October 2017.

Details of shared costs charged to the Company are as follows (see Note L4):

20L7 2016 2015

Salaries and allowances
Rental
Others

F1,935,720

511,708

P3,234,369
1,380,569

P3,205,182
t,t73,349

28,919

?2,547,428 P4,614,938 P4,407,450

ln 2O!7 , Philweb ceased to be a related party of the Company.

Compensation of Kev Management Personnel

The compensation of the key management personnel is included as part of the Agreement with
philweb under the allocated salaries and allowances. Subsequent to October 2017, the

compensation of key management personnel of the Company is being handled by ASTI at no cost to

the Company.

13. CapitalStock

The composition of the Company's capital stock consisting of all common shares as at December 31',

2Ot7 and 2016 is as follows:

Number of
Shares Amount

Authorized - P1 par value 10,000,090,000 P10,000,000,000

lssued and outstanding
Subscribed

953,963,474 P953,963,474

1,591,036,526 1,591,036,526

Less subscription receivable

2,545,000,000 2,545,000,000

- 1,485,000,000

2,545,000,000 P1,060,000,000
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14. General and Administrative Expenses

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2076 2015

Allocated expenses

Professional fees
Salaries and wages

PSE listing fee

Rent

Supplies
Taxes and licenses

Utilities, dues and subscriPtions
Medical and hospitalization
Depreciation and amortization
Representation
Transportation and travel
Communications
Mining exploration cost

Others

t2

16

10

?2,547,428
L,370,34L
L,274,695

990,2L4
L75,282
164,243

87,876
46,005
31,455
28,901
21,447
6,779
2,097

1,699
t55,673

F4,674,938
L,O04,445
4,1.60,650
1,123,769
1,913,568

357,449
43,109

695,502
563,139
435,643
643,84!
194,942
394,558
976,428
778,130

P4,407,450
1,155,342
5,130,156
1,593,983

2,050,757
591,330

301,588
907,089
378,608
854,704
876,500
449,741
784,t04

L,!23,769
590,037

F6,904,136 Pt7,900,tll P21,195,158

15. Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share

Basic and diluted loss per share is computed as follows:

2017 2016 zoLS

Net loss (a)

Weighted average number of
(F3,884,533) (P!5,742,469) (P18,359,894)

outstanding shares (b 4 953,963,474 953,963,474

Basic and diluted loss per share (a/b (P0.0041 (P0.o1se) (Po.o1s2)

The Company has no dilutive potential common shares outstanding, therefore basic loss per share is

the same as diluted loss per share.

16. Operating Leases

The company is a party to a noncancellable lease agreement with ASTI covering its office and

parking spaces for a period of five years from January !,2010, renewable upon mutual consent of

both parties. The lease agreement was terminated on September 30, 2016'

Under the terms of the covering lease agreements, the Company is required to pay rental and

security deposits which are included as part of "Other noncurrent assets" in the separate statement

of financial position aggregating P1.4 million as at December 31, 2016' These deposits will become

refundable to the Company at the end of the lease contract. As a result of termination of the lease

agreement with ASTI, the Company expects to collect these deposits within one year from reporting

date. Accordingly, the Company reclassified these deposits to "Other current assets" account in

2017 (see Note 6).
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ln October 2016, the Company entered into a lease agreement with AMPI for its office space. The

term of the lease shall commence on October L0, 2016 until terminated by any party upon sixty (60)

days advance written notice to the other party. ln March 2017, the lease agreement with AMPI was

amended by both parties to stipulate a different office space. The lease agreement was assigned to
ABSTC through a lease assignment agreement that has been executed in October 2O17.

Rent expense on leased properties amounted to P775,282, P1.9 million and F2.1 million in 20t7,

2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 14).

17. lncome Taxes

ln 2Ot7 and 2016, the Company had no provision for current income tax due to its tax loss position.

ln 2015, the Company's provision for current tax represents MCIT.

The deferred tax assets on the following deductible temporary differences remain unrecognized as

management has assessed that it is not probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available in the

near future against which the benefits of the deferred tax assets on these temporary differences can

be utilized.

20L7 2016

NOLCO

Accumulated impairment losses on:

Deferred mining exPloration cost

Receivables

Excess MCIT over RCIT

P44,495,570

2,6L3,940
41,550

29

P61.,252,1-4L

2,673,940
41,550

1,,764

F47,091,089 P63,909,395

The Company has NOLCO which can be carried forward
taxable income as follows:

Balance at

and claimed as deduction from future

Balance at

End of YearYear lncurred ning of Year lncurred

P- F6,862,1"05

Expired Valid Until

20L7
20L6
201s

2014

,_ 2020
20L9
2018
2017

17,256,270
20,317,t95

P29

P6,862,105
t7,256,270
2O,3L7,195

23,678,676
P23,678,676

The Company has excess MCIT over RCIT which can be carried forward and claimed as deduction

against future income tax liability as follows:

Balance at Balance at
End of YearYear lncurred nning of Year lncurred

201s
2074

P- P-
1,735

P29

7.735

F61,252,141

P7,764 P- F1,735 P29
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The reconciliation between the benefit from income tax computed at statutory income tax rate andprovision for income tax at effective income tax rate is as follows:

20L7 2016 2015Benefit from income tax computed atltatuto[
income tax rate (F1,165,360l, (p4,542,741) (p5,507,960)

7,103,603 5,g62,705
15,046,7061 4,592,195 2O3,27g

1,735 594,695 29,203

(500,000)
(305,881) (827,2931 (850,149)

Expired NOLCO
Changes in unrecognized deferred tax assets
Expired MCIT
Add (deduct) tax effects of:

Nontaxable dividends
lnterest income already subjected to finaltax .I;;;;;;' ';;;:,;;;'

Pr"riri". frr i,

18. Financial Risk Management Objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, receivables
(excluding advances to officers and employees), AFS financial asset, rental and security deposits andpayables and other current liabilities (excluding statutory payables).

The main purpose of the Company's dealings in financial instruments is to fund its operations and
capital expenditures.

The company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced bythe Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence tolimits' Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the company's activities. All risks faced by the company are incorporated in the
annual operating budget' Mitigating strategies and procedures are also devised to address the risks
that inevitably occur so as not to affect the company's operations and detriment forecasted results.
The company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a
disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.

The main risks arising from the Company's financial instruments are market risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk, The BoD reviews and institutes policies for managing each of the risks and these are
summarized below.

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and other
market prices will adversely affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments' The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

The Company is subject to minimal transaction and translation exposures resulting from currency
exchange fluctuations in relation to its financial instruments. The Company regularly monitors
outstanding financial assets and liabilities in foreign currencies and maintains them at a level
responsive to the current exchange rates so as to minimize the risks related to these foreign
currency denominated assets and liabilities.
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Credit Risk

credit risk is a risk due to uncertainty in counterparty's ability to meet its obligations. whencounterparty defaults, the maximum exposure is equal to the carrying amount of the relatedfinancial asset' The company's credit risk arises principally from cash and cash equivalents,receivables (excluding advances to officers and employees), rental and security deposits, and AFSfinancial assets,

The company trades only with recognized and credit-worthy third parties. ln addition, the companyonly deals with financial institutions dury evaruated and appioved by the BoD.

The table below shows the credit quality per class of financial assets as at December 31:

20L7
N€ither past Due nor lmpaired

Standard Substandard Past Due butGrade Grade Grade not
Loans and receivables:

Cash and cash
eq uivalents*

Receivables*.
Rental and security

depositsrt *

AFS financial asset

12,808
rExcluding cosh on hond omounting to p24,226.
a*Excluding advonces to officers and employees.
***Presented under "Other current ossets', account,

736,926,57L
6,O44,708

L,44L,579

,: tl ,: P-
41,550

?36,926,57L
6,086,258

L,44L,579

Neither past Due nor lmpaired

Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash

eq uivalents*
Receivablest *

Rental and security
deposits

AFS financial asset

Pt41,,797,378
5,801,959

t,441,579

,: ,:

Substandard

Grade
Past Due but
not

,_ P- P747,791,378
41,550 5,843,519

t,441,579
1

F41,550
,999,950

F151,040,876
P75L,082,426*Excluding cosh on hond aiomtinq to F24,226.

**Excluding odvonces to officers and employees.

The credit quality of the financial assets is managed by the Company using internal credit quality
ratings' High grade consists of financial assets from counterparties with good financial condition
and with relatively low defaults. This also includes transactions with related parties. Financial assets
having risks of default but are still collectible are considered as standard grade accounts.

Cash in banks and cash equivalents are considered high grade as these pertain to deposits and
placements in reputable banks,

tiquiditv Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due' The Company manages liquidity risk by forecasting projected cash flows and maintaining a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility in operations. Treasury controls and
procedures are in place to ensure that sufficient cash is maintained to cover daily operational and
working capital requirements. Management closely monitors the Company's future and contingent
obligations and sets up required cash reserves as necessary in accordance with internal
requirements.

Standard
Grade Grade
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The company's payable to related parties and advances from officers and employees amounting toF1'1 million and P1'2 million as at December 31, 2otr and 20L6, respectively, are due anddemandable' The remaining balance of payables and other current liabilities (excluding statutorypayables) amounting to F887,559 and P633,440, as at December 31.,2oL7 and 2016, respectively,have a maturity of less than three months,

Fair Value Measurement
The table below presents the financial assets and liabilities of the company whose carrying amountsapproximate fair values due to the short-term nature of the transactions:

20t7 2016
Financial Assets
Loans and receivables:

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables*

Rental and secu

P36,951,297

6,044,7O9
P14L,922,704

5,901,969
ts* * t

P44,437,594 P747,624,073

Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities -

Payables and other current liabilities*** F1,gg2,gg0 Pt,8t7,4go
* Excluding advonces to officers and employees,
** Presented under ,'Other current ossets,' dccount os at December 31, 2077.*** Excluding stotutory poyobles omounting to P27,833 and P34,987 as ot December j7, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Rentol ond Security Deposits. The fair value of rental and security deposits as at December 31, 2016
amounted to P1.4 million. Fair values are estimated by discounting the expected cash flow using a
discount rate of 2.45%. This fair value measurement approach is categorized under Level 2 of fair
va lue hiera rchy (significant observa ble inputs).

AFS Financiol Asset. AFS financial assets pertain to an investment in unquoted securities that are
measured at cost since the fair value of the shares are not readily available.

Capital Management Policv

The primary objective of the company's capital management is to ensure its ability as a going
concern and that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support its business operations and
maximize shareholder value.

The Company considers its total equity amounting to F699.7 million and p703.6 million as at
December 31.,20L7 and 2016, respectively, as capital employed.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio which is calculated as total
debt divided by total equity. Total debt comprises of payables and other current liabilities. Total
equity comprises all components of equity.
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The debt-to-equity ratios as at December 31. are as follows:

2017
Total debt

2076
?2,O1O,713 PL,952,467

0.003:1 0.003:1

The Company manages its
economic conditions. To
borrowings or raise capital.
and 2016.

capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
maintain or adjust the capitar structure, the company ,"y adjust its

No changes were made in the objectives, poricies or processes in 20r.7
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ATOK.BIG WEDGE CO., INC.

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ADOPTION OF
EFF ECTIVE ACCOU NTI NG STANDARDS AN D I NTER PRETATIO NS

DECEMBER gt,2OL7

Title Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements

Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative characteristics

PFRSs Practice Statement Manage ment Comme ntary

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS)

PFRS Title Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

PFRS l" (Revised)
First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards

Amendments to PFRS 1; Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans

PFRS 2 Share-based Payment

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment Transactions

PFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

Amendment to PFRS 3: Accounting for Contingent
Consideration in a Business Combination

Amendment to PFRS 3: Scope Exceptions for Joint
Ventures

PFRS 4 lnsurance Contracts

Amendments to PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee Contracts



PFRS Title Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

PFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

Amendment to PFRS 5: Changes in Methods of Disposal

PFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

PFRS 7 Financial lnstruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial
Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial
Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: lmproving Disclosures about
Financial lnstruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7; Disclosures - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendment to PFRS 7: Servicing Contracts

Amendment to PFRS 7: Applicability of the
Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed lnterim Financial

Statements

PFRS 8 Operating Segments

Amendments to PFRS 8: Aggregation of Operating
Segments

Amendments to PFRS 8: Reconciliation of the Total of
the Reportable Segments' Assets to the Entity's Assets

PFRS 9
Financial lnstruments: Classification and Measurement
of Financial Assets

Financial lnstruments: Classification and Measurement
of Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

PFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to PFRS 10: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10: lnvestment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10: lnvestment Entities: Applying

the Consolidation Exception

PFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

Amendments to PFRS 1L: Transition Guidance



PFRS Title Adopted Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions
of lnterests in Joint Operations

PFRS 12 Disclosure of lnterests in Other Entities

Amendments to pFRS 12: Transition Guidance

Amendments to pFRS 12: lnvestment Entities

Amendments to pFRS 12: lnvestment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Amendment to PFRS 1"2: Clarification of the Scope of
the Standard

PFRS 1.3 Fair Value Measurement

Amendment to pFRS L3: Short-term receivables and
Payables

Amendment to pFRS 13: portfolio Exception

PFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Philippine Accounting Standards (pAS)

PAS Title Adopted Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

PAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendments to PAS L: puttable Financial lnstruments
and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendments to PAS 1: presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive lncome

Amendment to PAS 1: Clarification of the
Requirements for Comparative presentation

Amendments to PAS L: Disclosure lnitiative

PAS 2 lnventories

PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

Amendments to PAS 7: Disclosure lnitiative

PAS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors

PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period

PAS 11 Construction Contracts

PAS 12 lncome Taxes



PAS Title Adopted Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

Amendments to pAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

Amendments to PAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealized Losses

PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

Amendment to pAS 16: Classification of Servicing
Equipment

Amendment to pAS 16: Revaluation Method _

Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Depreciation

Amendment to PAS 16: property, plant and
Equipment - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortization

Amendment to PAS 16: Agriculture: Bearer plants

PAS 17 Leases | .t
PAS 18 Revenue

PAS 19
(Revised) Employee Benefits

Amendment to PAS 19: Defined Benefit plans -
Employee Contributions

Amendment to PAS 19: Discount Rate - Regional
Market lssue

PAS 20
Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance

PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Amendment: Net lnvestment in a Foreign Operation

PAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

PAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

Amendment to PAS 24: Key Management personnel

PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit plans

PAS 27
(Amended) Separate Financial Statements

Amendments to PAS 27: lnvestment Entities

Amendments to PAS 27: Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

PAS 28
(Amended)

lnvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures



Amendments to pAS 2g: lnvestment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

PAS 32 Financial lnstruments: Disclosure and presentation

Financial lnstruments: presentation

Amendments to pAS 32: puttable Financial lnstruments
and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendment to pAS 32: Classification of Rights lssues

Amendments to pAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 32:TaxEffect of Distribution to
Holders of Equity lnstruments

Earnings per Share

lnterim Financial Reporting

Amendment to PAS 34: lnterim Financial Reporting and
Segment lnformation for Total Assets and Liabilities

Amendment to PAS 34: Disclosure of lnformation
'Elsewhere in the lnterim Financial Report,

lmpairment of Assets

Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Nonfinancial Assets

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

lntangible Assets

Amendment to PAS 38: Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Amortization

Amendment to PAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

Financial lnstruments: Recognition and Measurement

Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and lnitial
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting
of Forecast lntragroup Transactions

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option

Amendments to PAS 39: Financial Guarantee Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassification of Financial
Assets



PAS Title Adopted Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

Amendments to pAS 39: Reclassification of Financial
Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments pAS 39: Embedded Derivatives

Amendment to pAS 39: Eligible Hedged ltems

Amendments to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

PAS 40 lnvestment Property

Amendment to PAS 40: Clarifying the lnterrelationship
between PFRS 3 and pAS 40 when Classifying property
as lnvestment Property or Owner-occupied property

PAS 41 Agriculture

Amendment to PAS 41: Agriculture: Bearer plants

Philippine lnterpretations

lnterpretations Title Adopted Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

IFRIC 1
Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and
Similar Liabilities

tFRtc 2
Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar
lnstruments

IFRIC 4
Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a
Lease

tFRtc 5
Rights to lnterests arising from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

lFRlc 6
Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific
Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment

tFRrc 7
Applying the Restatement Approach under pAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

lFRtc 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

Amendments to Philippine lnterpretation tFRtC 9:
Embedded Derivatives

tFRtc 10 lnterim Financial Reporting and lmpairment

tFRtc 12 Service Concession Arrangements

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

tFRtc 14
PAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their lnteraction



Amendments to philippine lnterpretations IFRtC 14,
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

Hedges of a Net lnvestment in a Foreign Operation

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

Transfers of Assets from Customers

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments

Stripping Costs in the production phase of a Surface
Mine

PHITIPPTNE INTERPRETATTONS - SIC

lntroduction of the Euro

Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to
Operating Activities

Operating Leases - lncentives

lncome Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity
or its Shareholders

Evaluating the Substance of Transactions lnvolving the
Legal Form ofa Lease

Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures.

Revenue - Barter Transactions lnvolving Advertising
Services

lntangible Assets - Web Site Costs

Interpretations Title Adopted Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

stc-7

stc-10

slc-15

src-2s

stc-27

stc-29

stc-31

slc-32



ATOK.BIG WEDGE CO,, !NC.
ALPHALAND MAKATI PLACE
7232 AYALA AVENUE CORNER MALUGAY ST.,
BRGY. BEL.AIR, MAKATI CITY 1209 PHILIPPINES

January 19,2018

TELEFAX NO.: +63.2.3'l 0-7100

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The Management of.Atok-Big Wedge Go., tnc. is responsible for ail information andrepresentations contained in the Annuil tncome Tax Reiurn for the y""i 
"no"o 

December31' 
,2017;. Management is likewise responsible for all information and representationscontained in the financial statements accompanying the Annual lncome Tax Return coveringthe same reporting year. Furthermore, tne Manai"il"nt is responsible for all information andrepresentations contained in all the other tax re-turns flled foi tne ieporting y.rr, including,but not limited, to the value added tax and/or percentagelax returns, withholding tax returns,documentary stamp tax returns, and any and ail other iix returns.

ln this regard, the Management affirms that the attached audited financial statements for theyear ended December 31, 2017 and the accompanying Annual tncome Tax Return are inaccordance with the books and records of Atok-big W;oge Co., lnc. .orpt"t" and correctin all materiar respects. Management likewise affirmi that:

(a) the Annual lncome Tax Returns has been prepared in accordance with the provisions
of the National lnternal Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent tax regulationsand other issuances of the Department of Finance and the Bureau of lnternalRevenue;

(b) 
?ny disparity of figures in the submitted reports arising from the preparation of the
financial statements pursuant to financial accounting standards and the preparation
of the income tax return pursuant to tax accounti-ng rules has Ueen reported as
reconciling items and maintained in the company's books and records in accordancewith the requirements of Revenue Reguiation No. a-2007 and other relevant
issuances;

(c) Atok-Big Wedge co., tnc. has filed all applicable tax returns, reports and statements
required to be filed under Philippine tax'laws for the reporting period, and all taxes
and other impositions shown thereon to be due and payabte 6ave oeen paio for the
reporting period, except those contested in good faith.

.;t' .,r"f*i'**&1-***A;'

ERIC O. RECTO
Vice Chairman & President

ROBERTO'V. ONGPIN
qphtirman & CEO

cRtsTtNAB. ZaeRrura5
Senior Vice President for fitnance
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Citibank Tower
8741 Pas€o de Rqas
Makatl Ctty lZ26 philtp0ines

Phone : +63! 982 91ooF.r : ro32g8zgul
Wrbslts :wlw,reyestacandong.com

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY SEPARATE FINANCIATSTATEMENTS FOR FILING WTH THE

BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE

The Stockholders and the Board of Dtrectors
Atok-Big Wedge Co., lnc.
Alphaland Makati place,

7232 Ayala Avenue corner Malugay Street
MakattCity

we have audited the. accompanylng separate financial statements of Atok-aig wedge co., tnc.(the company) as at and for the year enauo December 31,, Iotz, on whlch we have rendered our reportdated March 23,ZOLI,

ln compliance wlth Revenue Regulatlons v-20 we are statlng that no partner of our Firm is related byconsanguinlty or afflnlty to the presldent, manager or princlpal stockholders of the company,

REyEs Tecnruoonc & Co.

4","'-JZO.Qa,a
EMMANUEL V. CLARlNO
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 27455
Tax ldentiflcatlon No, 102-0g4-004-OOO
BOA Accredltatlon No. 4782;valld untll December 31, 201g
SEC Accredttatlon No. 1021-AR-2 Group A

Valid until March 27, ZO20
Bl R Accredttafl on No, 0g-005 X4A-OOS-ZOL7

Valid untll January 13, 2020
PTR No. 6607954

lssued January 3, 2019, MakaU City

March 23,20L8
Makati City, Metro Manila

Tltfi f'firlllfi[, CIr sf;ff{0 ut'lt}fin$T000
.4lifilI ,1AI I (ilN$lrl,ItN$

lxffi
n5M

not itself a separate legal entiry o, any descrlptlon ln anyjurkdlction,

lfiffitfilrililillfl l[ffiil[flIrililrffi tilililtfl ffi [nflil



REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE

BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE

FITING REFERENCE NO.

000-707-286-000

: ATOK BIG WEDGE COMPANY INC.

:048

Type 1702

No. 121800024656427

0.00

C - Calendar

12t3112017

04t12t2018

IT

nt Payable
Remittance)

Type

'or Tax Period

Filed

hx Type

I etn uain I eFpS Login I User trlenu I Hetp ]

https ://efps. bir. gov.ph/home.html 1t1
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BIR Form 1702-RT

ffi Reference No : 121O0002469642Z
Date Filed : Apnl 12,2018 11:Sl AM

Batch Number: 0

ForBlR BCS/
Use Only ltem rlII E#EffiriHJlffiIl lll

Republika ng Pilipinas
Kagawaran ng pananalaDl
Kawsnlhan ns Rentas lnierng,

Ann uat tncome TaxREiIIi'
For corporaflon, partnsrship and Olhe, Non_lndlvidual

. raxp-ayor Subject Only to REGULAR lncome Tax RateEntor ail requroct-tnt:na!9Jt.\ 
-C,AVTAI.IEIIERS. Ma* appticable boxes with an ,X".

rio copies uusr ai nii iititii ili.';;;;;;;;rt';;i;Z

BIR Form No.

1702-RT
Juns 2013

Page 1

1 For e calendar Fiscal

2 Year Ended (MM/20W)

ir-r-:"" iiier-:-_:l

Short Pedod Return?

' Yes:s No

Ro9ES AVE coR EosA bnoV brrv or MAr<nii

d ltemized Deductions tsection
34 (A-J), NIRCI

Optional Standard Deduction (OSD) - 40yo of Gross lncome lsection 34(L),
NIRC as amended by RA No. 95041

6 Total lncome Tax Due (Overpaymenl) (Fron pad lV lton 44)

Credity?ayments (Frcm pad tV tten 45)

8 Net Tax Payable (Overpayment) (/tem 16 Less ltem tl fron part twten aa1

19 Add: Total Penallies (From pa/t tV ilem OO)
0i

PAYABLE (Overpayment) (Sum oftem ,B and 19) (From pad tV ltem 51) 0i

- 
b be retungs$; ; hfrl rlilid,a Tax.% rtificate (Tcc) ,. To be caried over as tax credit next yearlquarter

;;;;iRil; il'dff ;";+;!i:ffi ;'J ffi iiffis:ffi f ilffifi ffi flX;;*iXdd?"HU#1,*.*

ffims#t@ ffiffi^ R$mm$*'mm
tr name or tsrestd64uPilnctpal Ofic€/Authorizod I

ritteotsignatory li V[o€-rK'ej|--EENilffi
Number of pages filed

12 d communitv rax cerrificate (crc) Nmber sEc Res No. lligo-0ri",-,,*- 
- 

":"-" 11fr1,9,il8flJv1)i o2t0112018

14 Place of lssue \KATI CITY 15 Amount, if
)TC1 880

Part lll . D
Detalls of Pavment Drawee SanUAgenit Number DaIe (MM/ODNYYY Amount

16 Cash/Bank Debit Memo

17 Check
0

18 Tax Debit Memo
0

]L II
not tilod with dn Autholzed Agent Bank)

https://efps.bir.gov.ph/faces/EFPSWeb_warlforms20l3VersionllTO2RTllTO2RTjrint.xhtml 1t8

1 702-RT06/1 3P1

Mothod of D6ductions

5 Alphanumeric Tax Code (ATC)

lpp"ss,::_ i 1y"fi[19c-;ip;]1eirs"-;."-jg1iy-C-iri,i *



orK rorm l tvz-r1.l

Annual lncome Tax Return
page 2 llllEEffi[ihfiJHE] ilt

Net Sale./R"r"nr"srR"."ipt"/F"". (Fro, SJ@
Less: Cost of Sales/Services (From Sch udrtui tt"ii1
@soLessttemgl)
gg!!g.urro't,nro*. roi b@
Total cross lncoms fsum o6l lz a 3s1

3^7 Nqlgo lonry ro, no"i t*iEii@
2?",:.2aril11 6, (A)(6)(b) ot rha tax code) tr.i'iiiiiiit,

tot"t tt"rir"o o"or"i[1.Eil]%ilfri6

Optional Standard Deduclion f4OZ, ofltom 34l

Net Taxabls lncom a (ttem 94 Les; ftem gO OR

lncome Tax Due other than MaLTT/t om 40 x ltem 4i)
Minimum corporate f ncome W

Less: Total Tax Creaitvprrrffi- ,:rom Schedule 7 ltem 12) (To pad ll ltom 17)

folal P.naltlss (Sum of ilems 47 to lSl fb pii l\"m 1 g)

Special Allowable ltemized Deduction s (30% ol ltim A6)

Add: Special Tax Credib fFro m Schodulo 7 ltom 9l
Total Tax Rellef Availment (S um ot ttems iZ & iS)

https//efps.bir.gov.ph/faces/EFPSWeb_war/forms20l3version/1702RT/1 702RT_print,xhtml 2t8

Net rax payable (overpayment) lttu^ +l t^, Giiffi

Tol^l A^ount p^yrbt. (Or"rp"y^.ntl (Sii ui1f,iffii



at tLtLv to BIR Form 1702-RI

Annual lncome Tax Return
Page3-Schedulesl&2 IIII Effiffi+HJIHhII III

Schedule'l . Sales/RevenueslRecelpts/Fees (Attach additional sheet/s, il necessarv)

Sale of Goods/Properties

I Sale of Services

I Lease of Properlies

I Total (Sum of ltoms l lo 3,)

I Lass: Sales Returns, Allowances and Discounts

i Not Sales/RovenusE/Rac€lpts/Fees (ltem 4 Less ltem S) (To part lV ltem 30)

Schodule 2A. Cost of Sales (For those Enqaqed in Tradino)
Marchandise lnvsntory - Bsginning

2 Add: Purchasss ol Merchandlse

3 Tolal Goods Available for Sale (Sum of ltams 1 & 2)

t Less: Mgrchandise lnventory, Ending

i Cost of Sales (ltem 3 Less ltem 4) (To Schedute 2 ttem 2T ) 0

Schedule 28 . Cost of Sales (For thoee Ensased In Manuficturlnq)
Dir€ct Materials, Beglnning

7 Add: Purchases of Oir6ct Materials

B Materlals Available for Uss (Sum of ltoms 6 & 7)

, Less: Direct Materials, Ending

10 Raw lvaterials Used (/tem 6 Less /fom g,)

11 Direct Labor

2 Manufacturing Overhead

13 Total Manufacturing Cost (Sum ofrtems 10, 11 & 12)

l4 Add: Work In Procsss, Boginning

l5 Less: Work ln Procoss, Endlng

l6 Cost of Goods Manufactured (Sum of ilems 13 & 14 Less ltem 15)

7 Finished Goods, Beginning 0:

I Less: Finished Goods, Ending

9 Cost of Goods Manufactured and Sold (Sum of llems 16 & 17 Less ltem 18) (To Sched.2 ltem 27)

Schedule 2C . Cost of Services
(For those Engagod ln servicas, indicatc only lhose directly lncurred or related to the gross revenuo from rendition of services)

l0 Direct Charges - Salarios, Wages and Bensrits

1 Direct Charges - Materials, Supplies and Facilities 0

22 0ir6ct Charges - Depraciation 0

23 Dlrect Charoes - Rontal 0
24 Direct Charges - Outside Services

15 Direct Charges - Others

26 Total Cost of Servlces fsum oflr€ms 20 to 25) (To lten 27)

Total Cost of Sales/Servlces (Sum of ltens 5, 19 & 26, if appticabte) (To pat tV ttem 3 q

https//efps,bir.gov,ph/faces/EFPSWeb_war/forms2013Versionl1702RTl1702RT_print,xhtml 3t8

t(
@
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ffi



tsrK FOrm 1 /Uz-t{ I

Annual lncome Tax Return
Page4.Schedules3&4 rlilnffiffir-tJHEmlt

schedule 3 - Other Taxable lncome Not Subjected to Final Tax (Attach adaitionat sheat/a if necessay)

{ Total other Taxable lncome Not subjected to Flnal rax (sum of ltens 1 to 3) (To pad tv ltem 33)

Schedule 4 - Ordinary Allowjble ssary)
Advertising and Promotions
Amortizations (Specl& on ltems 2, 3 & 4)

ol

i Bad Debts

i Charitable Contributions

Commissions

Communication, Light and Water 48,102

, Deplotjon

l0 Deprociation 0

ll Diroctor's F€6s 28,90'
2 Fringe Benefits

l3 Fuel and Oil

l4 lnsurance 31,456

l5 lnterost

'16 Janitorial and Messengerial Servioes

17 Losses

8 N,lanagement and Consultancy Fee

l9 Miscellaneous 1 35,089

l0 Office Supplies 164,243

ll Other Serylces oi

12 Professlonal Fees 1,370,341

l3 Rental 175,2Ei

14 Repairs and Maintenance - (Labor or Labor & Materials)

l5 Repairs and Maintenance - (Materials/Supplies)

16 Representation and Entertainm6nt

!7 Research and Development

28 Royalties

29 Salaries and Allowances 1,274,6951

https//efps.bir.gov.ph/faces/EFPSWeb_wariforms201 3Versionl1702RI l17 02RT_print.xhtml 4t8

rj

ffi



t+t1it-lzu1d BIR Form 1702-RT

Annual lncome Tax Return
PageS-Schedules4,5&6 Illl EEffiiffi{ffitl lll

Schedule 4 - Ordinary Allowable ltemized Deductions (Continued from Previous Page)

l0 Securily Seruices

11 SSS, GSIS, Philhealth, HDMF and Other Contributlons 87,87e

12 Taxes and Lienses

13 Tolling Fees

i4 Training and Seminars oi

!5 Transportation and Travel 6,7791

Others /Spocify below: Add addilional she6tk). if necessayl
i3 6 14!!-994119 _EIPE Ns Es 2,547,42t

37 IPSE LISTING FEE 990,214

3 8 lMlN !N 
g"F,X!_!o,B4rloN co qr

39 I

Total Ordlnary Allowable ltemiz8d Deductlons (Sum ol ltams 1 to 39) (To Pad lV ltem 35) 6,862,

Schedule 6 . Computation of Net Operating Loss Carry Over (NOLCO)

Gross lncomo (From Paft lV ltem 34) 0

2 Less: Total Deductions Exclusive of NOLCO & Deductlon Undsr Special Law 6,862,1 05i

, Net Operating Loss (Io Scl,odule 64, (6,862,105

Not Loss

Amounl

t017 6,862.105 0
t016 17,256,27(

i2015 20,31 7,1 9l d
7 i2014 23,678,671 o

redule 6A (ltem numbers continue from tha table above)

3) NOLCO Exoired )) NOLCO Appliod Curr€nt Year :) Nat Oporatinq Loss (Unappliod)

0i 6,862,1051

ol 17,256,27(

20.3'17.19t

23,678,47t

I Total NOLCO
'Sum of ltems 4D to 7D) (To Paft lV lten 37)

Schedule 5 - Special Allowable ltemlzed Deductions (Attach additional sheeus, if necessary)
Dsscription Legal Basis Amount

Total Special Allowable ltemized Deductlonc (Sum ofllems 1 to 4) (To Part lV ltem 36) oi

https//efps.bir.gov.ph/faces/EFPSWeb_warfforms2013Versionl1702RTl1712RTlorint.xhtml 5/8

-
1,69!



1t tLtav t9 BIR Form 1702-RT

Annual lncome Tax Return
Page6-Schedules7,8&9 1702.RT

June 20'13
rlll EtEH*iHJ.{HfrIl lll

Scheglq!q 7 - Tax Credits/Paymsnts (atiag! pfq"fl 6ra.n aaarin"i sn"eus, tr necessary)

1 Prior Yoar's ExcessTroditsEGerThanTEiT
2 lncome Tax Payment under
3 lncome Tax Payment under Regular/Normal Rais frorn previous Ouarterls
4 ExcessJvilClT Applied this Cunent Taxable Year (From Schedute A ttem ln

ax withheld from Previous Quarter/s per BIR Form No. 2307
6 Creditable Tax Withheld per A

Forergn lax Oredits, if appllcable
8 Tax Paid in Return Previously Filed, if thls is an Amended Return
9 ;Qpeglqt Tax Credits (Io Part V ltem 53)

Other CreditsiPayments (specr&

1q
11i

12 Total Tax Credits/Payments (som of ,rems , to ,1) (To paft tV tten 4s)

Continuation of Schedule 8 (Line numbers conlinue from table ebovel
D) Excess MCIT Applied/Used

for Previous Years
3) Expired Portion of Excesr

MCIT
F) Excess MCIT Applled

this Current Taxable Year
3) Balance of Excoss MCIT Allowable ar

Tax Credit for Succeeding Year/s

1 ZY

2 '1,735

3

4 TOtal EXCoSS MCIT(Sun o/ Colum n tot I tems 1 F to 3F) (To Schedute I lten 4)

Schedule 9 - Reconclliation of Net lncome oer Books Aoainsl Taxable lncome r
I Net lncome/(Loss) per books (3,664,533

Add: Non-deductible Expenses/Taxable Other lncome
2 TEPRESENTATION EXPENSE 21,44i

3 )ENALTIES 20,584

4 folal $un ol ttems I to 3) (3,842,502

Less: A) Non-taxable lncome and lncome Subjected to Final Tax

5 NTEREST INCOME SUBJECTED TO FINAL TAx 1,019,60:

6 )IVIDENDS 2,000,00(

B) Special Deductions
7

I l

I Total (Sum ofil€ns 5 to 8, 3,01 9,60:

10 Net Taxable lncome (Loss) fiom 4 Loss |en s) (6,862,1 051

https://efps.bir.gov.ph/faces/EFPSWeb_war/forms2013Versionl17O2RTl17O2RT_print.xhtml 6/8

Schedule 8 . Computation of Minlmum Corporate lncome Tax MCIT)
Year I A) Normal lncome Tax as Adiusted B) MCIT lC) Excess MCIT over Normal lncome

t0't 5 2l
2 t0't4 1,73slll 1

3 dt

oili

oill

olli



BIR Form 1702-RT

Annual lncome Tax Return
Page7-Schedules10&l1 IIII EffiEHhHJ$Sfr] III

Assets
1 Current Assets 52,560,552

2 Long-Torm lnvestment 647,594,171

3 Propertv, Plant and Equipment - Not 21,26(

4 Lonq-Term Receivables
5 lntangible Assets
6 Other Assets 1,525,00(

7 Total Assets (sunotuens1 to6) 701,700,992

Llabllities and Equity
I Current Liabilities 2.0'10,71

9 Lonq-Term Llabilities
10 Deferred Credits
1 Other Liabilities

1 2 Total Liabilities (sum ot fiems I ro 11) 2,010,71

13 Capital Stock 1,060,000,000

14 Additional Paid-in Capital
15 Retained Earnings (360,309,721

16 Total Equity (sum or,roas ,3 ro ,5) 699,690,27S

17 Total Liabillties and Equlty gun of lems 12 & t6) 701,700,992

c Stockholders
ths

Members lnformation (Top 20 Stockhold€rs, partners or Members)
this reprssents on th€

https://efps.bir.gov.ph/faces/EFPSWeb_war/forms2013Versionl1702RTl1702RT_print.xhtml 7t8

411zt2016

o/o lo
Total
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Illl EEEH+rHJIffiIl lll1702-RT
Juno 2013

Annual lncome Tax Return
PageS-Schedules12&13

12-

)Gross lncome/
leceipts Subiected to
ilnal Withholdlno

A) Exempt
B) Actual AmounUFair Market

Value/Net Capital Gains C) Final Tax Withheld/Paid

lnterests 1,274,504i 254,901

Rovalties
Dividends 2,000,00(

J Prizes and Winnings

l) Sale/Exchanse of Real properties A) Sale/Exchanqe #1 B) Sale/Exchanoe #2

i Description of Property (a.9. land, improvement, etc.)

i OCT/TCT/CCT/Tax Declaration No.

Certiflcate Authorizing Registration (CAR) No

i Actual AmounVFalr Market Value/Net Capital Gains
) Final Tax Withheld/Paid

ll) Sale/Exchange of Shares of Stoc! A) Sale/Exchanoe #1 B) Sale/Exchanse #2

l0 Kind/PS/CS)/Stock Certificate Series No.

I Certificate Authorizinq Reqistration (CAR) No.

l2 Number of Shares I

3 Date of lssue (MM/DDffYYY)

l4 Actual AmounUFair Market Value/Net Capital Gains

5 Final Tax Withheld/Paid

V) Other lncome (Specify) A) Other lncome #1 B) Other lncome #2

l6 Other lncome Subject to Final Tax Undor Sections
t7(A)/127lothers of the Tax Code, as amended
'Soecifvl

7 Actual AmounUFair Market Value/Net Capital Gains
I

l8 Final Tax Withheld/Paid

Total Final Tax Withheld Pald (Sum of ltems 1C to 4C, 9A, 98, 15A, 1 58, 1BA & 188)

Scheduls 13 - Gross from lncome Tax

Return of Premium Amou nUFair Market Value)

) Personal/Real Properties Received
rhru Gifts, Bequests, and Devlces

A) Personal/Real Properties #1 B) Personal/Real Properties #2

! Description of Property (e.9. land, improvemont, etc.)

i Modes of Transtet (e.g Donation)
I Certificate Authorizino Reoistration (CAR) No.

i Actual AmounVFair Market Value

l) Other Exempt lncome/Receiptg A) Other ExemDt lncome #1 B) Other Exempt lncome #2

i Other Exempt lncome/Receipts Under
iec. 32 (B) ofthe Tax Code, as amended (Specifu)

Actual AmounUFair Market Value/Net Capital Gains

Total lncome Receipts Exempt From lncome Tax (Sum of ltems 1, 5A, 58, 7A & 78)

https://efps.bir.gov.ph/faces/EFPSWeb_warlforms2013Versionl1702Rf l1702RTjrint.xhtml 8t8
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;ffilphaland
-CORPORATION

BIR Email Notification (eFiling of Tax Return)

nrpnarano ueveropment lno. lvlall - trlK trmall l\ollllcallon (erlllng oI lax Kelurn)

Jenina Marie A. Andaya <jaandaya@alphaland.com.ph>

no-reply@bir.gov.ph <no-reply@bir.gov.ph>
To: jaandaya@alphaland.com.ph

Sun, Apr B, 2018 at '1'1 :33 PM

Good Day ATOK BIG WEDGE COMPANY lNC.,

Thank you for filing your Return through eFPS.

This email indicates that the eFiled Return has been submitted to BlR, see below the summary details of your tax filing transaction
for your reference. To ensure that the said transaction was successfully submitted, please inquire your eReturn Details through
the eFPS Tax lnquiry.

From,

Bureau of lnternal Revenue

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES
DEPARTMENTOF FINANCE

BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE

FITING REFERENCE NO.

***PLEASE DO NOT REPLY TO THIS E-MAIL***

DISC LAIMER

This email and its attachments may be confidential and are intended so1ely
for the use of the j.ndividual on entity to whom it is addressed.

If you ane not the intended recipient of this email and its attachments, you
must take no action based upon them, non must you disseminate, distnibute or
copy this e-mail. Please contact the senden immediately if you believe you

have neceived this email in ernor.

E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error-free. The

necipient should check this email and any attachments fot" the presence of
vinuses, The Bureau of Intennal Revenue does not accept liability fon any

errors or omissions in the contents of this message which arise as a nesult
of e-mail transmi.ssion,

ome

Type

No.

mounl Poyoble /
Over Remitlonce)

counling Iype
'Tqx Perlod

Filed
'ox Type

: 000-707-286-000

: ATOK BIG WEDGE COMPANY lNC.

:048

:1702

: 1 21 800024596460

:0.00

:C - Colendor

:1213112017

t04/0812018

:lT

hrtps://mail.google.comimailiu/0/?ui=2&ik=403866eed9&jsvsFjlbldzePgwE.en.&view=pt&msg=162a5e3afb687914&search=inbox&type=1 62b430c 11t4t446t



at t.t Lv')o ilr{ t-orm 1/02-RT

Reference No : 121800024596460
Date Filed: April 08,2018 11:19 PM

Batch Number i 1804862444

rlll nffiffiffiHJJHFIl lllFor BIR BCS/
Use Only ltem 1 702-RT06/13P1

Method of Deduction. ' ltemized Deductions [Section Optional Standard Deduction (OSD) - 40% of Gross lncome lsection 34(L),
34 (A-J), NIRCI NIRC as amended by RA No. 95041

16 Total lncome Tax Due (Overpayment) (Frcm Paft lV lten 44) oi

l7 Less: Total Tax Credits/Paymsnts (Frcm Pan lV ilen 45) oi

l8 Net Tax Payable (Overpayment) /(ea ,6 Loss ,lem 17) (Frcm Pan lV ltem 46) 0i

l9 Add: Totaf Ponalties (Frcm Pad lV ltam 50) 0i

l0 TOTAL AMOUNT PAYABLE (Overpaymeoll (Sum ol ltem 1A and 19) (Frcm Pad lV lten 51) 0l

ll lf Overpayment, mark "X" one box only (Once the choice ls made, the same 6 irrevocable)

To be refunded To be issued a Tax Credit Certilicate (TCC) To be carried ov€r as tax credit next year/quarter

an and Dale
(RO's Signature/Bank Tellefs lnitial)

Ropublika ng Pilipinag
Kagawaran ng Pananalapl
Kawanihan ng Renta3 lntornas

Annual Income Tax Return
For Corporation, Partnership and Other Non.lndividual
Taxpay€r Sublect Only to REGULAR lncome Tax Rate

Enter all required infomation in CAPITAL LETTERS. Mark applicable boxes with an X".
Two Copies MUST be tiled with the BIR and one held by the taxpayor.

BIR Form No.

1702-RT
June 201 3

Page 1

I For Calendar Fiscal

2 Year Ended (MM/20YY)

iir" ..i*oi? . i

Amended R6turn?

Yes rr No

Short Poriod Return?

Yes $ No

5 Alphanum€ric Tax Code (ATC)

Part l. Backsround lnformation
TaxpayerldentificationNumber(TlN) | i000 i-707 i-2so !-bOO 7 RDo codelio4s

Date of lncorporation/Organization (MM/DDIYYYY) lp8/27l1 931

Registered Name (Entar only 1 lsttor per box usins CAPITAL LETTERS)

\TOK BIG WEDGE COMPANY INC
f

l0 Reqistered Address (lndicate comolete reqisterad address)

1 Contacl Number 2 Email Address

3046282 aandaya@alphaland.com.ph

3 Main Line of Business l,l PSIC Code

NVESTMENT COMPANY OPERATION i691

m*n*ffifonu
Slqnalur6 overrinled n:tn6 o, Prasld6nrPndcDSl O,fl@_rnuihddz-6d R6Dr6SfileN6

1iileof sisnasry ,;i ylcE PRECIDENI - FtrrrANCE Number of pages frled I

24 Place of lssue luexnfr Crrv : 125 Amount. if
lcrc 880:

s of Payment
Number Oate (MM/DD,ryYYY) Amount

16 Cash/Bank Debit Memo q

l7 Check

l8 Tax Debit Memo

l9 Others (Specrfy Below)

ht1:ps://efps.bir.gov.ph/faces/EFPSWeb_war/forms20l3Version/'1702RT/1702RT_print.xhtml 1t8
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Net Taxable lncome (ltem 34 Less ltem 38 OR 39) (6,862,

Annual lncome Tax Return
Page 2 llilnEffiiHJ.{HEII il

BIR Form No.

1702.RT
June 2013

Part lV - Camputatlqn of Tax (Do NOT entor Centavos)

30 Net SaleslRevenues/Receipts/Fees (From Schedule 1 ltem 6) 9i

31 Less: Cost of Sales/Services (From Schedule 2 ltem 27) ol

12 Gross lncome from Operation (ltem 30 Less lten 31) 0i

|3 Add: Other Taxable Income Nol Subjected lo Final Tax (From Schedule 3 ltem 4) 0i

|4 Total Gross lncome (Sum ol ltems 32 & 33) 0i

Less: Deductions Allowable und€r Existino Law

|5 Ordinary Allowable ltemized Oeductions (From
,chedule 4 ltem 40) 6,862.1 05i

|6 SpecialAllowable ltemized Deductions (From Schedule
i ltem 5)

|7 NOLCO (on, for those taxablo under Sec. 27(A to C);
,ec. 28(A)(1) & (A)(6)(b) ol the tax Code) (From Schedule
iA ltem 8D)

o

i8 Tolal ltemized Deductions (Sum of ltems 35 lo 37) 6,862,1 0q

OR lin case laxable under Sec 27A) & z1(Hfi)l
i9 Optional Standard Deduction (40% ol ltam 34) 0

12 lncome Tax Due other than MCIT (llem 40 x llem 41) 01

,3 Minimum Corporate lncome Tax (MCll) (2% of Grcss lncome in ltem 34) 0l

14 Total lncome Tax Oue (Normal lncome Tax in ltem 42 or MCIT in ltem 43, whichevet is higher)
'To pad ll ltem 16)

0i

15 Less: Total Tax Crsdits/Payments (From Schedule 7 ltem 12) (To Paft ll ltem 17) 0r

Add Penaltiss

17 Surcharge 0l

18 lnterest 0i

l9 Compromis€ o

i0 Total Psnalties (Sum ot ltems 47 to 49) (To pan ll ltem 19) 0,

Total Amount Payable (Sum ltem 46 & 50) (To Pad ll lten 20) 0,

Part V - Tax Relisf Avallment (Do NoT onter centavos)

i2 Sp€cial Allowable ltemized Osductions (30% ol ltem 36) 0l

i3 Add; Special Tax Credits (From Schedule 7 ltem 9) 0,

i4 Total Tax Relief Availment (Sum o//16ms 52 & 53) 0

Part Vl - External Audltor/Accredlled Tax Aqenl
i5 Name of External Auditor/Accredlted Tax Aqent

TEYES TACANDONG AND COMPANY

' lss rnt liooz i- i75s t- 091 -.ooo

i7 Name of Sionino Parlner (lf External Auditor is a PatlnershiD)

:MMANUEL V CLARINO

r lse rrN 102 - '084 I - 004 '- ,000

i9 BIR Accreditation No. iO ISSUE DAIE MM/DDNYYY 161 EXOTV DAIC (MM/DD/Y

08 iioos144 lroos iizor z o1113t2017 o1t1312020

https://efps.bir.gov.ph/faces/EFPSWeb_war/forms201 3Version/1702RT/1702RT-print.xhtml zt6

Taxpayer toentiricition ttumreifnttt-----__l Reqistered Name

I
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+t I ztzv t6 BIR Form 1702-RT

IIII EffiffiHJISIII III
Annual lncome Tax Return

Page3-SchedulesI&2 1702-RT
June 2013

Schedule 1 - Sales/Revsnues/Recolpts/Fees (Attach additional shee7s, if necessary)

Sale of Goods/Properties 0i

2 Sale o, Servlces oi

! Lease of Properties

{ Total (Sum ofltoms , to 3)

5 Less: Sales Rgturns, Allowances and Discounts

B Net Salos/Rov6nuos/Rocsipts/Fess (ltem 4 Less ltem 5) (To Pafi lV ltem 30)

Schedule 2A - Cost of Sales (For those Enqaqed in Tradinq)

1 Merchandise lnventory - Beginning oi

2 Add: Purchases of Merchandise

3 Total Goods Available for Sale (Sum of ltems 1 & 2) 0l

4 Less: Merchandise lnventory, Ending oi

5 Cost of Sales (/tem 3 Lass ltem 4) (To Schedule 2 ltem 27 )

Schedule 28 - Cost of Sales (For those Enqaged in Manufacturing)

6 Diroct Materials, Beginning

7 Add: Purchases of Oirect Materials

B Materials Avaflable lot Use (Sum of ltoms 6 & 7) Ot

I Less: Direct Materials, Ending 0i

l0 Raw Mat€rials Used (/tem I Less /fem 9)

ll okect Labor 0i

t2 Manufacturino Ovsrhead 0i

3 Total Manutacturing Cost (Sqm o//lems 10, 11 & 12)

l4 Add: Work in Process, Beglnning

l5 Less: Work in Process, Ending oi

16 Cost of coods Manufactured (Sum of ltams 13 & 14 Less lten 15) 0l

17 Finish6d Goods, Beginning 0'

l8 Less: Finjshed Goods, Ending 0i

19 cost of Goods Manufactured and Sold (Sum ofllems 16 & 17 Less ltem 18) (To Sched. 2 ltem 27) 0i

Schedule 2C - Cost of Services
(For those Engaged in Servicss, indicate only those directly incurred or related to the gross revenue from r94Q!t1g!,91-C9IyE99I_

20 Direct Charges - Salaries, Wages and Benefits

21 Direct Charges - Materials, Supplies and Facilities 0i

22 Dlrect Charges - Depreciation U:

23 Diroct Charoes - Rental 0

24 Direct Charges - Outside Seruices 0i

25 0irect Charges - Others 0i

16 Total Cost of SeNlces (Sum of ltems 20 to 25) (To ltem 27)

https://efps.bir.gov.phifaces/EFPSWeb_war/forms201 3Version/1702RT/1702RT_print.xhtml 3/8
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qSlqdlfe 3 . Other Taxabl€ ltlggmq llqlEq[Lected to Final Tax (Aftach additional sheet/s, if necessary)

0l

0i

Total other Taxable lncqme Not subrected to Flnal rax (sum ol ttems 1 to 3) (To pafi tv ltam 3i.) 0t

Annual Income Tax Return
Page4-Schedules3&4 TIII EHffiTUJHfrII III

Schedule 4 . Ordinary Allowable ltemized Deductions (Attach additional sheet/i if neieisarv)
Advertising and Promotions oi

Amortizations (Specifu on ltems 2, 3 & 4)

ol

0i

0l

Bad Debts 0

Charitable Contributions 0t

Commissions

Communication, Light and Water 2,097

Depletion ol

l0 Depreclation oi

ll Oirector's Fees 28,901

2 Fringe Benefits 0.

13 Fuel and Oil

l4 lnsurance 0!

5 lnterest

6 Janitorial and lvlessengerial Seryices

7 Losses 0i

E l\4anagement and Consultancy Fee 0:

9 lvliscellaneous 1 35,089i

l0 Office Supplies 164,243'

ll Other Services

12 Professional Fees 1.370,341

l3 Rental 175,282i

14 Repairs and Maintenance - (Labor or Labor & Materials) 0l

l5 Repairs and Maintenance - (Materials/Supplies) 0:

16 Representation and Entertainment 0:

17 Research and Oevelopment 0l

l8 Royalties o,

19 Salaries and Allowances '1.274.6951

https://efps. bir.gov. ph/faces/EFPSWeb_war/forms201 3Version/1702RT/1702RT-print.xhtml



+t tatv-t6 BIR Form 1702-Rf

Annual lncome Tax Return
Page5-Schedules4,5&6 IIII EEffiFTilffiII III

BIG WEDGE COMPANY INC.

tqhedulo 4 . Ordlnary Allowable ltemized Doductions (Continued from Previous Pase)

l0 Security S6ruicos

Il SSS, GSIS, Philhealth, HDMF and Othor Conhibutions 87,876

|2 Taxes and Licenses

|3 Tolllng Fees 0:

14 Training and Seminars

l5 Transporlation and Travel 6,779

Others /SDecifubelow: Add additional sh6et,sl. if
16 iATLocATED EXP-ENS ES 2,547,428

17 :PSE LISTING FEE .

990,214

t8 i[4tNtNG ExpLoRATtoN cosT 1 ,699

19 IOTHERS 77,461i

Total Ordinary Allowabls ltomlz€d Dsductions (Sum ot ltems 1 to 39) (To Pad lV lten

Schedule 6 - Computation of Net Ooeratlnq Loss Carrv Over (NOLCO)

Gross lncome (Frcm Part lV ltem 34) 0i

Less: Total Deductions Exclusive of NOLCO & Deduction Under Special Law 6,862,105i

Net Operating Loss (To Schedule 6A) (6,862,1 05)i

Net Loss

Year lncurred I A) Amount

Schedule 5 - Special Allowable ltemized Deductions (Attach additional sheeUs, if necessary)

D€scription Le0al Basis Amount

0

0

0i

5 Total Special Allowable ltemizod oeductions (Sum ot ltems 1 to 4) (To Part lV lton 36)

\?917 6,862,1051 0

8016 17,256,270i 0

i2015 20,3'17,1951 0

i2014 23,678,676i 0

;ontinuation of Schedule 6A (ltem numhers continue from the table above)

)) NOLCO Expired ) NOLCO Applled Current Year :) Net ODeratinq Loss (Unapplied)

0l 6,862,1 05i

0i 0. 17 ,256,270

0i 0l 20,317,195:

zJ,oro,o/o, 0l 0

6 IOTAI NULGO
$um of ftems 4D to 7D) (To Paft lV ftem 37)

o

https://efps.bir.gov.ph/faces/EFPSWeb war/forms20l3Version/1702RT/1702RT_print.xhtml 5/8
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Annual Income Tax Return
Page6-Schedules7,8&9 llll EIEH*iHI.{HEII ll I

BIR Form No.

1702-RT
June 201 3

't Prior Year's Excess Credits Other Than MCIT
z rncome tax payment under MCIT from previous euarler/s
3lncome Tax Pqymejrt under Regyl@AEEA@-!1,ffi

MCIT Ap rlied this Current Taxable year (From Schedule I ltem 4F)
5 Creditable Tax Withheld from Previous Ouarteili per glR Fom l{o. fu07
6 Creditable Tax Withheld per BIR Form tlo. ZSOZ tor ttre +tn Otarter
7 Foreign Tax Credits, if applicable
I Tax Paid in Return Previously fiteO, ii tfris is an nrnerxteO neturn

speqat ( 5s)
Other Creditsi Payments (spec,r,

10

11i

2 Total Tg Creqits/Payments (sum or ilons t to 11) (To patt tv tletu 4s)

Schedule I . Computation of Minimum Corporate lncome Tax (MCIT)
Year A) Normal lncome Tax as Adiusted B) IVCIT )) Excess MCIT over Normal lncome Ta)

1

2

3

Continuation of Schedule 8 (Line numbers continue from table above)
D) Excess MCIT Applied/Used

for Previous Years
i) Expired Portion of Excess

MCIT
F) Excess MCIT Applled

this Current Taxable Year
3) Balance of Excess MCIT Allowable ar

Tax Credit for Succe6ding Yearls

1

2

3

4 TOtal EXCoSS MCIT lSun or Cotunn tor ttoms I F to 3F) fo Scheduto I ttem 4)

Schedule I - Reconciliation of Net lncome oer tsooks Aoainst Taxable lncom€ /aflech,
1 Net lncome/(Loss) per books (3,884,533

Add: Non'deductible Expenses/Taxable Other lnconte
2 REPRESENTATION EXPENSE 21,44
3 sENALTIES 20,584

4 Iotal fsumof /l€es r lo3] 13,842,502
Less: A) Non-taxable lncome and lncome Subiected to Final Tax

5 NTEREST INCOME SUBJECTED TO FINAL TAX 1,019,60

6 )IVIDENDS i 2,000,00(

B) Soecial Deductions
7

I
I Total (suaoIlens5Io s) 3,01 9,603

10 Net Taxable lncome (Loss) fiem4Lessilems) (6,862,1051

ht1:ps://efps.bir.gov.ph/faces/EFPSWeb_war/forms20l3Version/1702RT/1702RT-print.xhtml 6/8
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Annual lncome Tax Return
PageT.Schedulesl0&11 IIII E#EEHHTffiII III1702.RT

June 2013

Assets
'l Current Assets 52,560,554
2 Long-Term lnvestment 647,594,',t7
3 Property, Plant and Equipment - Net 21,264,

4 Long-Term Receivables 0
5 lntangible Assets
6 Other Assets 1,525,00(
7 Total Assets (sun or ttems 1 to 6) 701,700,992

Llabilities and Eouitv
8 Current Liabilities 2,010,713
9 Lonq-Term Liabilities
10 Deferred Credits
11 Other Liabilities
12 Totaf Liabilities gun ot lens I to 11) 2,010,713
13 Capital Stock '1.060.000.00c

14 Additional Paid-in Capital
15 Retained Earninqs (360,309,721

10 Total EqUlty (sumotiloms1oto15) 699,690,279

17 Total Liabilities and Equity (sumorttems12E16) 701,700,992

11. r Stockholders Partners Members lnformation (Top 20 Stockholders, partners or Members)
3 enler the amount of capital contribution and on the last column enter the oercentaoe this reoresents on the entire ownerehio)

REGISTERED NAME TIN Capital Contribution Yo lo
Total

iBOERSTAR CORPORATION 1245 - iis6---r - iss6"- i - boo 1,775,21E,804 69.74

|NORTH KITANGLAD AGRI i005 -206 i-i882 - o00 309,000,000 12.14

PCD NOMINEE i000 i774 r-j849 r-000 212,289,641 8.34

STRONG GAIN ENTERPRISE iooo l-boo i-iooo i-boo 1 20,000,000 4.72

PROGRESSIVE DEVELOPMENT i201 bsr -iro1 :-boo 93,963,474 3.6S

:POWER MERCHANT INTERNATIONAL 000 )oo l- iooo r - ooo 30,000,000 1.18

iCARROL, CHARLES F, o00 - ooo -:ooo - ooo 593,200 0.o2

]BRTAASCH, HERBERT i000 i-Q00 i-1000 :-,000 84,884 0.0'1

BARON, ROSE :000 
.-000 

;-1000 '-000 81,1 97 0.01

AMNETA, JORGE L. :102 ;-:757 i-i519 i-000 73,535 0.01
.MCLARNEY JANE MARY ooo -oo0 -ooo .-ooo 70,875 0.01

JSILBERT, SOLOMON S 1000 - boo -iooo '-000 56,567 0,0

COHEN, SY R. AND BARBARA COHEN iooo ,000 i000 i- o00 43,1 95 0.0

STEINER, NORMA ooo '000 - 1000 - 000 38,656 0.01

TCOHERCO SEC., lNC. FAO 181513151200 ao4 - 652 'gg+ '- ooo 38,000 0.01

LOO NGO KUE 000 - 000 i000 t- i000 36,020 0.01

.PUA, LUIS i000 :-000 -t000 r-0oo 35,542 0.01

.CUNNINGHAM, EDMUND F. 1000 i000 ooo - ooo JJ,t I i 0.01

]OLASIMAN, EDILBERTO F. {182 521 is21 l- ooo 33,100 0,01

FORES, MARIA LOURDES t37 23s i7e6 i- poo 29,44t 0.01

htps://efps.bir.gov.ph/faces/EFPSWeb_war/forms2013Versionl1702RTl1702RT-print,xhtml 718
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IIll EffiHtiHlllHfrll lllAnnual lncome Tax Return
PageS-Schedules 12&13

BIR Form No.

1702-RT

)Gross lncome/
leceipts Subjected to
:inal Withholdino

A) Exempt
B) Actual AmounUFair Market

Value/Net Capital Gains
C) Final Tax Withheld/Paid

lnterests q 1,274,504 254,9011

I Rovalties q 0: sl

I Dividends 0: 0

I Prizes and Winnings 0 0i 01

Sale/Exchanqe of Real oroperties A) Sale/Exchanse #1 B) Sale/Exchanoe #2
i Description of Property (e.9. land, improvement, etc.)
t OCT/TCT/CCT/Tax Declaration No.
/ Certificate Authorizinq Reqistration (CAR) No

I Actual AmounVFair Market Value/Net Capital Gains

) Final Tax Withheld/Paid

ll) Sale/Exchanqe of shares of Stock B) Sale/Exchange #2

l0 Kind(PS/CS)/Stock Certificate Series No.

1 certificate Authorizinq Reqistration (CAR) No
l2 Number of Shares
3 Dato of lssue (MM/DD/YWY)

l4 Actual AmounUFair Market Value/Net Capital Gains

5 Final Tax Withheld/Paid

V) Other lncome (Specify) A) Other lncome #1 B) Other lncome #2

l6 Other Income Subject to Final Tax Under Sections
i7(A)l127lothets of the Tax Code, as amended
'Specifv)
7 Actual AmounUFair Market Value/Net Capital Gains

E Final Tax Withheld/Paid

i9 iotal Final Tax Withheld Paid (Sum of ttems 1C to 4C,9A, 98, 15A, 158' 18A & 188) 254,901:

Return of Premium (Actual AmounUFair Market Value)

) Personal/Real Properties Received
hru Gifts. Bequests, and Devices

A) Personal/Real Properties #1 B) Personal/Real Properties #2

Description of Property (e.9. land, improvement, etc.)

Modes of Transfer (e.g Donation)
Certificate Authorizing Registration (CAR) No.

Actual AmounUFair Market Value

Other Exempt lncome/Roceipts A) Other Exempt lncome #1
-_BJ. 

gtll 
9 t qlelrllln c9llq{?

i Other Exempt Income/Receipts Under
3ec, 32 (B) of the Tax Code, as amended (Specj!1t)

I Actual AmounUFair Market Value/Net Capital Gains

Tot'rt t"""r" Recepb EGmri@s 1' 5A,58,7A &78) | q

l^rttps:i/efps.bir.gov.ph/faces/EFPSWeb-war/forms2013Versionl1702RTl1702RTjrint.xhtml
8/8
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Schedule 13 -


